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Financial Highlights B #&#H =

FINANCIAL SUMMARY HERHE
2010 2011 2012
T —F——F —B-=F
(RMB million) (RMB million) ~ (RMB million)
(NREBHEL) (AR¥EHET) (AR®EER)
Revenue A 30,136 38,597 36,122
Gross Profit E7 2,055 2,602 1,164
EBITDA' MBRFTERL - BATEFERCA -
e R SEA R T 2,714 3,294 1,595
Profit before income tax RIS ELAT R A 1,613 1,932 326
Profit for the year EEHA 1,185 1,418 146
Profit attributable to owners of KAREREEE
the Company FE(E A 1,063 1,242 126
Basic earnings per Share (RMB) FRERKE(ARET) 0.36 0.42 0.04
Net Assets FEEME 8,520 9,511 9,555
Total Assets BEE 20,742 22,930 24,752
Net Assets value per Share BRFEEBE(FRIEE
(excluding non-controlling interests) B MERELS)
(RMB) (AR¥%7T) 2.75 3.03 3.09
1 The Company defines EBITDA as profit for the year before 1 A FIH EBITDA R TE % A1 B 750F

finance costs-net, amortisation of intangible assets, amortisation
of leasehold land and land use rights, income tax expense,
depreciation, non-recurring items and share-based payments.
Non-recurring items for the year ended 31 December 2012
included RMB 108 million as reversal of written-down of
inventories to net realisable value made in 2011 and RMB 3.6
million as impairment of property, plant and equipment.
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AVERAGE SELLING PRICE AND GROSS PROFIT PER BiITEENREERSW T IHEEE
TONNE OF SELF-MANUFACTURED STEEL PRODUCTS EEER
2010 2011 2012
—2-TF —T—F —ZF--F
(RVB) (RMB) (RMB)

(AR%TT) (AR®TT) (AE¥T)

Average Selling Price per Tonne FHEFHHEREE 3,493 4,022 3,327
Gross Profit/(Loss) per Tonne BWEEF(EE)
H-section steel products H 24§ 2= o 265 386 170
Strips and strip products A8 N A fR E 255 233 113
Billets S 182 119 (16)
Cold rolled sheets and R BLIR I 8 R
galvanised sheets 195 179 (138)
Rebar 42 457 ) — 232 81
Combined ZE 239 267 929
Average Selling Price per Tonne Gross Profit per Tonne
B TIIHEEE BWEF
RMB RMB
AR AR T
5,000 500
4,022
4,000 400
3,493 ‘
3327
3,000 300 S
239 ‘
N ‘ ‘ : ‘ ‘
R R B ;
0 ’ ’ 0 ’ ’
2010 2011 2012 2010 2011 2012
—E-TF  ZE——F —E——F —T-TF ZZT——F —T——F
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SALES VOLUME OF SELF-MANUFACTURED STEEL HTEENREER REREEE S >
PRODUCTS AND CLASSIFIED BY PRODUCTS HEE
2010 2011 2012
e T F —%-=F
(000 tonnes) (‘000 tonnes)  ('000 tonnes)
(Fmg) (Fma) (Fmg)
H-section steel products H AU 372 G 2,595 3,336 3,288
Strips and strip products A5 i) K A e KR 2 3,680 3,627 3,800
Billets SR 2,001 1,482 1,424
Cold rolled sheets and R BLIR R 8 IR
galvanised sheets 452 477 484
Rebar SR A - 422 422
Combined ZE 8,628 9,344 9,418

Sales Volume of Self-manufactured Steel Products

BITEENRSERNHEER

4.5% 4.5%

35.0%
[ H-section steel products HZ 8 & & [0 sillets $8%
[T strips and strip products %5 i & % $0 48 2= & [ cold rolled sheets and galvanised sheets /% #L1R % $ #% 1%
[ | Rebar #2410
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun
(Executive Deputy General Manager and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
(Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Han Li
(appointed on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee (Deputy General Manager)
(resigned on 11 May 2012)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
Mr. Liu Lei
(re-designated on 7 February 2012)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Qingju

(resigned on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi

(appointed on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Zhou Guoping

(appointed on 1 December 2012)

COMPOSITION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman)
Mr. Gao Qingju
(resigned on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho
Mr. Wang Tianyi
(appointed on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Zhou Guoping
(appointed on 1 December 2012)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi

(appointed on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Zhou Guoping

(appointed on 1 December 2012)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman)
Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Yu Tung Ho
Mr. Wang Tianyi
(appointed on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Zhou Guoping
(appointed on 1 December 2012)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei

(appointed on 25 September 2012)
Mr. Lee Hang Tat

(resigned on 25 September 2012)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei

(appointed on 25 September 2012)
Mr. Lee Hang Tat

(resigned on 25 September 2012)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suites 901-2 & 10, 9th floor, Great Eagle Centre

23 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.chinaorientalgroup.com

LIST OF BANKERS (IN ALPHABETICAL ORDERS)
Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of Dalian

China Bohai Bank

China Citic Bank

China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

China Minsheng Bank

Citic Bank International Limited

DBS

Nanyang Commercial Bank

Natixis

Rabobank

Raiffeisen Bank International AG

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

Shenzhen Development Bank

Tangshan City Commercial Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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Chairman’s Statement =E#H%E

REVIEW OF YEAR 2012
OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

2012 has been a year full of both challenges and opportunities for the
Group.

Since there was a slowdown of the investment in steel related
industries and the imbalance between the demand and supply of
the steel production capacity in Mainland China and the prices of
various raw materials for the production of steel including iron ore
and coking coal remained at a high level, the Group experienced a
significant year-on-year decrease in revenue and profit in the first half
of 2012. In the third quarter of 2012, due to the substantial decrease
in the selling price of steel products and the significant decrease in
prices of raw material which led to a significant decrease in the gross
profit of the selling of steel products and impairment loss for raw
material inventories, the Group recorded a loss for the third quarter of
2012. Through improvement in its production efficiency, adjustments
in its steel product mix, reduction of other production costs and
improvement in the market environment, the performance of the
Group in the fourth quarter of 2012 had improved slightly. Despite of
the above difficulties faced by the Group in 2012, the Group can still
manage to maintain a profit attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB 126.1 million in 2012 by implementing strict
cost control and optimizing its sales products.

8 China Oriental Group Company Limited 5 5 5 42 Bl ¥ e A R A 7

Although the steel industry market in 2012
is volatile, the Group has endeavoured to
optimise its existing business, as welll as
to proactively explore new development
opprtunities.
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Chairman’s Statement = E#H &

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

With respect to the steel business, our core business at present,
the Group has been actively taking measures to enhance our
competitiveness in this sector. We have made substantial investment
in various projects on harnessing power generated and emission
reductions in the production bases of the Group. The completion
of these facilities will significantly reduce energy consumption and
mitigate the upward pressure on raw materials and energy costs.
Apart from effective energy cost control, these facilities can also
substantially reduce pollutant emission during the production
process, leading to an improved community environment in the

proximity of the plants.
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Chairman’s Statement =E&H &

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Located in Qianxi County, Tangshan City, Hebei Province, the PRC,
Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Company Limited (“Jinxi Limited”) is
the Group’s main production base. Jinxi Limited and its subsidiary,
Hebei Jinxi Section Steel Company Limited, sold 3.29 million tonnes
of H-section steels products in 2012 and continued to be a market
leader in the PRC for H-section steels.

During the year of 2012, Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Zhengda
Iron and Steel Company Limited (“Zhengda Iron and Steel”)
continued to work on upgrading its production facilities with the
target to reduce energy consumption and emissions which will
increase the operating efficiencies of Zhengda Iron and Steel in the
future.

Due to inappropriate operating decision made and poor risk
management by the senior management of Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan
Cold Rolled Sheet Company Limited (“Jinxi Jinlan”), Jinxi Jinlan
incurred substantial loss in 2012. Certain members of the senior
management of Jinxi Jinlan had been replaced and dismissed by
the Group and the Group had also appointed and organized new
senior management team and finance officer to operate Jinxi Jinlan.
The Board is confident that the new senior management team can
complete the operating targets of 2013 assigned by the Board.

In view of the low rate of return on the investment made in the steel
making industry and the increasing cost of fund, the Group considers
that cautious involvement in other industries will support the return
to the shareholders. Therefore, the Group started to explore other
potential business opportunities while ensuring the risk control in
order to promote the long-term growth of the Group’s results.

The Group started to engage in trading of steel products which is
not manufactured by the Group in 2011. During the year ended
31 December 2012, the sales volume arising from trading of steel
products amounted to approximately 1.08 million tonnes (2011: 0.22
million tonnes). The revenue and gross profit attributable to trading
of steel products were approximately RMB 3,535 million (2011:
approximately RMB 804 million) and approximately RMB 59 million
(2011: approximately RMB 9 million) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, Hebei Jinxi Boyuan
Real Estate Co., Ltd., a 58.6% indirectly owned subsidiary of
the Company, had completed the first phase of the property
development project namely Donghu Bay which is located in

10 China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5y £ [l ¥ it 45 B A 7]
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Chairman’s Statement =E®R&E

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Tangshan City, Hebei Province, the PRC and recorded revenue from
real estate business of approximately RMB 323 million and operating
profit from real estate business of approximately RMB 73 million.
The second phase of the project is in progress and expected to be
completed by early 2014, which will provide substantial revenue and
profit for the Group. In addition, Beijing Jinxi Boyuan Real Estate
Co., Ltd., a 97.6% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company,
had successfully bid for two parcels of land located in Suzhou City,
the PRC for a consideration of RMB 314 million in December 2012,
which is a good investment opportunity for the Group to increase
its land reserves prudently for its future business development. The
two pieces of land are located at Tayuan Lu Xi, Heshan Lu North,
Fengaiao Jie Dao, Gaoxin District, Suzhou City, the PRC where an
area of approximately 16,857.6 square meters with plot ratio not
exceeding 1.6 is for residential purpose and an area of approximately
14,881.9 square meters with plot ratio not exceeding 3.3 is for
wholesale and retail business and commercial and finance business
purposes.

The Group also engages in financing industry through its subsidiaries,
Oriental Evertrust Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. (“Oriental Evertrust”)
and Tianjin Oriental Huitong Microcredit Company Limited (“Oriental
Huitong”). As at 31 December 2012, Oriental Evertrust and Oriental
Huitong provided loans amounting RMB 380 million to independent
third parties at interest rates ranged from 12% to 20% per annum.

In order to promote the Chinese culture, improve the corporate
image and perform its corporate social responsibility, the Group
established a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, Beijing Jinxi Longxiang
Culture Development Company Limited (“Jinxi Longxiang”) and
published “Meng Xue Shi San Jing™ (K24 =#F) in 2012,

Since the Group introduced the world’s largest steel corporation
ArcelorMittal as its strategic shareholder in 2008, collaboration
between the Group and ArcelorMittal has grown considerably.
ArcelorMittal appointed experienced executives to the Board of the
Group to participate in decision making for the Group’s business
development. Technicians and management staff from ArcelorMittal
was sent to our production sites on a regular basis to inspect their
operations and provide professional advice. Close collaboration is
maintained for improving product quality.

We believe our course of development is currently moving in the right
direction, and we are on the verge of achieving satisfactory returns
very soon.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & Btk & 247

BUSINESS REVIEW £ {EI] ]

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products HEBTAENNEE R ZHEDNT
Sales Volume HEE

In 2012, the total sales volume was 9,418,000 tonnes (2011: —E - FHEEE S 59,418000ME( =

9,344,000 tonnes), representing an increase of approximately 0.8%. LT ——14:9,344,000F) © FF#10.8% o

The sales volume breakdown during the year was as follows: NEBEZHESHMAWT
2012 2011
—B-CZF —F——F
Changes in
Sales volume
Sales volume Sales volume  Increase / (Decrease)
HEE HEE HEEEL
(000 tonnes) (000 tonnes) /(i)
() (Fug)
H-section steel products H AU 2 i 3,288 35.0% 3,336 35.7% (1.4%)
Strips and strip products il R E m 3,800 40.3% 3,627 38.8% 4.8%
Billets 7 1,424 15.1% 1,482 15.9% (3.9%)
Cold rolled sheets and RER RN
galvanised sheets 484 5.1% 477 5.1% 1.5%
Rebar 250 422 4.5% 422 4.5% -
Total At 9,418 100% 9,344 100% 0.8%
During the year of 2012, the Group’s production capacity is 11 RIE——FFERN AEBRNFER
million tonnes per annum. A& 1,100 BWE o

12 China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5y £ [l ¥ i 45 B A 7]



Management Discussion and Analysis B Ez R 2

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Revenue
Revenue in 2012 was RMB 31,330 million (2011: RMB 37,580

million), representing a decrease of approximately 16.6%.

The sales breakdown and average selling price by product (excluding
value-added tax) during the year were as follows:

HEEDE

HERE

TR FREEBEAAREE313.301F
T(ZE——%F: AREE375.8018L) * T

F£#716.6% °

FRHEERANFIERHEEEE(TS
BEB)OT

2012 2011 Changes
—E--& —Z——F 21t

Average Average Average
selling selling selling
Revenue price Revenue price Revenue price
¥4 ¥ 1
HER HEEE HER  HEEE HERE  HEEE

Increase/

(RMB million) (RMB/tonne) (RMB million) (RMB/tonne) (Decrease)

(AR¥EER) (A\R¥%7n/H) (\REEER) (\R%1T/H) /(i)
H-section steel products HE! 82 m 11,404 3,469 13,682 4,101 (16.6%) (15.4%)
Strips and strip products il R AR E R 12,233 3,219 14,210 3,917 (13.9%) (17.8%)
Billets b7 4,236 2,974 5,629 3,799 (24.7%) (21.7%)

Cold rolled sheets and RER RIEFR

galvanised sheets 2,069 4,275 2,305 4,838 (10.2%) (11.6%)
Rebar 248 1,388 3,290 1,754 4154 (20.9%) (20.8%)
Total/combined Bt/ 174 31,330 3,327 37,580 4,022 (16.6%) (17.3%)

The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the slowdown of the
investment in steel related industries and the imbalance between the
demand and the supply of the steel production capacity in Mainland
China which led to a decrease in the average selling price of the
products of the Group by 17.3% to RMB 3,327 per tonne in 2012
from RMB 4,022 per tonne in 2011.

HERE TREASRHRAMMISEEET
EWIRERE B EERERHHREK
& BMEASEELNTHHEEEER
—E——FHEWMARKE40227T T
173%E-_F—_FHEMEARK 3,327
5T o
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Management Discussion and Analysis & Btk & 247

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

The consolidated gross profit in 2012 was RMB 933 million (2011:
RMB 2,491 million), representing a decrease of 62.5%.

Average unit cost per tonne, gross profit per tonne and gross profit
margin during the year were as follows:

2012
—E-CZF
Gross
Average profit/(loss)
unitcost  per tonne

F13 =L
RAEE £5,/(£H)

(RMB/tonne) (RMB/tonne)
(AR¥7,/®) (A\R%T/H)

HEEDRE)

HEK A KX EF
—E-_FNRAENAEARKIIIE
T(ZZ——F : AR¥E2401B7T) T

[%62.5% °

REMFEEWTELRAEE  SHE
FIREMEMT -

2011
—T——F
Gross Gross Gross
profit/(loss) Average profit profit
margin unit cost per tonne margin

8/ 43

(EB)X  RAEE BEEH e RS

(RMB/tonne)  (RMB/tonne)
(\R®/%) (A\R%7,/1)

H-section steel products HAERE & 3,298 170 4.9% 3,715 386 9.4%
Strips and strip products R ER 3,107 113 3.5% 3,684 233 5.9%
Billets SR 2,990 (16) (0.5%) 3,679 119 3.1%
Cold rolled sheets and RER RIE R

galvanised sheets 4,413 (138) (3.2%) 4,659 179 3.7%
Rebar 2 3,209 81 2.5% 3,922 232 5.6%
Total At 3,228 99 3.0% 3,755 267 6.6%

The gross profit per tonne in 2012 was RMB 99, representing a
decrease of approximately 62.9% compared to the gross profit of
RMB 267 per tonne in 2011. Gross profit margin decreased to 3.0%
in 2012 from 6.6% in 2011. Decrease in gross profit margin was
primarily due to the magnitude of decrease in the selling price of the
steel products of the Group was much larger than the magnitude of
decrease in raw material prices due to the weaker market demand in
2012 than that of 2011.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

In order to sustain a stable financial status, the Group closely
monitors its liquidity and financial resources.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had unutilised banking facilities
of approximately RMB 10.5 billion (2011: RMB 4.6 billion).

As at 31 December 2012, the current ratio of the Group,
representing current assets divided by current liabilities, was 1.3
(2011: 1.7) and the gearing ratio, representing total liabilities divided
by total assets, was 61.4% (2011: 58.5%).

As at 31 December 2012, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB 879 million (2011:
approximately RMB 965 million).

After considering its cash and cash equivalents as well as the
banking facilities currently available to the Group, it is believed that
the Group has sufficient capital to fund its future operations and for
general business expansion and development.

Capital Structure

In November 2012, the Company repurchased a total of principal
amount of US$ 87,240,000 and US$ 59,817,000 of the 2017
Senior Notes and the 2015 Senior Notes respectively. Following the
completion of the repurchase, the outstanding aggregate principal
amount of the 2017 Senior Notes and the 2015 Senior Notes was
US$ 212,760,000 and US$ 490,183,000 respectively.

g e
Bont kI BER

AEEZYERRBDES RYBER
PACRFE IR A BUBGIRIL

RZF-—ZF+ZA=1+—8 &&KHE
BRI ASRITREBREROARK 1058
(Z=——%F : AR®46187T) °

R_ZE——F+-_fA=+—8  A&EH
MRS E(RBEERURBAERE) B
13 (T —F 17 REEARE
LER(BEBERINBEE)R61.4%(ZF
——%F 1 58.5%) °

R-_ZE——F+-_A=+—H AEH
MRS MRS EBYWAARELXS7IE
T(ZE——F  HARB9B5ETT) °

EREHNARENHAZRE KRS
B RRE TRRTREBER - 486
AR B i 7 R RO E S AR 2 7
BIER—BEBEANER ELRE -

BANER

RZE—ZF+—R  KXRFAHH
f8 | X £ 4 %8 /&87,240,000% T &
59,817,000%X T2 —E—+FE X E
BRZZE—RAFELERE - RNTAED
% —T—tLtFEAXAEBR=-ZT—H
FRAZBIZRENETRES A
212,760,000 % 7T } 490,183,000 E 7T ©

Annual Report 2012 —%— 44k 15



Management Discussion and Analysis BBz &k 247

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Capital Structure (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, borrowings of RMB 6,696 million of the
Group bore fixed interest rates ranged from 1.52% to 8.00% per
annum and borrowings of RMB 1,659 million of the Group bore
floating rates ranged from 1.81% to 7.38% per annum. The Group’s
exposure to changes in market interest rates was considered to be
limited. The Group did not use any derivatives to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

Moreover, most of the borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2012 were non-current with maturity over two years.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the debt-to-capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes current and non-current borrowings, finance
lease obligations and borrowings from related parties. The Group
regards its non-current borrowings, non-current portion of its finance
lease obligations and borrowings from related parties and its equity
attributable to owners of the Company as its total capital. As at 31
December 2012, the debt-to-capital ratio of the Group was 63.2%
(2011: 55.8%).

The consolidated interest expenses and capitalised interest in 2012
amounted to RMB 571 million (2011: RMB 546 million). The interest
coverage (divide earnings before finance cost-net and taxes by total
interest expenses) was 1.2 times (2011: 3.7 times).

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had capital commitments of
RMB 563 million (2011: RMB 505 million). It is estimated the capital

commitments will be financed by the Group’s internal resources,
senior notes and unutilised banking facilities.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Guarantee and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s contingent liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB 30 million (2011: RMB 30 million),
which was the provision of guarantee for bank borrowings in favor of
a third party.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2012, the net book value of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment amounting to nil (2011: approximately
RMB 41 million), inventories amounting to approximately RMB
122 million (2011: approximately RMB 61 million), notes receivable
amounting to approximately RMB 2,200 million (2011: approximately
RMB 161 million) and restricted bank balances amounting to
approximately RMB 1,110 million (2011: approximately RMB 891
million) had been pledged as security for issuing notes payable of the
Group and the Group’s banking facilities.

Exchange Risks

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The
Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises from the procurement
of iron ores and the relevant products from overseas suppliers and
the Group’s senior notes, which is denominated and settled in USD.
Foreign exchange rates fluctuates in reaction to the macro-economic
performance of different countries and fund flows between countries
arising from trade or capital commitments. The Group has not used
any derivatives to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk for the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

Final Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Post Balance Sheet Events

Save as disclosed in this report, there are no events to cause material
impact on the Group from the balance sheet date to the date of this
report.

ACCREDITATION FOR THE COMPANY AND ITS
MANAGEMENT

During 2012, Oriental Green Energy-Saving Environmental
Protection Engineering Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, won the
accolades of “Enterprise of 10 Most Influential Brands in Energy-
saving Service Industry of China”, “Most Innovative Brand in
Environmental Sector of China”, and “Top Ten Creditable Green and
Low Carbon Enterprises in the Environmental Sector of China”; while
Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Dafang Heavy Industry Science
and Technology Co., Limited, another subsidiary of the Group, was
successfully assessed as a National Hi-tech Enterprise, signifying the
enhancing technological innovation ability and competitiveness of
the company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company plans to distribute not less than 20% of the Group’s
distributable profit as dividend after its listing. However, the actual
amount of dividend and as a percentage to profit will be at the
discretion of the Board and will depend upon the Company’s future
operation and earnings, capital requirement and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions, and other factors that the
Board considers relevant. In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
laws, the distributable profit of the PRC respective subsidiaries of the
Company should not be higher than its net profit, after appropriation
to the statutory reserve as determined by the generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintained close contact with its investors during the
year of 2012. The Company not only made timely disclosures of the
Company'’s information through the website of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for increasing the
transparency of the Company, but also held regular meetings with
investors, updating them on the Group’s business development and
industrial trend. In addition, members of the senior management
of ArcelorMittal who were appointed as Directors of the Company
actively participated in investor relations activities and, together with
other members of the Group’s management, attended investors’
seminars, as well as one-to-one analyst meeting.

In 2012, the Group actively participated in large-scale investment
promotion seminars organized by major investment banks,
enhancing investors’ understanding and confidence in the
Company.

All such activities helped to promote investors’ understanding of the
Group while allowing us to understand more about the opinions and
expectations of investors. In future, the Group will further its effort to
maintain close contact and effective interactive communication with
investors.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 14,000 and temporary staff of approximately 4,000.
The staff cost included basic salaries and benefits. Staff benefits
included discretionary bonus, medical insurance plans, pension
scheme, unemployment insurance plan, maternity insurance plan
and the fair value of the share options, etc.. Effective from July 2008,
the Group implemented a workers’ injury insurance scheme and
contributed 1.5% of the workers’ wages to the Social Insurance
Bureau. According to the Group’s remuneration policy, employees’
package is based on productivity and/or sales performance, and is
consistent with the Group’s quality control and cost control targets.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward to the 2013 global economy, although the
economic outlook of Europe is still facing many uncertainties,
the economy of China is expected to achieve a certain degree of
recovery in 2013 under the execution of “stable growth” economic
policy by the central government. Steel demand is expected to
be fueled by the commencement of the “Twelfth Five-year Plan”
of the PRC government, the demand from urbanisation, and the
development of Northwest China and the revitalization of Northeast
China’s traditional industrial base. In addition, the escalated
development of alternative sources of energy, cutting-edge industrial
machinery/equipment, low cost housing projects, Euro3 standard
compliant automobiles as well as a renewed focus on environmental
protection and energy saving measures by the State will increase
steel consumption.

Driven by a comparative shortage of resources supply, the prices of
various raw materials including iron ore, coke and coal are expected
to remain high. The management of the Group will closely control the
inventory level and adjust purchasing strategy for raw materials when
needed.

During 2012, the Group continued to strategically expand the
development of new businesses which laid a solid foundation for
our long-term development. It is expected the newly developed
businesses will contribute more sustainable revenue and profit for
the Group.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

Since its listing in 2004, the Group has continued to expand
its business, diversify its steel product categories and business
portfolio. During the last nine years (since being listed), the Group’s
overall crude steel production capacity has reached 11.0 million
tonnes per annum from 3.1 million tonnes per annum at the time of
the listing. Its product portfolio has grown from billets to a variety of
steel product series — each in a comprehensive range of products
and is available in different specifications. These product series
include H-section steel products, strips and strip products, billets,
cold rolled sheets and galvanized sheets and rebar. Moreover, the
H-section steel products of the Group commands a leading position
in China. The Group has been gradually diversifying its business.
In addition to expanding its supply chain through upstream and
downstream integration, the Group has also expanded horizontally
by tapping into other business sectors. The Group will strive to take
full advantage of the current solid financial condition and efficient
management to intensify the continuous development of the Group
and to maximize the shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude
to all of our staff for their hard work and dedication, to our clients
for their continued trust, and to you, our shareholders, for your
continuous support. The Group will continue to pursue steady and
sustainable growth in year of 2013, have advancement with its staff,
and share fruitful return with its shareholders.

By order of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

Han Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Jingyuan, aged 56, is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, and also serves as chairman of the board
of Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Company Limited (“Jinxi
Limited”), Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold Rolled Sheet Company Limited
(“dinxi Jinlan”), Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Zhengda Iron and
Steel Company Limited (“Zhengda Iron and Steel”) and Oriental
Fullhero Leasing Company Limited (“Fullhero Leasing”). Mr. Han
graduated from the People’s University in 1994 with a degree in
management. Mr. Han began his career in Metallurgy in 1984 when
he was employed as a deputy mine manager and mine manager of
Han’erzhuang Iron Mine. Mr. Han has in-depth industry knowledge
and 27 years of extensive operational and managerial experience
in the iron and steel industry. Mr. Han was awarded the honorary
title of “Hebei Metallurgy Top Ten Man”, “Outstanding Entrepreneur
of Hebei Province”, “Excellent Privately-owned Enterprises
Entrepreneur in Hebei Province”, and “Economic Top Ten Men of
Honesty and Credibility in China”, etc.. Mr. Han is the Vice Chairman
of the Metallurgy Chamber of All-China Federation of Industry
and Commerce, the Chairman of Hebei Hong Kong Chamber of
Commerce and the Vice Chairman of Tangshan Charity Federation.
Mr. Han was also the 9" and 11" representative of the People’s
Congress of Hebei Province, PRC. Mr. Han is the director and the
controlling shareholder of Wellbeing Holdings Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Group.

Mr. Zhu Jun, aged 49, is an Executive Director, Executive Deputy
General Manager of the Company, and also serves as the Chief
Operating Officer of the Company and the executive director of Jinxi
Limited. Mr. Zhu graduated in 2001 from a graduate programme
of the Communist Party School in Hebei Province with a diploma in
management. Prior to working in the steel industry, Mr. Zhu worked
for 10 years as deputy director of Qianxi County Chemical Fertilizer
Factory which was based in Qianxi County, Hebei Province. Mr. Zhu
joined Jinxi Iron Factory in 1992 and later served as deputy director.
Mr. Zhu has had 19 years of working experience in the iron and steel
industry.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Shen Xiaoling, aged 52, is an Executive Director, Deputy
General Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and
also serves as an executive director of Jinxi Limited. He obtained a
diploma in management from the Hebei Province Communist Party
School in 2001. Before joining the Group, Mr. Shen was the head
of China Construction Bank Luanxian Sub-branch. Mr. Shen also
had 5 years experience acting as the Head of China Construction
Bank Qianxi Sub-branch and more than 6 years of experience as
the deputy head of Bank of China Qianxi Sub-branch. Mr. Shen has
been the deputy general manager of Jinxi Limited since January
2002.

Mr. Zhu Hao, aged 46, is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Zhu graduated at Tianjin Nankai University and obtained his
Master degree in accounting from the University of New South Wales
in Australia. Mr. Zhu is a senior economist in China. Mr. Zhu was a
non-executive director of Jinxi Limited from December 2002 to early
2004.

Mr. Han Li, aged 25, is an Executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Han Li joined the Group in 2009 as the assistant to the Financial
Controller of the Company. He is currently the executive assistant
to Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the director and legal
representative of Jinxi Limited. He is also the directors and legal
representatives of certain subsidiaries of Jinxi Limited. He assists the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer of the Company
managing the daily operations of the Group. Mr. Han Li was
appointed as the representative of the People’s Congress of Qianxi
County, Tangshan City, the PRC in June 2011. Mr. Han Li is the son
of Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
the substantial shareholders (within the meaning of the Part XV of the
SFO) (holding 46.03% of the shareholding of the Company) of the
Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ondra Otradovec, aged 44, is a Non-executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Otradovec graduated from Stony Brook State
University of New York with Bachelor degree of Finance. Previously,
he worked at HSBC, responsible for financing, IPO, privatization
in Central and Eastern European markets. During that period, he
provided advisory service for the acquisition of Nova Hut in Czech
Republic and other steel companies. Since 2003, Mr. Otradovec is
responsible for mergers and acquistions activities at ArcelorMittal.
He is now the vice president of Global Merger & Acquisition at
ArcelorMittal.

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar, aged 65, is a Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Bhatnagar holds a bachelor’s degree in
Metallurgical Engineering and is an alumnus of AMP of Harvard
Business School. He is currently the executive vice president and
member of management committee of ArcelorMittal (a substantial
shareholder of the Company, a company listed on the stock
exchange of Amsterdam, Paris, Luxembourg, Madrid and New
York) and the chief executive officer of ArcelorMittal in India and
China. Prior to his current assignment, he was the chief executive
officer of ArcelorMittal Eastern Europe (Poland, Czech Republic
and Romania). Previously, he served as the chief executive officer
of Mittal Steel Poland and the chief operating officer of Mittal Steel
Temirtau, Kazakhstan and the managing director of Mittal Steel
Lazaro Cardenas, Mexico. Mr. Bhatnagar has over 36 years of
experience in line and staff functions in aluminum and electronics
industries in India. Mr. Bhatnhagar was also appointed as a director of
Hunan Valin, a listed company in the PRC, since January 2011.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRsREEASHNBEER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Liu Lei, aged 57, is a Non-executive Director of the Company
and director of Jinxi Jinlan. Mr. Liu was the Executive Director
and Deputy General Manager of the Company from June 2004
to February 2012. Mr. Liu has over 24 years of experience in
management and industrial fields. Mr. Liu graduated in the area of
Industrial Electrical Automation of Electrical Engineering Faculty of
AL T EFr (Hebei Industrial Academy) in July 1978. Mr. Liu was
awarded the title of AL EBREBRINABTFEERIMAL
(Professional Technological Talent with Outstanding Contribution in
Hebei Province) by Government of Hebei Province in April 1987. Mr.
Liu was also granted the qualification of research fellow by A/ 1t& &
RS HFZEE (Senior Appraisal Committee of Zi Ran Yan Jiu
of Hebei Province) in December 2000. Before joining the Group in
June 2004, Mr. Liu was the vice chancellor of ja[1t& RIEFR (Hebei
Academy of Sciences) from October 1999 to June 2004.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Tung Ho, aged 66, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. He currently serves as senior vice
president of Phoenix Satellite Television Company Limited. Mr. Yu
is a senior influential media professional in Hong Kong and China
and has been in broadcasting for more than 40 years. Mr. Yu was
a director and the chief operation officer of Asia Television Limited,
the executive vice president of Phoenix Satellite Television Company
Limited and served as chairman of the 12th and 13th Hong Kong
Advertising Industry Association. Mr. Yu has also served as the
deputy general manager of China Radio & TV Corporation for
International Techno-Economic Cooperation and the chief of Radio
Guangdong and an independent non-executive director of Gome
Electrical Appliance Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.

FEBTEF 2

BJEAELE A+Hm BAKRAAMIE
WITESRERSHEMNES  2L4ER
CEENFEANAEZTE-—FZAHE
RARNBIHNITE SR BKIE - 25%
AREERIEFAABB - THEFH
Khp o BIEER—NENFLAEER
At TERBERTREZATXERE B
BE - HFR—NANEFNABETILE K
fIREE Dt B BREERMNTEFHE
BAT I 0@ - TR -ZTETF+=
REAILEBEAMESRTLZGT AT
FTEMER - RZEZTWMFENAMAK
SEA BEER—NANNEFETAEZ
TTFERN AP B AT E R ERH
gfi& -

BYFHTES

REERE - N ARBIEILIE
WTES RBEFBREERARA
RIERBIRE  EHEMMBEFE NN
BERERA BRUFEREXBBO+
FroBHERADMERERARNE
EREEEEY  BEGRARARNHN
TRIBE  URET _RET=ZEEE
EEXBMEER HASETREEEH
EENPEEEESREERLERMAE
BATIMBEIRLE EREAERESRS
RRBEXERERARAR(—HRBR
FrER EMEVRR])EVBIIFITES

Annual Report 2012 —%— —4p4pfi 25



Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHEEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis, aged 48, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company. He is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 24 years of experience in
auditing, taxation, management and financial advisory. Mr. Wong
is currently an independent non-executive director of Digital China
Holdings Limited, eForce Holdings Limited and Wai Kee Holdings
Limited whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He was once the independent non-executive director
of Sys Solutions Holdings Limited, a company listed on the growth
enterprise market of the Stock Exchange, the independent non-
executive director of Yardway Group Limited, a company listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange and the independent non-
executive director of Lightscape Technologies Inc., a company with
its shares listed and traded in the OTC Bulletin Board of the United
States of America. Mr. Wong is a director of both Union Alpha
C.P.A. Limited and Union Alpha CAAP Certified Public Accountants
Limited, both are professional accounting firms. He is also a founding
director and member of Francis M.C. Wong Charitable Foundation
Limited, a charitable institution. Previously, Mr. Wong worked for
KPMG, an international accounting firm for 6 years and the Hong
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited for 2 years. Mr. Wong
is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of
the United Kingdom, a Certified Tax Advisor of Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is also an associate member of Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a member of the
Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors, Hong Kong. Mr. Wong
holds a Master Degree in Management conferred by Guangzhou
Jinan University.

26 China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5y £ [l ¥l 45 B A 7]

BYEHITES 2

BRI A\B - NRRIME IR
TEF - BR—BHNESHE BE
B EERMBRETEARA
T POF AR o B AR AN ST
RERATR - BERHERBER QG RER
SEBRARNBYIFRNITES  ZF
RAMRM IR E T ER LT - &&
A8 B EECRRHRIE R AR A R (AR
MREEZFTBIZER ET) - BNEEBR
RA(ERORERZFMER L) OB
JEHTTE E X Lightscape Technologies
Inc. —fE#E3EI OTC Bulletin Board £
RAIMBUIERTES - EXREBR AT
EErMEHMERARRRELRAL
[ (B8 2 EBAERARINES -
BNMBENTREEESHBR ARG AAIH
EERERACTUZA EEEER
EEHER S EHEAMETHIIES
FURBEBEPREEERARERR
THEME - XL REBEMIAE
RBEFHFARETMAEEREE - B
BREEE 2 X MK - TAREHE
EERTHTEMmAeeE REBE
BIMAEEE  c AAERFAEMNE
MAABEEEE LB o
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wang Tianyi, aged 66, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. He is currently the executive vice president
of The Chinese Society For Metals. Mr. Wang has over 40 years
of extensive experience in the steel industry. Mr. Wang studied
metallurgical machinery in 1t RS EfT (Beijing Institute of Iron
and Steel Engineering) (now known as 1t REHE A University
of Science and Technology of Beijing) from 1965 and graduated
in 1970. He then worked at HE &R ] & & /A fR & £ 2 & (Handan
Iron and Steel Group Company Limited) ([ HESHEEE | or “Handan
IS Group”) from 1970 to 1995 and held various management and
professional positions, included the position of a technician, deputy
factory manager and executive deputy general manager. From 1995
to 2008, Mr. Wang re-designated and worked at & LIl £ &5
fR & {TA Al(Tangshan Iron and Steel Group Company Limited) ([ &
S £2E |or “Tangshan IS Group”) as the chairman and managing
director. From 2005 to 2011, he was also the deputy chairman and
managing director of & i 7/ i 8 & A PR & £ 2 7 (Shougang
Jingtang Iron and Steel Company Limited). From July 2008 to
August 2011, he acted as the vice chairman of ;A 1t & £ E AR
& {£2 7] (Hebei Iron and Steel Group Company Limited) ([ ;7] 3k
=% E |or “HBIS Group”). HBIS Group was established after the
merger of Tangshan IS Group and Handan IS Group on 30 June
2008.

Mr. Zhou Guoping, aged 66, graduated from China University of
Political Science and Law (former known as The Peking College
of Political Science and Law) in 1969. Mr. Zhou started his career
since 1970, he had been acted as the Deputy Director of Public
Security Bureau of Jilin City, Jilin Province of China (RIS #& &
M AL BEHE), and the Deputy Director of the State Security
Bureau in Jilin City (MM B R%Z 2 BEIBK). He had also been
in charge of the Jilin City Forestry Security Bureau (B Ak MAE A%
BZ). Mr. Zhou was the Deputy Director of Municipal Justice Bureau
of Changchun City, Jilin Province of China (FF B #ME K& A
7=BE|BEK), and the Deputy Director of Public Security Bureau of
Changchun City (K& AR BA|H&K) and the Deputy Secretary
of Politics and Law Committee of Changchun City (K& BUA
ZEIE5) from 1994 to December 1997. During the period, Mr.
Zhou was awarded the title of Police Commissioner, Class Il (Deputy
Bureau Level)( —  ZEZZ 47 (8] /S4%)). Since December 1997, Mr.
Zhou was appointed as the Deputy Director and the Secretary of
Committee for Discipline Inspection of Beijing Traffic Management
Bureau (It R ARRBEEREAIBRFALZER) till his
retirement in 2006.

BAFHITEEZ®

ERB|ERE - NTAE ARANEL
FRPTEE HRETREELSLEK
BIEER . TAATEHETERGRB
AWFEELSR - TEER—NAAFH
vA ph B R AL R i 2 B (IRAB AL mEHE K
B EE o eEMEXERN —NEEFE
¥ -FR—NEZEFE-NANEFER
B EBEEREEAR(HEHER )
TEX BHAEZREERREXEBAG - 2
BEEMAE  BIBRELEHAELRE -
R—NANAFE_TZTN\FHHE - T%&
FHRETEZERLHASESEERETAA
([EHEE]  HRETREERKEE
“E E_TEERAFE_T——FH
M RAACETHMAEMEHAER
EARTNBEERARLELE YR
ZEENFLAE-_FT——F N\ AHEH
E) 1t 8 82 & B A PR B E A /) ([ L i
HEEDMBIZESERE TSR
—EENFENA=ZTEEERER KT
=B S 0K o

BBREE NTRE R—ARNLF
EXNFEBUEKXZ(FIHE B RBULE
Bo) AEER—NEZTFERKB2NT
fE REHETPEEMREEHT L RHE
REEEMTERZ2RAIBE BAR
EMTMEALZENIE  R—hAlmF
RE-NNELF+T - ARETEEMER
EMBEIBRIZREIRBR RETAL
REIRREEREMBUEZEIZR - RAEL
HETEERE _RERZEH(ABER) - &
FEEB-ANEE+TZARBELERTR
TRBEERBIBRFLEER BEEZ
TTRERK -

Annual Report 2012 —%— —4pipik 27



Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHEEER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Lifung, aged 36, is the general manager of Jinxi Limited. Mr.
Yu began his career in 1995 when he was employed as the sales
supervisor of Han’s erzhuang Iron Mine, and joined Jinxi Limited
in 1996. From October 2009 to August 2012, Mr. Yu had been
appointed as the general manager of Zhengda Iron and Steel. In
September 2012, Mr. Yu transferred to Jinxi Limited as the general
manager. He has been the sales supervisor, the manager of supply
division, deputy general manager and general manager of Jinxi
Limited. Mr. Yu has been awarded the honorary title of Workers’
Model in Qianxi Country (i 78545 8% #5), Ten Outstanding Youths
in Tangshan City (F 1L+ XEF S 4), Success New Entrepreneur
of Hebei Province A/ 3t & BIZEIIER).

Mr. Yu Jianshui, aged 45, is a deputy general manager of Zhengda
Iron and Steel. Mr. Yu was graduated at Hebei Polytechnic University
and obtained a MBA from University of Northern Virginia in June
2009. He joined the Group after graduation until May 2005 and
had over 20 years management experience. During the period, he
received the awards of County Technological Selected Talent (§%
BHZIA AA), Ten Outstanding Youths in the County (8 +K
#HEF), Outstanding Youth in Post of Tangshan City (& LLTH
SHEmMNAIAETF ), Workers’ Model in Hebei Province (a4t 45 &)
#E&3), The First Class Honour of Technological Improvement in
Tangshan City (1L BHL #E 26— % 88), The Third Class Honour of
Technological Improvement in Hebei Province (JA[it & RIS =
£ 1¥). He was employed as the deputy general executive manager
of Shanxi Province Xiaoyi City Chengcai Iron and Steel Company in
May 2005 and then joined Jinxi Jinlan in April 2006 and was also
appointed as a general manager in September 2006. In 2008, Mr.
Yu transferred to Zhengda Iron and Steel as a general manager. Mr.
Yu has been a general manager of Jinxi Limited since October 2009
and transferred to Zhengda Iron and Steel as the deputy general
manager in September 2012.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei, aged 37, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Au Yeung is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a fellow member and Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Au
Yeung holds a bachelor degree in professional accounting from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Au Yeung has over 14 years
of experience in auditing, accounting and financial management and
has been acted as the financial controller, company secretary and
authorized representative of the Company from April 2010 to April
2011. Mr. Au Yeung was reappointed as the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary with effect from 25 September 2012.
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The Company is committed to sound corporate governance
practices designed to promote greater transparency, investor
confidence and the continued development of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) with the best long term interest of the
Group and value enhancement for all shareholders as our ultimate
goal. The Company also believes that sound corporate governance
practices benefit the Group’s employees and the community in
which the Group operates.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(“CG CODE”)

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
CG Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange throughout
the year ended 31 December 2012, except for the deviation with
explanation disclosed below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”)

During the year under review, the Board comprised the following
Directors and the composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun (Executive Deputy General Manager
and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
(Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Han Li (appointed on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee (resigned on 11 May 2012)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ondra Otradovec

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar

Mr. Liu Lei (re-designated on 7 February 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gao Qingju (resigned on 7 February 2012)

Mr. Yu Tung Ho

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis

Mr. Wang Tianyi (appointed on 7 February 2012)

Mr. Zhou Guoping (appointed on 1 December 2012)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
It should act in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders
at all times. The Board sets strategies for the Company and monitors
the performance and activities of the senior management.

The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for the day
to day operations of the Company whereas the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of financial and management reporting to the Board
and shareholders of the Company as well as to provide a balanced
composition in the Board so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it
has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience, which can
meet the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical information is set out on pages 22 to 27.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

> Formulating the Group’s long-term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof;

Approval of dividends;

Reviewing and approving the interim and annual reports;
Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance;
Monitoring the performance of the management;

Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and disposal
of assets and other material transactions.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

Except Mr. Han Li, who is the son of Mr. Han Jingyuan, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business, family
relationship among the other Directors. All of them are free to
exercise their independent judgment.

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategy
that have been approved. During the year under review, eight
board meetings were held and the principal business transacted
included approving interim and annual results and reports,
assessing business development and business performance and
implementation. The attendance record of each Director for the year
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ended 31 December 2012 is set out as follows:

Board of Directors

E=R

Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Zhu Jun
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Han Li
(appointed on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee
(resigned on 11 May 2012)
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
Mr. Liu Lei
(re-designated on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Gao Qingju
(resigned on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
(appointed on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Zhou Guoping
(appointed on 1 December 2012)

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Number of Board Meeting
Attended/Eligible Attended

EERERHE
BEREHERE
BEUREAE 5/8
KELAE 7/8
LB A4 8/8
KEFE 7/8
RN E 6/8
(R-F——F = F+HEZF)
Muktesh Mukherjee 54 1/2
(R=ZF——F7HHA+—HEFHE)
Ondra Otradovec 5t 4 1/8
Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 54 1/8
BmEE 7/8
(R-ZF——F - A+ HFHE)
SNk Fs N/A N3 A
(R-ZFE——F_ H+HET)
REUERE 8/8
BXREE 8/8
FRE|ESSE 7/8
(R-F——F = F+HEZF)
BB A 1/1

(R—ZF——F+ - A—HEZT)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely
manner, with all necessary information in a form and of a quality
appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Minutes
of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection by any Director.

A. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Board has Chairman to provide leadership to the Board
in terms of establishing policies and business directions and
monitor the daily operation of the Group.

Mr. Han Jingyuan currently serves as the Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The
Board believes that there is no immediate need to separate
the roles of Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company because the role of chief executive officer/general
manager of the Company’s major operating subsidiaries are
performed by other persons.

The Board will consider the segregation of the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
light of the future development of the operating activities or
businesses of the Group.

B.  Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Company had three
Independent Non-executive Directors for the period from 1
January 2012 to 30 November 2012 and had four Independent
Non-executive Directors for the period from 1 December 2012
to 31 December 2012 of whom Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in
financial matters in compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

B.

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election. At each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors for the time (or if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
notwithstanding anything therein, the Chairman of the Board
and/or the Managing Director of the Company shall not, whilst
holding such office, be subject to the retirement by rotation
or be taken into account in determining the number of the
Directors to retire in each year and the Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall not be
taken into account in determining which particular Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation. The
Company will consider amending the Bye-laws to comply with
the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code in the future.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

C.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
(continued)

All the Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. Currently, Mr. Han Jingyuan,
Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Zhu Hao and Mr. Han Li
(appointed on 7 February 2012) being the Executive Directors
are appointed for a fixed term of three years. Mr. Vijay Kumar
Bhatnagar and Mr. Ondra Otradovec being the Non-executive
Directors are appointed a fixed term of two years. Mr. Liu
Lei being the Non-executive Director is re-designated from 7
February 2012 till 31 December 2012. All Independent Non-
executive Directors, including, Mr. Yu Tung Ho, Mr. Wong Man
Chung, Francis and Mr. Wang Tianyi (appointed on 7 February
2012) and Mr. Zhou Gouping (appointed on 1 December 2012)
are appointed for a fixed term of one year. All the Directors
are still subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws.

Except for the change in the Board as mentioned above,
during the year under review, no Director was appointed to fill
any causal vacancy or otherwise.

Responsibilities of Directors and Company Secretary

The Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as Directors
of the Company.

New Director will be given an introduction to the Group’s major
business activities, induction into their responsibilities and
duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

E.

Directors’ and Officers’ liability

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors and Officers’
liabilities has been provided to cover potential legal actions
against Directors and Officers.

Training and Support for Directors and Company Secretary

Each newly appointed Director will be received
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the first
occasion of his appointment, so as to ensure that he has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Group and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments in
which the Group conducts its business to the Directors.

The Directors are committed to comply with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code which came into effect on 1
April 2012 on directors’ training. All Directors have participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training
they received for the year ended 31 December 2012.

With effective from January 2012, the Company Secretary is
required to have 15 hours of professional training under the
Listing Rules. During the year under review, Mr. Au Yeung
Siu Kei, the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of
the Company, undertook 34 hours of professional training to
update his skills and knowledge in compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

G.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own

code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and

all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the

required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year

under review.

Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance, the Board

has established the following committees whose authorities

and functions, compositions and duties are set out below:

(7)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since
2005 with specific written terms of reference. The
term of reference of the Audit Committee (which was
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company) have included those specific duties as
set out in the Code Provision C.3.3 of the CG Code,
with appropriate modifications when necessary.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was
amended on 23 March 2012 in order to comply with the
amendment of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to its term
of reference, the Audit Committee is required, amongst
other things, to consider and recommend to the Board
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditors and to approve their remuneration, to
review the interim and annual financial statements, to
review the Group’s financial controls, internal controls
and risk management system including the adequacy
of resources, qualification and experience of staff of the
accounting and financial reporting function and their
training programmes and budget, and to consider any
findings of major investigation of internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response. The Audit Committee should
meet at least twice each year and when the need arises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

(1)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year under review, the Audit Committee
comprised three Independent Non-executive Directors
for the period from 1 January 2012 to 30 November
2012 and comprised four Independent Non-executive
Directors for the period from 1 December 2012 to 31
December 2012, namely Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
as the Chairman of the Audit Committee during the
year under review and Mr. Gao Qingju (resigned on
7 February 2012), Mr. Yu Tung Ho, Mr. Wang Tianyi
(appointed on 7 February 2012) and Mr. Zhou Guoping
(appointed on 1 December 2012) as the members of the
Audit Committee, in compliance with Rules 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, three committee
meetings were held.

The attendance record for each member of the Audit
Committee for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set
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out as follows: &8 HEDSELT
Number of Audit

Committee Meeting

Audit Attended/

Committee members Eligible Attended
ERZEESERHE

ERZEESEE S BERLEERE

Mr. Gao Qingju mEREE N/A 7~ 36 A

(resigned on 7 February 2012) (RZEBE——FZAEHEHT)

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis \mXORAAE 3/3

Mr. Yu Tung Ho REELE 3/3

Mr. Wang Tianyi FRESE 3/3

(appointed on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Zhou Guoping AL

(appointed on 1 December 2012)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

(7)

&

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Commmittee of the Company has reviewed
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2012 and has also discussed
the internal control, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee is
of the opinion that the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standard, the Listing Rules and the statutory
requirements and that adquate disclosures have been
made in the annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established
since 2005 with specific written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
(which was available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company) have included the duties
which are set out in the Code Provision B.1.2 of the
CG Code, with appropriate modifications when
necessary. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee was amended on 23 March 2012 in order to
comply with the amendment of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to its term of reference, the Remuneration
Committee is required, amongst other things, to
review and recommend to the Board the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors, Non-executive
Directors and senior management, to review and
approve performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time; to review and approve the
compensation payable to the Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company; and to ensure
that no Director is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee should
meet at least once a year and when the need arises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.

Board Committees (continued)

@

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year under review, in order to comply with
the revised CG Code and the Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules which were with effect from 1 April 2012, Mr. Han
Jingyuan (Executive Director of the Company) ceased to
be the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee with
effect from 23 March 2012 but remain as a member of
the Remuneration Committee. Mr Wong Man Chung,
Francis, (Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company) has been appointed as the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee with effect from 23
March 2012. For the period from 23 March 2012 to
30 November 2012, the Remuneration Committee
comprised Independent Non-executive Director,
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis, as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, Mr. Han Jingyuan
and the remaining Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company namely, Mr Gao Qingju (resigned on 7
February 2012), Mr. Yu Tung Ho and Mr. Wang Tianyi
(appointed on 7 February 2012) as the members of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Zhou Guoping was also
appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee
on 1 December 2012. As a result, the Remuneration
Committee was in compliance with the Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules during the year under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

&

Remuneration Committee (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012, two meetings
of Remuneration Committee was held. The attendance
record of each member is set out as follow:
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Number of
Remuneration Committee

Remuneration Meeting Attended/
Committee members Eligilbe Attended
FNEESERLE

FHEEERE S BERHERE

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis EIRAEAE 2/2

Mr. Han Jingyuan BRI A 2/2

Mr. Gao Qingju RBERE N/A 7~ 36 A
(resigned on 7 February 2012) (RZEBE—=—F - ALHEHT)

Mr. Yu Tung Ho REELAE 2/2

Mr. Wang Tianyi TRESE 2/2
(appointed on 7 February 2012) (RZE——F-RA+tREZME)

Mr. Zhou Guoping AL N/A 713 3

(appointed on 1 December 2012)

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the Note 32(b)
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

E=R(E=ERD@

(2)  Remuneration Committee (continued) Q) FHNZEED =

The biographies of members of the senior management RARFRH BN S MEIEEK

team at the date of this annual report are disclosed in the ENERNAFR[EENS

section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s TREBAENEREER] —&)

Biographical Information” in this annual report. Pursuant NIFE - RIBELEES AR Z

to the Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the STAMEXEBASIEE, - &

emoluments of the senior management (excluding 2-E——-F+=-A=+—H

Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2012 are FTEESNFEEEEE(T

within the following bands: BREZF)NFMNTFUATE

:
Number of individuals
A%

2012 2011

—B-CF —EB—-F

RVBS! - RMBS$1,000,000 AREATEARE1,0000007T 1 1

(approximately HKS1 to HK$1,233,350) (#1A721,233,350/7)

RMBS1,000,001 - RMB$2,000,000 AFRH 1,000,001 TZ AR 2,0000007T 1 -
(approximately HK$1,233,351 to HK$2.466,700) (411,233,351 7.2 2,466,700 7T

RMBS2,000,001 - RVB$3,000,000 AEH2,000,001 TZ AR 30000007 1 1
(approximately HK$2,466,701 to HK$3,700,049)  (#)2,466,701 BT Z 3,700,049/ )

(3)  Nomination Committee (B EEZEZ

The Nomination Committee has been established on RELZEEeN_ZE——F=A1

23 March 2012 with specific written terms. The terms “+=HKY C WEBEBETEZE

of reference of the Nomination Committee (which was HEESE - IRREE e 28K

available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company) have included the duties which are set
out in the Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary.

The Nomination Committee, will take into consideration
a candidate’s qualification, experience, expertise and
knowledge, the requirements applicable to the Company
and the structure and composition of the Board,
identifies, reviews and nominates with diligence and care
candidates suitably qualified as Board members before
making recommendations to the Board for their final
appointment.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

S

Nomination Committee (continued)

During the period form 23 March 2012 to 30 November
2012, the Nomination Committee comprised Mr.
Han Jingyuan, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company namely, Mr. Wong Man
Chung, Francis, Mr. Gao Qingju (resigned on 7 February
2012), Mr. Yu Tung Ho and Mr. Wang Tianyi (appointed
on 7 February 2012) as the members of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Zhou Guoping (appointed on 1
December 2012) was also appointed as a member of
the Nomination Committee on 1 December 2012. As
a result, the Nomination Committee was in compliance
with Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code during the
year under review.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, two meetings of
Nomination Committee was held. The attendance record
of each member is set out as follows:

Nomination
Committee members

REZEEHE

Mr. Han Jingyuan FHUR LA
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BEXREAE
Mr. Gao Qingju SEREE

(resigned on 7 February 2012)

Mr. Yu Tung Ho RGVETRAE
Mr. Wang Tianyi FREEE

(appointed on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Zhou Guoping B S

(appointed on 1 December 2012)
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Number of
Nomination Committee
Meeting Attended/
Eligible Attended
REZESERLE
S BERERERE

2/2
2/2
N/A N

(R—ZE——%F - A+ H&F)

2/2
2/2

(R—ZE——F - A+ BEZF)

N/A N

(R=—T——F+-_A—HEZT)

Annual Report 2012 —%——4E4E# 43



Corporate Governance Report £ E88E

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board had developed and
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and review the compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to prepare
financial statements of the Company for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
ensure that financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
financial statements of the Company.

The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and, having
made appropriate enquires, it considers that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis accordingly.

Internal Controls

The Board recognises that constant changes taking place in the
business environment call for periodical reviews of the system of
internal controls. Well-managed internal controls enable effective
and efficient operations, ensure the reliability of internal and external
reporting and assist in the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board recognises that it has overall responsibility for the Group’s
system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness.
Pursuant to the Group’s framework, senior management is primarily
responsible for designing and implementing the policies and
procedures of the internal controls, which the Board and the Audit
Committee oversee the actions of senior management and monitor
the effectiveness of the controls previously established.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal Controls (continued)

The Company’s internal audit function is performed by the internal
audit department of the Group which reports to the Chief Operating
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer and has direct access to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Chief Operating Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer report directly to the Chief Executive
Officer. The internal audit functions include (i) review and report on
internal and operational controls, (i) follow-up on the suggestions
made by external auditors, (i) ongoing monitoring and reviews on
different operating cycles; and (iv) special review of areas of concern
identified by senior management.

However, internal control can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against errors or deliberate attempt to defraud
the Company. The Board and the Audit Committee devote to
closely monitor the efficiency and effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group. Periodical meetings will be held and
guidance notes and training will be issued and provided to the senior
management where appropriate, to ensure an efficient and effective
system of internal control is in place.

During its regular audits of Jinxi Jinlan for the year ended 31
December 2012, the internal audit department of the Group
discovered that certain members of the senior management of
Jinxi Jinlan breached their fiduciary duties apparently by, among
others, (1) not imposing proper control on the construction
costs against the biding results which led to the prices of certain
construction contracts exceeding the then market prices and
resulted in economic losses directly to Jinxi Jinlan; and (2) without
conducting due diligence check against the ownership of goods of
an independent supplier (the “Supplier”), providing a prepayment
of approximately RMB 18 million to the Supplier for placing order
for the purchase of raw materials which led to potential impairment
provision of the prepayment. As at the date of this report, Jinxi Jinlan
was unable to recover the aforesaid sum either by way of obtaining
delivery of the raw material ordered or getting refund of said sum (the
“Incident”).

R E M )
NEREEYE (4)

ARE 2 AEBEZBEERAKE 2 NE
WMAAIT MEFELEREFEMEE
ER TEERMEZZES@IRAR-
BEFELENERMBEBRAERNT
BER - NEREE 2 TIERR ) HAEENR
EEEIFRBEA LIRS ¢ (i) RAESNEZ
BRDHR (2 325 ¢ (i) BN E & E BT
FREE I NRE R (v) e R E IR BT
Bz BT EEEITRIRERX

A AERESIEE AR A M IFB
ZREAGEBRLEZFRAALZ
TR -BEFRNEZZESEFIHAE
BAMERHE BB EETEME
R AREHEIMNEREEEHEL
35 15 S| AR o)l AR A RE AR 3R A HO R &6
ERAREAMMEEHR o

RAEEANERHEASHBE_-F
——F+ A=t BULFEZEHE
% BEERESHEOSREEAS
HEERBESZEET  EFBEN)XK
HIWBERBE LT EERAN - BRI
DEREASVNERBLHERHME B
BELRASHMERLERL RQAERY
— B HER ([ ZEEY ) BRI
ERARBRASHBERT » MZEE
B ARE 1,800 8 TTIEMNFIE © A
HBERMB TERE - BRFENKIE
HOBTERE - RAREHE  2ASHE
REeE BERNG] BB A R R s B S Pt
FIERRFGEE BB ([%E 4] -

Annual Report 2012 —%——4E4E# 45



ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Internal Controls (continued)

The Group had filed a litigation to the court located at the place of
establishment of Jinxi Jinlan in relation to the Incident and the local
PRC police authority had also placed the case on file for further
investigation. As at the date of this report, the Group is still waiting for
the investigation report from the local PRC police authority and the
final court order.

After discovery of the above events by internal control department
of the Group, the involved senior management and finance officer
of Jinxi Jinlan were subsequently replaced and dismissed by the
Group and the Group had also appointed and organized new senior
management team and finance officer to operate Jinxi Jinlan. The
Board is confident that the new senior management team can
complete the operating targets of 2013 assigned by the Board.

Although the above events led to a loss to the Group, since these
events were discovered by the internal control department of the
Group and were caused by the breach of fiduciary duties and the
irresponsible acts by the senior management and finance officer of
Jinxi Jinlan, the Board considers that this was an isolated case and
the overall internal control system of the Group remains sound and
effective. Nevertheless, the Board has also further strengthened the
internal control systems of the Group as follows:

(1)  The Group will set up a construction contract database
(the “Database”) which contains all the internal prices of the
construction contracts of the Group handled in the past and
the current market prices of similar construction contracts from
external sources. For any proposal for construction contracts
over RMB 1 million, the price of such construction contract
should be compared with the prices as set out in the Database
with detailed analysis before submission for approval.

(2)  The Group has set an authorization limit for the general
manager of each subsidiary. Any payment for construction
contracts or purchase of raw materials over the authorization
limit set for each subsidiary had to obtain the approval from
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group before making the
payment so as to reduce the risk of inappropriate decision
making by the general manager of each subsidiary.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal Controls (continued)

3)  all the financial officers of subsidiaries should be appointed
at the Group level instead of individual subsidiary’s level. The
financial officer of each subsidiary should also directly report to
the Chief Financial Officer of the Group instead of reporting to
the general manager of each subsidiary solely.

As a result of the above measures, the Board believes that the
project management team of each construction project can obtain
an objective market prices for the construction contracts so as to
prevent in setting the bottom of the bidding prices above the then
market prices of the construction contracts in the future. Since the
event of the Incident was only caused by the careless mistakes
made by the sales team of Jinxi Jinlan, Jinxi Jinlan had already
appointed a new deputy general manager who is very experienced
in this industry to replace the previous deputy general manager.
Moreover, by setting an authorization limit for the general manager
of each subsidiary and any prepayment of raw materials over
the authorization limit had to obtain the approval from the Chief
Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of the Group before
making the payment, the risk of material loss of the Group due
to the default of the suppliers has been further reduced. After the
implementation of the above measures, the Board believes that
the risk of occurrence of the above events would be very low in the
future.

External Auditor

For the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the date of this
report, the external auditor of the Group is PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Fees of auditing services and non-auditing services (including interim
review and taxation services) provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers
and its member firms of the same international network for the year
ended 31 December 2012 were RMB 5.1 million and RMB 0.82
million respectively.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

External Auditor (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the date of this
report, PricewaterhouseCoopers and its member firms of the same
international network provided non-audit services mainly on interim
review and taxation services. These non-audit services are engaged
only as they are more effective or economical than those available
from other service providers and will not constitute adverse impact
on the independence of the external auditor. The nature and ratio of
annual fees to external auditor for non-audit services and for audit
services in 2012 have been scrutinized by the Audit Committee.

Risk Management

The Group’s business, financial conditions and results of operation
may be affected by risk and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s
business. The factors set out below are those that the Company
believes could result in the Group’s financial conditions or results
of operations differing materially from expected or historical results.
There may be other risks in addition to those mentioned below which
are unknown to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Operation Risk

The Group’s results are affected by trends in the industry in which
it operates. Income from the operations is dependent upon the
conditions in global iron and steel market and therefore there can
be no assurance that changes in these conditions will not adversely
affect the Group’s financial conditions and results of operations.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Market Risk

Over 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and contribution to
results are derived from the Mainland China. The Group operates in
highly competitive and rapidly changing market. The intensification
of price competition by existing competitors, product innovation or
technical advancement could adversely affect the Group’s financial
conditions and results operations.

Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

Credit risk arises from a number of areas. These include the
possibility that a counter-party in a transaction may default during
the settlement process. It also arises from lending, settlement,
treasury, transaction and other activities undertaken by the Group.
During the year under review, the Group has not undertaken any
activities in any hedging or derivative instruments. The Group has not
established any risk management committee. The day-to-day credit
management is performed by the management of the respective
subsidiaries with reference to the creditworthiness, the type and
value of collateral available, the length of business relationship with
the counter-parties and the receipt of bank acceptance notes from
customers.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The
Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises from the procurement
of iron ores and the relevant products from overseas suppliers and
the Group’s Senior Notes, which is denominated and settled in USD.
Foreign exchange rates fluctuate in reaction to the macro-economic
performance of different countries and fund flows between countries
arising from trade or capital commitments. The Group has not used
any derivatives to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk for the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent to the
Company’s registered office and its principal office in Hong Kong
for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting (the “SGM”) to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. The written requisition must state the
purposes of the general meeting, signed by the Shareholder(s)
concerned and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of those Shareholders. If the requisition is
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a
SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid, the Shareholders concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as
requested. Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (i) not less than 100
Shareholders, can submit a written request stating the resolution
intended to be moved at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at a particular general meeting. The written request/
statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and
deposited at the Company’s registered office and its principal office
in Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary, not less
than six weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the general
meeting in the case of any other requisition. If the written request
is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (i) to include
the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that the Shareholder(s)
concerned have deposited a sum of money reasonably determined
by the Board sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and/or circulating the statement
submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM
or the statement will not be circulated for the general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary by post to the Hong Kong office.

IMPACT ON NEW LEGISLATION, POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

As mentioned before, over 90% of the operations of the Group
are carried in the Mainland China. Any change in the policy and
procedure in the Mainland China may have adverse effects on the
Group’s operation and results.

Also, the introduction of new legislation and rules by the Stock
Exchange, Securities and Futures Commission and other regulatory
bodies in Hong Kong and overseas may induce changes in market
conditions that in turn adversely affect the operating results of the
Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the shareholders of the Company. A Shareholders Communication
Policy was adopted on 23 March 2012 to ensure that Shareholders
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company. The policy is
posed on the Company’s website. The Company has established
various channels of communications with its shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a
timely manner. To promote effective communications, the Company
also maintains a website at www.chinaorientalgroup.com, where
updated information on the Company’s business developments
and operations and other information are posted, including all the
regulatory announcements relating to the Company and the poll
results on the business day following the general meeting (if any).

The general meeting of the Company provides a forum for exchange
of views between the shareholders of the Company and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, the Directors and senior management
of the Group and where applicable, the Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) are available to answer
questions at the general meeting of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The rights of the shareholders of the Company and the procedures
for demanding a poll on resolution at general meeting are contained
in the Company’s Bye-laws. Details of such right to demand a
poll and the poll procedure are included in all circulars to the
shareholders of the Company which will call for a general meeting
and will be explained during the proceedings of the meeting.

Upon the implementation of the amendments of the Listing Rules
with effect from 1 January 2009, all resolutions proposed at general
meeting will be voted by poll. The poll voting results will be posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.chinaorientalgroup.com) immediately after the
relevant general meetings.

Under the Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.
Due to other commitments, the Chairman of the Board was not in a
position to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
24 May 2012 (the “2012 AGM”).

The attendance records of the 2012 AGM and the special general
meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2012 (the “2012 SGM”) for
each of the individual Director were as follows:
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued) BRESEE e
Board of Directors Attendance of
BEER R
2012 AGM 2012 SGM
—E-CF —E-CF
BRRBERE BRRFRAE
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Han Jingyuan BEHURESE 0/1 11
Mr. Zhu Jun KERE 0/1 0/1
Mr. Shen Xiaoling LB 4 0/1 0
Mr. Zhu Hao ERE 1/1 0/1
Mr. Han Li BhRE 0/1 0/1
(appointed on 7 February 2012) (R=F——F = J+HEZT)
Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee Muktesh Mukherjee 5t & N/AR i N/ATEA
(resigned on 11 May 2012) (R-—F——F#H A+—HEHT)

Non-executive Directors

FHTES

Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec 5t & 0/1 0/1

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 5t 4 0N 01

Mr. Liu Lei i fyitaa 0/1 0/1
(re-designated on 7 February 2012) (R=—ZF——F = F+HHF)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIUFHTES

Mr. Gao Qingju =EREE N/A 738 N/A 7~
(resigned on 7 February 2012) (R=F—=4#F = F+HFHE)

Mr. Yu Tung Ho REVELE 0/1 0/1

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BXRESE 1/1 1/1

Mr. Wang Tianyi TREXE 0/1 0/1
(appointed on 7 February 2012) (R=F——F = J+HAEZT)

Mr. Zhou Guoping IR N/A i@ N/A i@
(appointed on 1 December 2012) (R-—F——F+=-HA—HEZT)

The Company will continue to enhance communication and RAARBEENSEHEBRR 2 BERAKE

relationship with its shareholders. Enquiries from the shareholders of Fo RRBIRER 2 EAB L@ FE

the Company are dealt with in a informative and timely manner. BRIE o
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The Board presents their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012,

INCORPORATION AND LISTING OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability on 3 November 2003 under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 2 March 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s principal activities are
investment holding and trading of iron and steel products. The
principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sales of iron
and steel products and real estate business.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Over 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and contribution to
results are derived from the PRC and mainly from the production and
sales of iron and steel products for the year ended 31 December
2012 and are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2012 and its consolidated balance sheet as at that date,
together with the balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December
2012, are set out in the financial statements on pages 86 to 91.

At a Board meeting held on 21 March 2013, the Board did not
recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2012.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 13 May 2013 to Wednesday, 15 May 2013 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares of the Company
may be registered, for the purposes of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general meeting.
The record date for the annual general meeting shall be 15 May
2013. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 10 May
2013.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated financial results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, is set out on page 244.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital

during the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2012, the Company’s accumulated losses
amounted to RMB 578 million (2011: RMB 430 million) and the
Company did not have distributable reserves.

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s retained earnings amounted to
RMB 5,045 million (2011: RMB 4,991 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The sales attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
revenue for the year.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
purchases for the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Zhu Jun
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee
(resigned on 11 May 2012)
Mr. Han Li
(appointed on 7 February 2012)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
Mr. Liu Lei
(re-designated on 7 February 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Gao Qingju

(resigned on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi

(appointed on 7 February 2012)
Mr. Zhou Guoping

(appointed on 1 December 2012)

In accordance to the Bye-laws 87 of the Company, Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr.
Zhu Hao, Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar and Mr. Wong Man Chung,
Francis will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In accordance to the Bye-laws 86(2) of the Company, Mr. Zhou
Guoping being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, if an independent
non-executive director serves more than 9 years, any further
appointment of such independent non-executive director should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
Upon the expiry of the current employment contract, Mr. Yu Tung Ho
and Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis are going to have served on the
Board for more than 9 years. The reasons why the Board believes
they are still independent and shall be re-elected would be included
in the papers to shareholders accompanying the condition for their
re-election.

According to the above Listing Rules, Mr. Yu Tung Ho and Mr. Wong
Man Chung, Francis shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The Directors’ fee specified in each of the existing service contracts
of Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Zhu Hao, Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar, Mr.
Wong Man Chung, Francis, Mr. Zhou Guoping and Mr. Yu Tung
Ho is HK$400,000. The basis of determining the Directors’ fee was
based on the mutual negotiation between level of the Directors with
reference to the range of prevailing directors’ fee for directors of
listed companies in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed in this annual
report, Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Zhu Hao, Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar, Mr.
Wong Man Chung, Francis, Mr. Zhou Guoping and Mr. Yu Tung Ho
do not have any relationships with any directors, senior management
or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 22 to 29 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Five Executive Directors have service contracts with the Company
for a fixed term of three years, two Non-executive Directors
have service contracts with the Company for a fixed term of
two years, while the remaining one Non-executive Directors has
service contract with the Company till 31 December 2012. All the
Independent Non-executive Directors have service contracts with
the Company for a fixed term of one year. All the service contracts
with the Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors may be
terminated by either party giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Apart from the Director service contracts, Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr.
Zhu Jun and Mr. Shen Xiaoling also have other service contracts
with the Company and its subsidiaries. The emoluments specified
in other service contracts appointing Mr. Han Jingyuan as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, Mr. Zhu Jun as the Executive
Deputy General Manager and the Chief Operating Officer of the
Company and Mr. Shen Xiaoling as the Deputy General Manager
and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company are determined by
the remuneration committee of the Company with reference to
their respective qualification and experience, responsibilities to be
undertaken, and the prevailing market level of remuneration of similar
position.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the interest and short positions of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates of the Company in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (i) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules and adopted by the Company were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EENHENEEZRRE#)
SECURITIES (continued)
(i) Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company: () AN B IED AR IR (D By iz -
Interests in
underlying Percentage
shares of the
pursuant to Company’s
Interests in Shares share issued share
B options capital
Corporate Personal  BEERE 5AR2DF  Long/Short
Interest Interest  TEAREAMRY — DRTRA position
ARER B AR i) £ HEA #/ %R
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Notes 1)
BUERTE(ET) 1,317,502,849 - - 44.96% Long (§F)
- 2,800,000 28,500,000 1.07% Long (4F)
Mr. Zhu Jun
KERE - 2,400,000 7,800,000 0.35% Long (#F)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
BRI - 2,400,000 7,800,000 0.35% Long (#F)
Mr. Zhu Hao
icpired - - 7,800,000 0.27% Long (#F)
Mr. Han Li (appointed on 7 February 2012)
BNEER_T-—_F_A+BEZHE) - - 5,400,000 0.18% Long (#F)
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
Ondra Otradovec 7t £ - - 6,000,000 0.21% Long (4F)
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 7t 4 - - 2,000,000 0.07% Long ()
Mr. Liu Lei (re-designated on 7 February 2012)
AZEE(R_T——F-A+HRE) - 2,400,000 7,200,000 0.33% Long (§F)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho
RFETE - - 6,000,000 0.20% Long ()
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
G - - 6,600,000 0.23% Long ()
Mr. Wang Tianyi (appointed on 7 February 2012)
FREXE(RZS-ZF-AtHEZM) - - 2,000,000 0.07% Long (#F)

Mr. Zhou Guoping (appointed on 1 December 2012)
BEEEL(R_E——F+-F—HEZMT)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

M

Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company:

(continued)

Note:

At 31 December 2012, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially
owned 63.15% of the issued share capital of Wellbeing
Holdings Limited (“Wellbeing Holdings”) and held 16.09%
of the issued share capital of Wellbeing Holdings on trust
for the benefit of certain employees of the subsidiary of
the Company. Wellbeing Holdings beneficially owned
1,255,849,124 Shares, representing approximately 42.86%
of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Han also
beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital of
Chingford Holdings Limited (“Chingford Holdings”) which
beneficially owned 61,653,725 Shares, representing
approximately 2.10% of the issued Shares.

At 31 December 2012, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owns
2,800,000 Shares, representing approximately 0.1% of the
issued share capital of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Interest in the debentures of the Company

Mr. Han Jingyuan (Note 2)
BHUR A (BRE2)

Notes:

(1) US$550 million 8% senior notes due 2015 of the Company
was issued at 11 August 2010. (“2015 Senior Notes”). As
at 31 December 2012, the outstanding aggregate principle
amount of the 2015 Senior Notes was US$490,183,000.

(2) At 31 December 2012, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owned
100% of the issued share capital of Eastland International
Trading Limited, which beneficially owned US$4,500,000 of
the 2015 Senior Notes of the Company.

Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owned 63.15% of the issued
share capital of Wellbeing Holdings and held 16.09% of
the issued share capital of Wellbeing Holdings on trust
for the benefit of certain employees of the subsidiary of
the Company. Wellbeing Holdings beneficially owned
US$6,500,000 of the 2015 Senior Notes of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section of “Equity-settled
Share Option Scheme” below, at 31 December 2012, none
of the Directors, chief executives and their associates had any
interest and short positions in the Shares, underlying shares
and Senior Notes of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options were granted to eligible participants under a share
option scheme approved and adopted by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 17 May 2006 (“2006
Share Option Scheme”) and a share option scheme approved and
adopted by the shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 20 December 2010 (2010 Share Option Scheme”)
(together with the 2006 Share Option Scheme, collectively referred
to as (“Share Option Schemes”)) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who are regarded as
valuable human resources of the Group or who have contributed to
the growth and success of the Group with their performance and
other factors (e.g. their years of service with the Company and/or
work experience and/or knowledge in the industry etc.) to contribute
further to the Company.

The Share Option Schemes do not specify any minimum holding
period and/or performance targets as a condition for the exercise of
an option but subject to the rules of the Share Options Scheme the
Board is empowered with the authority to determine granting of an
option on a case by case basis taking into account of the relevant
factors as the Board in its sole discretion considers appropriate.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the Share Option
Schemes to each eligible participant within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or
by the Board, the Share Option Schemes shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years from their respective dates of adoption.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the
Directors at its absolute discretion and shall be no less than the
highest of: (a) the closing price of shares of the Company as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; (b) the average closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of grant.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The consideration payable on acceptance of all of the options under
the Share Option Schemes are HK$1.00.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Schemes upon exercising of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised is 309,016,000 Shares, representing
approximately 10.55% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2012.

On 30 March 2012, share options to subscribe for 75,370,000
Shares were granted to the grantees at an exercise price of HK$2.03
per Share under the 2010 Share Option Scheme which represents
the highest of (i) the closing price of HK$2.01 per Share as stated
in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of the share options, i.e. 30 March 2012 (the “Date of
Grant”); (i) the average closing price of HK$2.03 per Share as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of Share, which is HK$0.10. The share options are
exercisable by the grantees in the following manners: (1) up to 60%
of the share options granted to each grantee on or after 30 March
2012; (2) up to 80% of the share options granted to each grantee on
or after 30 March 2013; (3) all the remaining share options granted to
each grantee on or after 30 March 2014, and in each case, not later
than 19 December 2020.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 30 March 2012, share options to subscribe for 9,800,000
Shares were conditionally granted to Mr. Han Jingyuan subject to
the approval by the independent Shareholders at the special general
meeting at an exercise price of HK$2.03 per Share under the 2010
Share Option Scheme which represents the highest of (i) the closing
price of HK$2.01 per Share as stated in the daily quotations sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the share
options, i.e. 30 March 2012 (the “Date of Grant”); (ii) the average
closing price of HK$2.03 per Share as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and (jii) the nominal value
of Share, which is HK$0.10. The share options are exercisable by
Mr. Han Jingyuan in the following manners: (1) up to 60% of the
share options granted to Mr. Han Jingyuan on or after the date of the
approval of the grant of options by the independent Shareholders
at the special general meeting held on 30 May 2012 (the “Date of
Approval’); (2) up to 80% of the share options granted to Mr. Han
Jingyuan on or after one year from the Date of Approval; (3) all the
remaining share options granted to Mr. Han Jingyuan on or after two
years from the Date of Approval, and in each case, not later than
19 December 2020. The grant of the share options to subscribe
for 9,800,000 Shares under the 2010 Share Option Scheme to Mr.
Han Jingyuan was approved by the independent shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 30 May 2012.

Pursuant to the 2006 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2006
Share Option Scheme are 290,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 9.91% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2012. Eligible participants of the 2006 Share Option
Scheme includes all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive
and whether independent or not) and any employees (whether full-
time or part-time) of any company in the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest (whether
on an employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and
whether paid or unpaid). Details of the share options outstanding
under 2006 Share Option Scheme were as follows:

IR E B R R &le)

N E——HF=A=1+H BE_ZT—
TEERERTE - RITEESR2.03
BILMBHEEEERER TR RE
9,800,000 i H) & iz 1 - ZAFF B IR R
RIRRFRIAE EHER - FAI{EE
FIEE T A () RO R ER B B B (A
—E——F=ZA=+A8) ([BREBHH%E
MR EBERERABHKTEESR
2.01 77T (i) IR R B EEE T T B HiA]
FEE¥BEBIMNET A RERMR
B U B &A% 2.0378 7T + K (iii) B fn
WEEO010EIL  —EFHNESE - &%
LR BRRYCRIZ NS RITE (1)
BT BRBUR AR B IRE & % E60% A]
NBYRERN -_ZE——FRA=1+HE
THRREFR RS EHER L ERER
H([#UEBHR D32 81718 5 Q) B TR
RAEANBRERZES % INBHE
HEAE—F k2 &1 : QK TR
EERMARTBRETN B I0ER
BREFS 2 BITE  ERSBERTIE
BR-_ZE-_FTE+_-_Ft+hHBE - -BE-
T-TFERESSMBHUEEERD
9,800,000 A% % 17 2 i A% 1 1€ 18 37 AR 3R A4
T —FRA=ZTHBITZEREEH
K& EHbfE -

BEZTTNFHERETE - AQFA]
REERE  UERE-_STFER
TERTEIR /Y BT A P AR A A 1T (50 RF ] B2
1THIRS A7 #2281 A 290,500,000 A& BLfn » #9
MARARR-_E——F+=-A=+—8”
RIE BT ARQ.91% o T NFHEAIE
TENAEERSHREREARNARES
E(ERVTESIHFITEZRERS
BB ) MAEEE MK E AR IAER
ERIKEREIF AR RN T ELE
MEME S (EmE B ERE) (THREE
RIER - AN EEIHMBEERRES
RE) o ZETNFERETEI T RARIT
FH BRI T ¢
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DR E N ERES S 2
Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No.of the underlying
Closing price No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
per Share options during the lapsed during  outstanding  the options
immediately  outstanding  year ended the year ended at  inthe share
Exercisable Exercise before the at 31December 31 December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 1 January 2012 2012 2012 2012 the Company
REZE
K8z -%-zf R

i St tZf ZE-cf
“E-CF tZf =T-At TZR  BREEE
ZEERE  -B-R  CT-BL EEREAE/  Zt-R RHERLT
RTEAN  ROHEN  EERET BE/AWN ROEN  BANRE
R¥E  OOEHEE TEE  SRUTE BREHR NBREZR  BRERE  BREHE  HNEAM
HKS$ HKS$
BT BT

. Han Jingyuan 20092024 2008/2/24 13 124 2900000 - - 2800000 0.10%
ByRLE o

~
T

2019/2/23

20101126 20101220 3.00 300 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 0.20%

to

ey
==t

2016/5/16

Mr. Zhu Jun 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
FERE o

oy
*

2019/2/23

Mr. Shen Xieoling 20000204 2009/2/24 139 124 2600000 - - 2600000 0.09%
YRy o

S

2019/2/23

Mr. Zhu Hao 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 124 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
FERE o

E2

2019/2/23
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) RS E N ERER S 2
Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No. of *the underlying
Closing price No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
per Share options duringthe lapsed during  outstanding  the options

immediately  outstanding  yearended the year ended t inthe share

Exercisable Exercise before the at 31December 31December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 1 January 2012 2012 2012 2012 the Company
REZE
3 — 2 B

R et S e R
—E--E tZf  =t-AL TR ERERE
ZEBRE  -B-R  Zt-AL EEREAE/ =t-B R&HERLE
RTEAN KON EERET BE/AMN AOEN  BANRE
RF¥E  OAEHE TEE SRUTE FREZE NEREZE BREZE BREER  BOEM

HKS HKS$
B B

Mr, Han Li 2009/12/29 2010/3/29 284 211 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000 0.05%
Bhnk o
Y
201912128

Mr. Ondra Otradovec 2009/5/11 2009/5/11 150 149 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
Ondra Otradovec %4 fo
2
2019/5/10

Mr. Liu Lei 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 124 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
fEnk o
S
2019/2/23

Mr. Yu Tung Ho 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 124 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
G ey o
S
2019/2/23

Mr Wong Man 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 124 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
Chung, Francis to
G E
2019/2/23

Employees 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 124 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 0.04%
€8 fo
E
2019/2/23
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Employees

&

Other Participants
Hfppag

Total

Az
Aa

Note 1:

Exercisable

Date of grant period

B¥R  ATEHE

200912/29 2010/3/29

to

~
T

2019/12/28
2009/2/24 2009/2/24

to

~
T

2019/2/23

2009/5/11 2009/5/11
t

o

~
T

2019/610

Exercise
price

i
HK$
oy

284

Closing price
per Share
immediately
hefore the
date of grant

RERRE
RFEAN
SRUHE

HKS

AT

217

1.24

149

lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2012.

UR S E BT 82

Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No. of the underlying
No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
options during the lapsed during  outstanding  the options
outstanding  yearended the year ended at  inthe share
at 31December 31December 31 December capital of
1 January 2012 2012 2012 2012 the Company

REE

R — 2 R
R ZE-ZF t=F  Z%-Zf

g-zf t=F  =t-At t2A  BRERE
-f-B  Zt-AL FEREAE/ =t-B REERLAT
BN EEART HE/AMN O AUEN RANRE
FREHE NERERE BRERE BREXE  HOENM
140,050,000 - - 140,060,000 4.78%
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
4,100,000 - (1,500,000 2,600,000 0.09%

(Note 1)

( ff 7/)
174,250,000 - (1,500,000 172,750,000 5.90%

700,000 options were exercised and 800,000 options were
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2010 Share Option Scheme, the Company can issue
options so that the total number of Shares that may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme are 146,486,250 Shares, representing approximately 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2012.
Eligible participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme includes
all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive and whether
independent or not) and any employees (whether full-time or part-
time) of any company in the Group or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds an equity interest (whether on an employment
or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and whether paid
or unpaid) and any person considered by the Directors to have
contributions to any company in the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds an equity interest. Details of the share
options outstanding under 2010 Share Option Scheme were as

follows:
T
No. of
options
No.of exercised/
Closing options  cancelled/
price No. of granted lapsed during
per Share options during the the year
immediately  outstanding  year ended ended
Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at1January 31December 31 December
Date of grant period price  date of grant 2012 2012 2012
REZE
“E-CF
Bz =
“E--F =t-ALt
R=B-Z% t=A EER
PEERE  -A-R  =t-ELt  BRE/
RTEAN  AORN  EEART HH/XM0
BFR  AORER B SRUHE BREHE HBREHE  BREHE
HKS HKS$
B BR

Mr. Han Jingyuan 20110328 2011/04/27 3.08 3.08 9,800,000 - -

BHETE o

2

2021/03/27

IR E B R R &le)

RE-FT-TFEREE ARFH
REBRE  AERE_ZF—TFER
R BRI r P A B AR R JE 1T o A ) 3%

TR D 42805 146,486,250 BE A% 17 -

#)

ERRBTN -_BE——FE+-_A=+—8
MEEITRAS% - —T—TFEERET
EMEER2HEERREARNAZBES
(BERPTEFIERTEETRERES
B AEBEAEAKE QARSI AKE T
AN E AR AR SN T MEEN
TrES (EmEBEFRR) C(TmEER
A AOREERHMEERREER
FIRESRAYAEBMEAKNE T
REETRKEARIFERAERSHET
MERELEERNTWAL —T—F
FERETE THARITENBRESS
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Approximate

shareholding

percentage of

No. of the underlying

options  Shares for

outstanding  the options

at  inthe share

31 December capital of

2012 the Company
R-F-ZF

t2A  BRERE

Zt-A R&HERLR

ATEN  RENRE

EREZE  B0EH

9,800,000 0.33%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Date of grant

il

2012/03/30

Mr. Zhu Jun 2010/12/24

RERE

2012/03/30

Mr. Shen Xiaoling 201012/24
TRRTE

2012/03/30

Exercisable

period

TR

2012/05/30

to

ey
T

202012119

201012124

to

ES

202012119

2012/03/30

to

ey
*

20201219

2010/12/24

to

~
T

2020112119

2012/03/30

to

ES

20201219

Closing

price

per Share

immediately

Exercise  before the
price  date of grant
REERE
boil=EIL

%8 SRUTE
HKS$ HKS$
A7 7
203 201
3182 317
203 201
3182 317
203 201

No. of
options
outstanding
at 1 January
2012

RZ%--%
-B-H
RTER

FlEEE

2,600,000

2,600,000
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UR S E BT 82

No. of
options
granted

during the
year ended
31 December
2012

REZE
“g-CF
+ZR
=t+-At
FEART
mERESR

9,800,000

2,600,000

2,600,000

No. of
options
exercised/
cancelled/
lapsed during
the year
ended

31 December
2012

REE
g-CfF
=8
=t-Bk
EER
B/
i/ XAH
BHREHE

No. of
options
outstanding
at

31 December
2012

RZ%-Z%
+=8
=1-H
RTER
BHREHA

9,800,000

2,600,000

2,600,000

2,600,000

2,600,000

Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
Shares for
the options

in the share
capital of

the Company

BRERR
LN
RAKRE
CHER

0.33%

0.09%

0.09%

0.09%

0.09%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) RS ENERESTE =)

No. of Approximate

options shareholding

No.of  exercised/ percentage of

Closing options  cancelled/ No.of the underlying

price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for

per Share options during the theyear  outstanding the options

immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share

Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at1January 31December 31 December 31 December capital of

Date of grant period price date of grant 2012 2012 2012 2012 the Company
REE
“E-CF

E e
E-2F  =t-HI R-E-ZF
RZ8-ZF +2R EER T2 BRERE
BEERE -B-FB  Ct-BEL  BHE/ Zt-R BRHERAR
RYAAG  KOBEN  FERET HE/AMN KON RANRE

B¥R  UEHE FE SRUTE EREZE MERERE ERERE  BREHE  #E
HKS$ HKS$

B B

M, Znu Hao 2010142124 2010/12/24 3182 317 2600000 - - 2600000 009%
RERE fo

oy
T

202012119

2012/03/30  2012/03/30 203 201

to

ES

202012119

2,600,000 - 2,600,000 0.09%

Mr. Han Li 201012/24 2010/112/24 3.182 317 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 0.04%
Bk o

ey
*

20201219

2012/03/30  2012/03/30 203 201 - 2,600,000 - 2,600,000 0.09%

to

~
T

202012119

Mr. Ondra Otradovec 2010112/24 2010/12/24 3.182 317 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
Ondra Otradovec 5 fo

E2

20201219
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Closing
price
per Share

UR S E BT 82

No. of

options

No. of granted
options  during the

immediately  outstanding  year ended

Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at1January 31 December

Date of grant period price  date of grant 2012 2012

REZE

“g-Cf

RZ8--% =

2EBRE  -B-B  =t-HL

RTEAN  KORN  FERET

BFR  UOEER RE SRUTE BEREHE HBREHA

HKS$ HKS$
B BR

2012/03/30  2012/03/30 203 201 - 2,000,000
to
S
202011219

Mr. Vijay Kumar 20120330 2012/03/30 203 201 - 2,000,000
Bhatnagar to
Viiay Kumar Bhatnagar £ S
2020/12/19

Mr. Liu Lei 20101224 20101224 3.182 317 2,600,000 -
ek fo
S
2020112119

2012/03/30  2012/03/30 203 201 - 2,000,000
to
2
202011219

Mr. Yu Tung Ho 20101224 20101224 3.182 3.17 2,000,000 -
SEELE fo
S
2020112119
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No. of
options
exercised/
cancelled/
lapsed during
the year
ended

31 December
2012

REE
“g-CF
=8
=t-BL
EER
B/
i/ XAH
BHREHE

No. of
options
outstanding
at

31 December
2012

RZ%-2%
+=8
=t-A
RTER
BHREHA

2,000,000

2,000,000

2,600,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
Shares for
the options

in the share
capital of

the Company

BRERR
LU
RAKRE
CHER

0.07%

0.07%

0.09%

0.07%

0.07%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Mr Waong Man Chung, Francis
BRAE

Mr. Wang Tianyi
IRERE

Employees

&

Date of grant

R¥A

2012/03/30

201012724

2012/03/30

2012/03/30

201012724

Exercisable

period

TR

2012/03/30

to

oy
T

202012119

201012124

to

E2

202012119

2012/03/30

to

ey
=i

20201219

2012/03/30

to

~
T

202012119

201012724

to

E2

20201219

Closing

price

per Share

immediately

Exercise before the
price  date of grant
REERE
RTEAN

%8 SRUHE
HKS HKS$
Br Br
2.03 2.01
3182 37
203 201
2.03 201
3182 347

No. of
options
outstanding
at 1 January
2012

RZB-Z%
-A-H
RTEM

B 1

2,300,000

22,200,000

No. of
options
granted

during the
year ended
31 December
2012

FERRT
WRREHE

2,000,000

2,300,000

2,000,000
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No. of
options
exercised/
cancelled/
lapsed during
the year
ended

31 December
2012

REE
“E-CF
t=A
=t-Bt
EER
B/
i/ XAm
BREHE

AR A E B R R 8l

No. of
options
outstanding
at

31 December
2012

RZ%-Z%
+=8
=+-H
RTER
BREHE

2,000,000

2,300,000

2,300,000

2,000,000

22,200,000

Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
Shares for
the options

in the share
capital of

the Company

BRERR
RiaAAE
BAKRE
LR

0.07%

0.08%

0.08%

0.07%

0.76%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

RS E B RERT 82

No. of Approximate
options shareholding
No.of  exercised/ percentage of
Closing options  cancelled/ No.of the underlying
price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for
per Share options during the theyear  outstanding  the options
immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share
Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at1January 31December 31 December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 2012 2012 2012 2012 the Company
REE
g-CfF
i E =8
-2 B ROER-CF
W-F-ZF t=A EER t2A  BRERE
ZEBRE  -B-R  =t-AL  Bfif/  =t-B RHHERLR
REAN  AORN  FEART EB/XMN RGRN  RANRE
BFR  AOEER RE SRUTE HREHE HBREHE BREME BREHE  #AEon
HKS$ HKS$
Br BT
Employee 20110114 2011/01/14 320 315 800,000 - - 800,000 0.03%
[E8 fo
E
2021/01/13
Employees 20120330 2012/03/30 203 201 - 49,470,000 (1,000,000 48470,000 1.65%
[E8 fo
Y
2020/12/19
Other Participants 20101224 201012/24 3.182 3.17 5,200,000 - (2,164,000) 3,036,000 0.10%
Ay to (Note 2)
S (#2)
202011219
20120330  2012/03/30 203 201 - 3,200,000 (1,640,000 1,560,000 0.06%
to (Note 2)
3 (#2)
2020112119
Total
GH 55900000 85,170,000 (4,804,000 136,266,000 4.65%
Note 2: 4,804,000 options were lapsed during the year ended 31 o REE-—ZE——f#+—-A=+—HIt

December 2012. FEA - 4,804,000 BERHED LU -
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The value of the options granted during the year is RMB 52.6
million, based on the Black-Scholes valuation model. Please refer
to Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements for the details
of the significant inputs into the model. The Black-Scholes model is
developed to estimate the fair value of European share options. The
fair values calculated are inherently subjective and uncertain due to
the assumptions made and the limitations of the model used. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. Any change in variables so adopted may materially
affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

The accounting policy for equity-settled share option is stated in the
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or were the Company or any of
its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Company’s Directors, their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and the transactions as disclosed in
Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries have any contract of
significance with the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.

DUR A E B RERT 8l

BEMRNE - TR EEERTE
EW#&W%&%F@%AEM5%O*
T BRAEANEZHATEEFIS
FLRGEEMEmRAMNE22 - AR —
FFRATEEEL S A ERBONERED
NAEE - ERFEREZRFTAERERD
REI - FIstEN AR BETEETEBELET
BrREx BRECERES TEEHR

E’i

RO TRSEMES  PARAEENE
MEH A HBREAABELREEE

EAFE -
R E B ST ERRN A #
IIEHRERM T2 25

ESRBRODESFHNER

Br EXFTHBEEIN  REREARERE -
MEAMESFIREZENRBIRM
TN\FEHFRER A EREERQAK
R EAEA BB DK ES MERD
TR - AT ZEREN  MAAF
HEEfER AR H?WE@?&WE
NABERT S ERLHE - BUEAR AT

EN = E’Jﬁﬂﬁﬁ*fﬁﬁ‘%/\ﬁﬁm%
ZA] B EME A B ES R A Z SRR -

EXREW
Bk £ X AT EEE SN B B S SRR MY o
42FIRBERRHIN - 1R S E A

W]‘J%’&ﬁﬁ/\iwjfﬂiéﬁi$/&ﬁj§iﬁﬁﬁ%
RAEIMAEMERAL °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company,
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
are as follows:

Number of
Name shares held
=L FrRHEE
Wellbeing Holdings 1,255,849,124
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG 867,711,151
(“AM Holdings AG”) (Note 1) 509,780,740
([ AM Holdings AG ) (#&5E 1)
ING Bank N.V. (Note 2) (&7 2) 289,990,800
289,990,800
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft 220,934,306
(Note 3) (&7 3) 219,801,940
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FERR

N_E——F+-_A=+—8" ' RBERX
NAIRBES KB EHE 86 IEFFE
MR BT - FRAT(RRRE
FERFETHABRINRARR RN K
HEARMNEENERSIART

Percentage
of the Company’s
issued share Long/Short
capital Position
HERATE
BITREAESL %/ KE
42.86% Long (%F)
29.61% Long (&f)
17.40% Long (4F)
9.90% Long (%F)
9.90% Short (%)
7.54% Long (%F)
7.50% Short (%)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

M

At 31 December 2012, Mr. Lakshmi Niwas Mittal and Mrs.
Usha Mittal directly own 40.84% and indirectly own 40.84% of
the issued share capital of ArcelorMittal which indirectly holds
the entire equity interest in AM Holdings AG. AM Holdings
AG beneficially owns 867,711,151 Shares, representing
approximately 29.61% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

On 30 April 2008, AM Holdings AG entered into a put
option agreement with ING Bank N.V. and Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft, pursuant to which AM Holdings AG granted an
option to ING Bank N.V. and Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
over an aggregate of 509,780,740 Shares, representing
approximately 17.40% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

On 25 March 2011, AM Holdings AG entered into the extended
put option agreements with each of ING Bank N.V. and Deutsche
Bank Aktiengesellschaft by extending the aforesaid put option
agreements for a further term of 36 months from 30 April 2011.

On 30 April 2008, AM Holdings AG and ING Bank N.V. entered
into a put option agreement, pursuant to which AM Holdings AG
granted an option to ING Bank N.V. to sell 289,990,800 Shares.
As at 31 December 2012, ING Bank N.V. owned 289,990,800
Shares, representing approximately 9.90% of the issued shares
capital of the Company.

On 25 March 2011, AM Holdings AG entered into an extended put
option agreement with ING Bank N.V. by extending the aforesaid
put option agreement for a further term of 36 months from 30 April
2011.

FERR®

i

(1)

RZZT——F+=ZHF=+—H rLakshmi
Niwas Mittal %t & A Usha Mittal A X
H % ¥ B ArcelorMittal & 2 17 i 15
40.84% A [ ¥ % B ArcelorMittal £ 2
17R% 19 40.84% + T ArcelorMittal i £
#45 AM Holdings AG 2 2B AN RS
AM Holdings AG Bz 4H 867,711,151
AR QERRG + AL AR R B BIT]
17 EY 29.61% 125

mfgg)\imﬂ =-+H  AM Holdings
2 RIEING Bank N.V.flDeutsche
Bank Aktiengesellschaft 3] 7 — 32
SHEAREW % - B AM Holdings AGH
BI#%F ING Bank N.V. #l Deutsche Bank
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(3)  On 30 April 2008, AM Holdings AG and Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft entered into a put option agreement in
which AM Holdings AG granted an option to Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft to sell 219,789,940 Shares. As at 31 December
2012, Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft owned 220,934,306
Shares, representing approximately 7.54% of the issued shares
capital of the Company.

On 25 March 2011, AM Holdings AG entered into an extended
put option agreement with Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft by
extending the aforesaid put option agreement for a further term of
36 months from 30 April 2011.

Saved as disclosed above and in Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities sections, at 31 December 2012, no person,
other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, had
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had conducted a review of the
related party transactions of the Group as disclosed in the Note
42 to the consolidated financial statements of the Company and is
satisfied that all connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions have been properly reported and complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The following transactions between certain connected
parties (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been
entered into and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements
and independent shareholders’ approval, if necessary, had been
made and obtained by the Company in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

(1) Connected transaction

On 7 March 2012, Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Company
Limited (“Jinxi Limited”), entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Qianxi County Hui Yin Trading Company
Limited (“Hui Yin”) for the purchase of 20% equity interest of
Hebei Jinxi Section Steel Company Limited (“Jinxi Section
Steel”) from Hui Yin by Jinxi Limited at a consideration of RMB
93.64 million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

Continuing connected transactions

On 22 October 2010, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Longba Charging Company
Limited (“Longba Charging”), an associate of a substantial
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, for the purchase
of lime products and related products from Longba Charging
by Jinxi Limited for the two years ended 31 December 2012.
The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31
December 2012 was revised from RMB 140 million to RMB
218.84 million as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 14 October 2011. The total amount of the aforesaid
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB
121.56 million (excluding VAT).

On 17 November 2010, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Jinxin Mining Company Limited
(“dinxin Mining”), an associate of a substantial shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Company, for the purchase of iron powder
and related products from Jinxin Mining by Jinxi Limited for the
three years ended 31 December 2013. The annual cap for this
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB
1,268 million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction
incurred by Jinxi Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2012 was RMB 31.54 million (excluding VAT).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 10 March 2010, Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold Rolled Sheet
Company Limited (“dinxi Jinlan”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a framework
agreement with Foshan Jin Lan Import and Exports Company
Limited (“Jin Lan I&E”), a company controlled by the daughter
of Mr. Zhou Weijie who is a substantial shareholder of Jinxi
Jinlan for the sale of iron and steel products by Jinxi Jinlan
to Jin Lan I&E at a selling price not lower than the prevailing
market price for the period from 10 March 2010 to 31
December 2012. The annual cap for this transaction for the
year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB 120 million. The
total amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31
December 2012 was nil.

On 18 June 2010, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Foshan Jin Lan Group Company Limited
(“din Lan Group”), a connected person of the Group, for the
sale of steel products by Jinxi Limited to Jin Lan Group for a
period of approximately two years and seven months from
18 June 2010 to 31 December 2012. The annual cap for this
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB
70 million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction for the
year ended 31 December 2012 was nil.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 18 June 2010, Jinxi Section Steel entered into a framework
agreement with Jin Lan Group, a connected person of the
Group, for the sale of steel products by Jinxi Section Steel to
Jin Lan Group for a period of approximately two years and
seven months from 18 June 2010 to 31 December 2012.
The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31
December 2012 was RMB 100 million. The total amount of the
aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December 2012
was nil.

On 18 June 2010, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Han’erzhuang Village Wang
Zhihong Iron Ore Mill (“Qianxi Iron Ore Mill”), a connected
person of the Group, in which Jinxi Limited would purchase
iron powder from Qianxi Iron Ore Mill at prevailing market
prices for a period of approximately two years and seven
months from 18 June 2010 to 31 December 2012. The annual
cap for this transaction for the year ended 31 December
2012 was RMB 140 million. The total amount of the aforesaid
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB
10.79 million (excluding VAT).

On 22 January 2011, Jinxi Limited entered into the iron and
steel framework agreement with Luxembourg Steel (Sichuan)
Company Limited (“Luxembourg Steel”), an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of ArcelorMittal, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, in which Jinxi Limited would sell steel products
to Luxembourg Steel at prevailing market prices for a period
of approximately three years from 22 January 2011 to 31
December 2013. The annual cap for this transaction for the
year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB 80 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31
December 2012 was RMB 0.23 million (excluding VAT).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 22 January 2011, Jinxi Section Steel entered into the
Iron and Steel Framework Agreement with Luxembourg
Steel, in which Jinxi Section Steel would sell steel products
to Luxembourg Steel at prevailing market prices for a period
of approximately three years from 22 January 2011 to 31
December 2013. The annual cap for this transaction for the
year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB 80 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31
December 2012 was RMB 1.91 million (excluding VAT).

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have
been reviewed by Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company. The Independent Non-executive Directors
confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties; (c) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued its letter containing his findings and
unqgualified conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 79 to 82 of the
Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the best knowledge of the Board, there was 25% or more
of the listed issued share capital of the Company being held in public
hands as at 8 April 2013, being the latest practicable date prior to
printing of this report.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Apart from the repurchase of a total of principal amount of
US$87,240,000 and US$59,817,000 of the 2017 Senior Notes
and the 2015 Senior Notes respectively, neither the Company, nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers retired and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

Han Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report & kR &

_
pwc

To the Shareholders of China Oriental Group Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 243,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
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T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

Haf : +852 2289 8888 » fHH : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

BHfEERER

(Allamounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEINARE [ARY ) TREN) R—T——F+t=HA=tH

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Leasehold land and land use rights
Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties
Intangible assets
Investment in an associate

Available-for-sale financial assets

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Loan receivable

Deferred income tax assets

Current assets

Properties under development

and held for sale
Inventories
Trade receivables
Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Prepaid current income tax
Loan receivables
Notes receivable —

bank acceptance notes
Restricted bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Ordinary shares
Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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Note
FaE

18
19
28

14
16
17

18
42(c)

19

17
20
20

21
21
22

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
133,723 137,128
9,039,970 8,395,398
15,178 15,984
8,629 8,530
= 12,697
157,280 167,976
576,155 =
456,058 539,647
300,000 300,000
201,090 192,694
10,888,083 9,770,054
388,013 368,857
3,192,558 4,615,903
547,758 396,181
1,787,922 2,006,031
90,107 65,831
86,307 =
79,700 20,000
5,702,736 3,830,658
1,109,794 891,396
879,005 965,082
13,863,900 13,159,939
24,751,983 22,929,993
311,772 311,715
2,191,087 2,190,291
1,493,880 1,370,287
5,045,030 4,991,327
9,041,769 8,863,620
513,247 647,730
9,555,016 9,511,350




Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

EfEEEER @

(Al amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2012

(BREERIAI - FTESEIUARE([ARE )T REMN) R=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—H
Note 2012 2011
Hisr —E——F —ZT——F
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FREBEMS
Borrowings (FETI 25 4,501,105 5,360,962
Other long-term payables H bR EAER R 26 26,129 133,517
Deferred revenue PRIEYA 27 47,293 38,020
Amounts due to related parties JFE < A E 77 78 42(c) 89,263 17,304
4,663,790 5,549,803
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FENE SRR 23 3,678,585 2,106,100
Accruals, advances and TBREA « TARGUE
other current liabilities REMTZEHEE 24 2,773,751 3,087,962
Amounts due to related parties JFE S A E 75 78 42(c) 54,046 101,147
Current income tax liabilities EHIFMEHREE 53,314 193,072
Other long-term payables — HithRHEIERN
current portion —mE LD 26 115,007 223,546
Borrowings (FETI 25 3,853,899 2,152,422
Dividends payable FERTRR B 4,575 4,591
10,533,177 7,868,840
Total liabilities HBERE 15,196,967 13,418,643
Total equity and liabilities EZREEEs 24,751,983 22,929,993
Net current assets REEETEE 3,330,723 5,291,099
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 14,218,806 15,061,153
Han Jingyuan Shen Xiaoling
BEUR RS
Chairman Director
ES EF

The notes on pages 95 to 243 are an integral part of these financial FO5E 243 H MYtk AR FS R 3k By FX 42 — =

statements. 5o
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Company Balance Sheet

NREERER

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2012

(BABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Loans to subsidiaries
Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets
Trade receivables
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Restricted bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Accumulated losses

Total equity

R-Z—=—F+=A=+—H

Note
F=E
BE
FRBEE
W% - BB K& 7
WEARHRE 10(a)
MIEB A RIER 10(b)
AL ESmEE 15
mEEE
R E SRR 17
TENFE - Be Rk
EL A R U AR 5K 18
PRSI RITAEER 20
Re RESEEY 20
REE
R
FEBRAAT
EREEE
[N 21
&5 E 21
HAb 22
G
EmEE

88 China Oriental Group Company Limited 1[5 3 7 £ Bl # B 45 i 2 7]

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—H
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
660 840
589,566 550,046
4,521,138 4,630,942
47,675 58,371
5,159,039 5,240,199
2,736,279 3,310,668
2,560 85,778
201,685 113,296
39,866 172,641
2,980,390 3,682,383
8,139,429 8,922,582
311,772 311,715
2,191,087 2,190,291
376,531 315,001
(578,460) (429,500)
2,300,930 2,387,507




LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Accruals and other current liabilities
Borrowings
Dividends payable

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Han Jingyuan
BHE

Chairman

£

The notes on pages 95 to 243 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Company Balance Sheet (continued)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
((RREHEAN  FEREANARETTREML)

AERIEEEBR#®)

As at 31 December 2012
RZE—=F+=-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
Note 2012 2011
Hisr —E——F —ZT——F
aE
FRBEMS
e o5 4,376,105 5,295,962
REEE
T E SRR 23 160,974 58,854
TEREBEANEMRHEE 24 123,257 137,524
EE 25 1,178,028 1,042,587
FERR B 135 148
1,462,394 1,239,113
HEE 5,838,499 6,535,075
EnRkaEaes 8,139,429 8,922,582
REEEFHE 1,517,996 2,443,270
HEERASAE 6,677,035 7,683,469
Shen Xiaoling
TREES
Director
EFE

e

SEO5E243 A M E AU HRERNERE B
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Consolidated Income Statement
SRR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t1 HLFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

Note 2012 2011
FiteE =F-=F F—F
Revenue g A 5 36,122,358 38,596,633
Cost of sales SHES AR 31 (34,958,840)  (35,995,031)
Gross profit EF 1,163,518 2,601,602
Other income =N 30 35,958 26,718
Distribution costs Vaki=|D N 31 (97,583) (98,338)
Administrative expenses 1THE 31 (525,680) (390,321)
Other expenses Hb & A 31 (47,615) (35,643)
Other gains/(losses) — net Hihlas,/ (E18) — /55 29 164,149 (80,444)
Operating profit REORA 692,747 2,023,574
Finance income TSI A 58 145,179 96,898
Finance costs BATE A 33 (499,173) (190,800)
Finance costs — net WA ZS — FEE (353,994) (93,902)
Share of result of an associate R )i NI e 11 (12,697) 2,140
Profit before income tax B Fr B 5% Al e A 326,056 1,931,812
Income tax expense FiEfER 34 (179,579) (514,023)
Profit for the year FEERA 146,477 1,417,789
Profit attributable to: AR
Owners of the Company NN ERESIEEE 126,062 1,241,893
Non-controlling interests FEfR I MR 20,415 175,896
146,477 1,417,789
Earnings per share for profit FAXQREREEE
attributable to owners of FEAE R R B = AR U 2
the Company during the year
(expressed in RMB per share) (B ARYEIT)
— Basic earnings per share —FRERK S 37 AR¥0.04T AR¥0.427T
— Diluted earnings per share — FiEmER 37  AR®¥0.047T ARKO0427T

The notes on pages 95 to 243 are an integral part of these financial FO5E 243 B MM 5T AR TS MR BB — 7B

I\ o

statements. 5o

Dividends KA 38 - 241,351
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BfEaRER

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) BE- T —F+t-A=T—"HLEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

Note 2012 2011
DR e e
Profit for the year FERA 146,477 1,417,789
Other comprehensive income: HiiRE W ¢
Fair value (losses)/gains on AfHESREERN
available-for-sale financial assets NREE(EE) M 15 (10,696) 6,804
Total comprehensive FEHEWEEE
income for the year 135,781 1,424,593
Attributable to: BB :
Owners of the Company RARESFEE 115,366 1,248,697
Non-controlling interests JEF S (RS 20,415 175,896
135,781 1,424,593

The notes on pages 95 to 243 are an integral part of these financial FEO5E 243 E MM ek A SRR EERE — &

statements. o e

N
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AOtERSER

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FrE £ AARE T T AEA)

(=B

Balance at 1 January 2011

Comprehensive income
Proft for the year

Other comprehensive income
Fair value gains on available-
for-sale financial assets

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
Employee share options scheme:
- Value of employee services

Proft appropriation to
statutory reserves
Establishment of a subsioliary
Disposal of a subsidlary
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Capital injection
Final dividends of the Company
relating to year 2010
Interim dlividends of the Gompany
refating to six months
ended 30 June 2011

Dividends to non-controlling interests

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December
2011

R-2--F-A-RNER

Faki
ERRR

Afptraki
Ui SHAE
WA EENE

Rakaa

RERRRENRS
[ERERE
- RRRHNEE
EERRIEA
BHAE

i
R

FATBEE—%
AR HRIEADR
£48

e ]

REEERENRASH

RZB--%
tZR=T-RES

Note

ftiE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
E-F——Ft+-A=1t—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAFERIAERE

Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controling Total
captal  premum  reserves  eamings Total  interests equity
SR
Bx BRORE AtdE ke it B ERAd
31,76 2190291 1278429 4289327 8069762 450,012 8,519,774
= = - 1241898 1241893 175896 1,417,789
- - 6,804 - 6,804 - 6,804
- - 6,804 1241893 1,248697  1758% 1424593
= - 53,262 - 53262 - 53,262
- - 31792 (31,79 - - -
- - - - - 49,000 49,000
- = = = - (48574 (48574
- - - - - 53,063 53,063
- - - - - 13,882 13,882
- - - (266,750)  (266,750) - (266,750)
- - - (41361 (241351) - (41.351)
- - - - - (45539 (45539
- - 85054 (639893 (454839 21,82  (433017)
311715 2190291 1370287 499,327 8863620 647,730 9,511,350

92 China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5y £ [ 7l 45 B A 7]



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
B EREEBR@

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) BE- T —F+t-A=T—"HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADARREREEEN
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
371

itz R REEE HftRE Er4E @t e  ERAT
Balance at 1 January 2012 RZ8-ZE-B-ANER 311,715 2,190,201 1,370,287 4,991,327 8863620 647,730 9,511,350
Comprehensive income GabE
Proft for the year EREH - - - 126062 126,062 20415 146,477
Other comprehensive income Hiti s
Fair value losses on available- MEHESREE
for-sale financial assets ML EEEE - - (10,69%) - (10,69) - (10,69)
Total comprehensive income BAkEA = - (10,696) 126,062 115,366 20415 135,781
Transactions with owners RERHAENRS
Employee share options scheme: BB EIRE 2 :
- Proceeds from shares issued ~EORAmETE 57 796 - - 853 - 853
- Viaue of employee services -EERENER - - 1225 - T2 - 122
Profit appropriation to statutory AT R fELA
esenves BHNE 2 - - 7235  (72,359) - - -
Changes in ownership interests ERRERHIERERT
in a subsidfary without FERHBAA
change of control WFREER 10/8) - - (10,208) - (10205  (83,348) (93,649
Dividends to non-controling BFEEIEERY
interests RE - - - - - (75500  (71,550)
Total transactions with owners  EEREFZENRZ A% 57 79 134280 (72359) 62783 (154808  (92,115)
Balance at 31 December R-B--&
2012 TZA=t-AlEs 311,772 2,191,087 1,493,880 5045030 9,041,769 513247 9,555,016

The notes on pages 95 to 243 are an integral part of these financial F o5 243 B MYk AR FS i 3k By BX A2 — =
statements. 5 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEERER

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t1 HLFE

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

Note 2012 2011
izt —2--f —E——Ff
Cash flows from operating activities REKEITENEESRE
Cash generated from operations EERRENHE 39 637,613 908,224
Interest received BIFHIE 84,395 96,784
Interest paid BFE (562,742) (469,737
Income tax paid EARFEH (414,040 (597,818)
Net cash used in operating activities A& BB S 558 (254,774) (62,547)
Cash flows from investing activities RERETEHNEERE
Changes in ownership interests ETREEFIENERT
in a subsidiary without change of control EERNBRARNAREREZ 10 (93,643) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired ~ YBEKHIB AR - HBRFEEREE - 22,294
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BEIEE (474,265) (984,655)
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HERA L BETEEHES
through profit or loss FABRRNEREE = 131
Proceeds from sales of property, HEYVE  MEME
plant and equipment BT 508 39 195 777
Investment income from loan receivables RAEKRE TR ERR 42,679 20,638
Increase in loan receivables FEUE TN (60,000) (300,000)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary REFEHENRBAR
in previous year FrS5UR 40,000 -
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets Al HE SR EE - (45,000)
(Increase)/decrease in amount due R 7 AR (38 n) R
from related parties (13,720) 110,000
Net cash used in investing activities KREESMFENR S F5E (558,754) (1,175,815
Cash flows from financing activities REBEZTHNELSRE
Proceeds from borrowings EECIREENE] 7,849,055 7,643,220
Repayment of borrowings B EN (6,923,610) (6,301,335)
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders AIAR AR S5 27 % 8 (13) (506,905)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests MBI R R T N 2 B (71,550) (45,539)
Capital injection by non-controling interests JEEHI R E - 62,882
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares ETERRATERIE 853 =
Cash paid relating to sales and FHEREERSE
leaseback transaction RS (261,243) (251,280)
Increase in amounts due to related parties JEE 1~ BB EsE 1 ZXIE AL A0 34,555 =
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank B AREIRITIERAERN
balances pledged as security for XRRBISRIT R
current bank borrowings b,/ () 100,407 (585,925)
Net cash generated from financing activities BEEHELHNESFE 728,454 15,118
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents e MRS E B FE (85,074) (1,223,244)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NS B R A ) B 2 (1,003) (34,919
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year FUREREEEEY 965,082 2,223,245
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year FRELRIAESZEY 20 879,005 965,082

The notes on pages 95 to 243 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

N

4 o

94 China Oriental Group Company Limited [ s Jj 45 B3 B A7 L 43 7

FIBE243E MM AV IERRAEE—F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) BE- T —F+t-A=T—"HLEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 November 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda as a result of a group reorganisation.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

Following the completion of the global offering, the Company’s
shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 2 March 2004.

The Company together with its subsidiaries are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the Group. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture and sales of iron and steel
products and real estate business. The Group has
manufacturing plants in Hebei Province and Guangdong
Province of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
sells mainly to customers located in the PRC. The Group
engages in real estate business in the PRC.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of RMB, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 21 March
2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

—REHR

FERSEEZEBERAR(AR
ADR-_ZFZF=F+—A=HAKENK
—HEEEARREERE NN
FRRFEARETMAILRER R
BEREERA -

AR B R = BR Hb i A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda °

RERBETKE  ARFBROHR =
TENF=A _REETSHAR SN
BRARF LM -

RRA R EMBR BT XA R
S8 AEEE2UELENHEN
HEMUREWERR - REBEETS
FEARKME(HE DS RER
ERELEERSE - YERHEURF
BREFETHE - ARERTEL
SRMEFRS

BRBEBIN - RAGFHBEREAA
RETIT25 - AEHMBEHRREL
HEFER(EEFRDR-_FT—=F=
A= +—BH#ETZ -

ERESHBRREE

REARE I BRRFANTIESS
BRER T - BRRBEAIN - HF
BEREMEIINMEFERNEHE
% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4,

96 China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5y £ [l 7%l 45 B A 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2.

EESHBERE(E)
2.1 MREEAE

AEENA HPBHRE IR
BREGERE((FESE
R BEMOBEMBERESE
ATEEMBREEL D&/
o AHUMBHRREKBES
A ERE - Y EEE T A
HHESREEFLERT -

RETETEMBRELEAN
BHMBBRFTEERE T
REFET - ENREEHERE
EERAAEESABEBES
TTEEEHIE - % = & e I i
EREEMENERE PR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) BE- T —F+t-A=T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEGE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 EHBERBEENE L
(a) New and amended standard adopted by (@) AEBEE HHHFH
the Group HE IEECHP-3:
New and amended standards, and BERBEZZE—ZF
interpretations mandatory for the first time —A—BRBZY
for the financial year beginning 1 January BEE T RaHE
2012 but not currently relevant or do not MR FTE] R EAS AT
have material impact to the Group (although MERRRE
they may affect the accounting for future BATEAS B mEE
transactions and events): B AEEESEAXN
T2 (BEAHEE
TERENRH K
FIH2EFRER) ¢
e Amendment to HKFRS 7, ‘Financial o a8 B R
instruments: Disclosures’, on transfer HAER BT
of financial assets. EORCICI RN
BT A ®
Bl - B@E=
BB EEE o
e Amendment to HKFRS 1, ‘First time o BEMBHRE
adoption’, on hyperinflation and fixed ZE B 55157 &9
dates. EI =N
"Ml B
BB ERIR
NEFERE -
o Amendment to HKAS 12, ‘Income o & B 2 i &
taxes’, on deferred tax. Bl 51258 &9
N e
Wl BHAE
FERTIE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

New standard and interpretation not yet
adopted

A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2012, and
have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of
these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements
of the group, except the following set out
below:

° Amendment to HKAS 1,
statement presentation’ regarding

‘Financial

other comprehensive income. The
main change resulting from these
amendments is a requirement for
entities to group items presented in
‘other comprehensive income’ (OCI)
on the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or
loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments). The amendments do not
address which items are presented in
OCl.

98 China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5y £ [l 7 lgt 45 B A 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) BE- T —F+t-A=T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures AN B BERBRENE L
(continued) (&)
(b) New standard and interpretation not yet (b) i RBRAN 2 HT AT &
adopted (continued) AIRRE(E)

e HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’, s BAMBRE
aims to improve consistency and 2 A 135
reduce complexity by providing [ AR EER
a precise definition of fair value BElEREAEA
and a single source of fair value RHEAREE
measurement and disclosure ZIGHEE R K
requirements for use across HKFRSs. AR BEFE
The requirements, which are largely Al /95
aligned between HKFRSs and US NEBEEM R
GAAP, do not extend the use of fair ERAERZ
value accounting but provide guidance KRR EME
on how it should be applied where its T — B RO
use is already required or permitted by DN - B
other standards within HKFRSs or US B RS L
GAAP. AR EB AR

ST RAIZ %
ERERBE
TR
AR BES:
2B MR
HREFERE
BB BB ®

HAEAHXE
NREERA
Az E At 2R
MERMERTZ
1B T R anfa]
BRI -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b) New standard and interpretation not yet
adopted (continued)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’,
addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.
HKFRS 9 was issued in November
2009 and October 2010. It replaces
the parts of HKFRS 39 that relate to
the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. HKFRS
9 requires financial assets to be
classified into two measurement
categories: those measured as at
fair value and those measured at
amortised cost. The determination
is made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing
its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of
the instrument. For financial liabilities,
the standard retains most of the HKAS
39 requirements. The main change
is that, in cases where the fair value
option is taken for financial liabilities,
the part of a fair value change due to
an entity’s own credit risk is recorded
in other comprehensive income rather
than the income statement, unless
this creates an accounting mismatch.
The group is yet to assess HKFRS
9’s full impact and intends to adopt
HKFRS 9 no later than the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January
2015. The Group will also consider
the impact of the remaining phases
of HKFRS 9 when completed by the
Board.

100 China Oriental Group Company Limited 1 [ 3 7 £ Bl B 45 i 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) BE- T —F+t-A=T—"HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b) New standard and interpretation not yet

adopted (continued)

HKFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial
statements’, builds on existing
principles by identifying the concept
of control as the determining factor in
whether an entity should be included
within the consolidated financial
statements of the parent company.
The standard provides additional
guidance to assist in the determination
of control where this is difficult to
assess. The group is yet to assess
HKFRS 10’s full impact and intends
to adopt HKFRS 10 no later than the
accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

BRARAN  ESRONARETTAEN) BE-T—F+_HA=1 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEESHHEREE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEEE(EF)

A1 B BERBEENE b

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

other entities’, includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of interests
in other entities, including joint
arrangements, associates, special
purpose vehicles and other off balance
sheet vehicles. The group is yet to
assess HKFRS 12’s full impact and
intends to adopt HKFRS 12 no later
than the accounting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2013.

There are no other HKFRSs or
HK(IFRIC) interpretations that are not
yet effective that would be expected to
have a material impact on the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BBEERIN - FIELELUUARET TABN) B2 -2 —F+=-A=1+—HIEE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries 22 MBRE]

2.2.1 Consolidation 221 HRERE

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more
than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern
the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-
facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances
where it does not have more than 50% of the
voting power but is able to govern the financial and
operating policies by virtue of de-facto control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t1 HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEESHHEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MWEBRR(E)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 221 #EKRAE (&)
Inter-company transactions, balances, income SERAARIENRS &
and expenses on transactions between group BAEIRIMNES K
companies are eliminated. Profits and losses REHTAHEE - RNEE
resulting from inter-company transactions that ERZABIRRSEE
are recognised in assets are also eliminated. i M| 2 T8 I T LA% 8 o
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been B AR EERER
changed where necessary to ensure consistency wEENRE - DAERE
with the policies adopted by the Group. IR B ANHBR — 3K o
(@  Business combinations @ EBast

The Group applies the acquisition method AN & B WA
to account for business combinations. The MEBES AR
consideration transferred for the acquisition U B% B /B A B /Y B
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the EREAMEZES
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to = HHWE SR
the former owners of the acquiree and the BB EMEE
equity interests issued by the Group. The BENMANEE R
consideration transferred includes the fair TRENRARE
value of any asset or liability resulting from B #ERELHE
a contingent consideration arrangement. SRRELHELE
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and MEMEEREE
contingent liabilities assumed in a business WARBE RE
combination are measured initially at their A G T U BE &Y
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group Al &% Bl & = & P
recognises any non-controlling interest in ENBEBRIAE
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition & ¥R E R
basis, either at fair value or at the non- HARBEEZ-
controlling interest’s proportionate share N E R EE W E
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s HE DLARBE
identifiable net assets. S ¥R IF 12 ) 15

TG 4% W B8 75 AT 2%

RE EFE A

BRREWET <

(ERCIE SRl 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEIRARBTTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

Business combinations (continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

HE-T—

For the year ended 31 December 2012
—F+ZA=T—BILFE

2. ERENBEBEE)

22 MEBRA(E)

221 HRERE (&)

(@)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t1 HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEESHHEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MBRA(E)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 221 ZERE (&)

() Changes in ownership interests in (b)) PEBRKEEHE
subsidiaries without change of control Al )= NGIE g
Transactions with non-controlling interests TS BUR A P i
that do not result in loss of control are 2 FE T I R A R
accounted for as equity transactions — that 2 NBRSIVERE 2= &2
is, as transactions with the owners in their 5 —BILAE & B
capacity as owners. The difference between =B EZHhRE
fair value of any consideration paid and the BaFEEETR
relevant share acquired of the carrying value Z ERENRKE
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded NIRRTt g
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to B 78 & (5 B /8 2 &)
non-controlling interests are also recorded in EEFEEAEBEZ
equity. ZHEYEREZR o [

FEEHMERLEE
Z BE I ErERR o

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries ) HEHRBAR
When the Group ceases to have control, INCSYE S v
any retained interest in the entity is re- B REBZEM
measured to its fair value at the date when REERERERE
control is lost, with the change in carrying SIEERZAAE
amount recognised in profit or loss. The BEF=E B
fair value is the initial carrying amount for FHEZFHTER
the purposes of subsequently accounting R EEZ AR
for the retained interest as an associate, TIEEE & R A - A
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, Bih¥ciemiEE
any amounts previously recognised in ZREBHER EAQ
other comprehensive income in respect AEEAVGRERA
of that entity are accounted for as if the B tboh AR
group had directly disposed of the related H 476 W e HERR
assets or liabilities. This may mean that HZEREH T
amounts previously recognised in other MEBREBUOARE
comprehensive income are reclassified to EEZELHEEH
profit or loss. BEXRABEZHA

ABR o UL AT B2 B AR
ERIE A AR & I
mERZEEEN

K =N
DR °
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B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) BE- T —F+t-A=T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 WEBRF(E)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements 2.2.2 B B WK

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the

R B AR 2 ERKA
HBRBEARR - FNATRE
RIREBERBIHA - &N
RARR B UK I B
EREE  GtEWEBRR

AR B A R IR & FT 1S AX
ERRHAME AR &R
B mReRE  REEBT

total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in PFHERPNERESR
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying B ISR R IR E
amount of the investment in the separate financial HAEE(BEEE) ZE

statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill,
if any, identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

2.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t1 HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EREMBERBE(E)

2.3 Associates (continued) 2.3 FERR](E)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN ESEINARBTIRE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief

operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-

maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the management committee (Note

5(b)) that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

B Ot I IRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
AE-T-—FtzA=t-HLEE

BE—=

2. ERENBEBEE)

2.4

2.5

Annual Report 2012 —%— 44k 109

W
puls;
o S|
kb
=l
o

BENRcRETANAEEE

BERRERRENABRSE
TR B FHRRER
8 (FfEsb)) 2EBEER

HEaHEERAL AR
DEPEVRIR

Z
=
RE -

ZEED

SNEIRE
(@) MEERZIIEH

K’élenmﬂ')\ﬁﬂx#&
RWIEE IRAERBEE
FIEmEE ?\%/Eiiiiﬂ’\]%-\
B(heeEHE ) aT & -
BT BERERANAARE
(TAR® ) (RAFIHILY
EEBRASENZESE
B 23 -
b) RER#ER
HNER G 1R 5 AR ER
HEFTEXSEERZ
BEFTELANEEE - &k
gz NIEEERE g
ReneEHRELEGE
BERREEBRREIN - 4
B ERSEEME S
K ASNE R BB AL ) &
MEEEBFERFENE
IR E T A B INE Y S
LEERE AR’

7
s ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within “finance cost’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘other
gains/(losses) — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) BE- T —F+t-A=T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

@iy all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOt IR

(Allamounts in BMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BABEAN B SEINARE T T REN)

2.

BE-_T—H£+"HA=1 HULFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings,
machinery, furniture and fixtures, vehicles, leasehold
improvements and finance leased machinery are stated
at historical cost less depreciation and impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Estimated useful life

Buildings 10-20 years
Machinery 5-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Vehicles 4-10 years
Leasehold improvements 2-5 years
Finance leased machinery 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
1o its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESEIRARBTTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other gains/(losses) — net’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at historical cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes the costs of construction and acquisition. No
provision for depreciation is made on CIP until such time
as the relevant assets are completed and available for
intended use. When the assets concerned are ready for
their intended use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned.
There is no individual land ownership right. The Group
acquired the right to use certain land. The premiums
paid for such right and the improvements related to the
land are treated as prepayment for operating lease and
recorded as leasehold land and land use rights, which
are amortised over the lease periods using the straight-
line method.

Investment property

The property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the entities in the Group, is classified as investment

property.

Investment property is measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs. After
initial recognition, investment property is carried at
depreciated cost less accumulated impairment.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
 E—E——F+t-A=t—HIFE

2. ERENBEBEE)

2.6

2.7

2.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Investment property (continued)

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives of 20 years.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
the transfer does not change the carrying amount of the
property transferred, nor does it change the cost of that
property for measurement or disclosure purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and represents
the excess of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s interest in net fair value of the
net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Computer software costs recognised as assets
are amortised using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives of 3 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

2.

FrE £RIGAARE T T REA)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.1 Classification (continued)

(@)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘loan receivables’, ‘trade receivables’, ‘notes
receivable — bank acceptance notes’, ‘other
receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’
in the balance sheet (Notes 2.15 and 2.16
respectively).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in BMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEESHHEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued) 211 &MEE (&)
2.11.2Recognition and measurement 2112 AR E

Regular way purchases and sales of financial CREEZ —MEBERR

assets are recognised on the trade-date — the SH(BIAREEAZEEE
date on which the Group commits to purchase or FHEEEER)HER -
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised ﬁLb_AI;‘HﬁZ\\fE BE=
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial EEHF ABERRNE
assets not carried at fair value through profit or rﬁé?&é‘%}]%?ﬁi’&ﬁ{ﬁ
loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the BEMRZHAFER - &/
rights to receive cash flows from the investments BEDREEERRERN
have expired or have been transferred and the WER[E Mk EEaE - mAE
Group has transferred substantially all risks and EEE LEBAREN—
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial YA & O 3 - 5 E 8D
assets are subsequently carried at fair value. fRIETER o AT E S
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried BEHEBRAABEA
at amortised cost using the effective interest B - BER R EMER R %
method. Available-for-sale assets of the Group VAT BRI =R B B SH A
include investments in equity instruments that do RABR o NEE Z AT
not have a quoted market price in an active market EEEBRELENERM
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, ZHMSREREARE
which are measured at cost less provision for BEAASTENRAT
impairment, if any. BIRE - B AR

B84 (0F) 58

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non- AEHEEE RIEFEE R
monetary securities classified as available for sale FNAREBEEZES  TH
are recognised in other comprehensive income. AR & Wias  iERR o
When securities classified as available for sale i AT S 3B 5 S 50
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value B - AR EEERE R5T
adjustments recognised in equity are included in NABEAETTAEGHH
the consolidated income statement as ‘gains and BRIIEEBHFRERE
losses from investment securities’. =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part
of other income. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(@)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EREMBERBE(E)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 212 SEEEREE)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued) (a) RBHEREIRZEEE)

HENRBEAIEEBNUT
BE : EHAR—AER
AERRE AR BEE -
AR B A
K B AT RE TR A A
ERFIETHONKE
M UREBABEIE
BN ARt ARBEERE
BRFTENRD - flank
TR B o 18 AR SR AR R
BB ©

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

L B R N B U B SRR il T
5 BRERIEEER
HEEZTREERER
MZRBER 2 BEt R KR

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding

future credit losses that have not been incurred) MRE(TNBEE®ARESE
discounted at the financial asset's original effective ZARKREEESE)BANE

HitE - BEREMEST
LABIRL - MEBREEER
BHABRIER  WERX
BFBAEETE - AIGtE
ERER R R ET;
RESHEBEZRITER
M=x- AERERFEL - K
S BN EF ERER A R
AR BR MG ERKE

interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If a loan
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument's fair value using an observable market

price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is also evidence that the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and the net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-

in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing

costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in

the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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FrE £RIGAARE T T REA)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

214

2.15

Properties under development and held for sale

Properties under development and held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Development cost of properties and held for sale
comprises cost of land use rights, construction costs
and borrowing costs incurred during the construction
period. Upon completion, the properties are transferred
to completed properties held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion.

Properties under development and held for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction
period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating cycle.

Trade, notes and other receivables

Trade and notes receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade, notes and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade, notes and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16

217

2.18

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at
call with banks.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(FRREEAIN - PIE ©FAUARE T T REA)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax
liabilities where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BBEERI - FIELELOUARET TABN) BE-_E——F+-A=1+—HIEE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 221 EEANELEFTSH: (&)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
1o join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”). Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its
Hong Kong employees make monthly contributions to
the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ earmings as
defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation,
subject to a cap per person per month and any excess
contributions are voluntary.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group has arranged for its PRC employees to join a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan organised by
PRC government. The PRC government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired employees payable under the plan
as set out in Note 32. The assets of this plan are held
separately from those of the Group in an independent
fund managed by the PRC government.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement benefit plan are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred.

(c) %8
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Share-based payments

(@ Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity's share
price);

° including the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period);and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant date
and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated
for the purposes of recognising the expense during
the period between service commencement
period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (hnominal value) and share
premium.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
 E—E——F+t-A=t—HItFE

2. ERENBEBEE)

2.23 MARRID AER 2 MR (E&)

(a)
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t1 HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EREMBERBE(E)

2.23 Share-based payments (continued) 2.23 LARMDAER 2R (E)

(b) Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity
in the parent entity accounts.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEANARBTIREN) BE- T —F+tZA=T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Government grants 2.25 BUFTEAL

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.26 Revenue recognition

(@) Sales of goods

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until
all contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.
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(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEESHHEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (continued) 2.26 WAWER (&)
(b) Sales of properties (b) YENHEEE
Revenue from sales of properties is recognised B EMER AR E K
when the risks and rewards of the properties B R EREEEE S
are transferred to the purchasers, which is BB 5% TR W AR
when the construction of relevant properties HEMEBMESINE
has been completed and the properties have X B EmRIEE
been delivered to the purchasers pursuant to 8 MR - 5 T RERR o
the sales agreement and collectability of related WARERE ZHIE EME
receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and WER 2 % &5 B 30
instalments received on properties sold prior to FIBRREHEEBERT
the date of revenue recognition are included in BEGEE T °
the consolidated balance sheet under current
liabilities.
(c) Interestincome (c) FEWA
Interest income is recognised using the effective FE WA A TR F =%
interest method. When a loan and receivable is TR o fin) B 70 M 8 LBR R
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount HIRRE  BIAEEZ
to its recoverable amount, being the estimated REEREEZEZERIE
future cash flow discounted at the original effective BRE BB AN EEER
interest rate of the instrument, and continues RITBFB S MEMEK TR
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest A E &R - A ERERR
income on impaired loan and receivables are FRERMEWA - BB
recognised using the original effective interest rate. EERHF B U A K U
SIBF AR B A =
(d) Dividend income (d BREWA
Dividend income is recognised when the right to AR B A TE YR AR B B
receive payment is established. R FET EHER o
(€) Leaseincome (e) MHEWA
Lease income from operating leases is recognised KEREMEERA - £
in income on a straight-line basis over the lease HERANEZEGEEERE
term. L ONE
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(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Leases 227 HHE

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the consolidated income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance
lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying
amount is deferred and amortised over the lease term.
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(=B

2.

FrE £RIGAARE T T REA)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28

2.29

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

Dividends distribution

Dividends distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s consolidated financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BBEERI - FIELELOUARET TABN) BE-_E——F+-A=1+—HIEE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Earnings per share 2.30 B

(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREAXKZE
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing SRR ER IR R IE AN R
the profit attributable to owners of the Company, A & R E TR PARZ
by weighted average number of ordinary shares FBFEETEIN L B
outstanding during the financial year. RONE T HEE -

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) ERFHEKE

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted
average number of shares assumed to have been
issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

2.31 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require

the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the

holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails

to make payments when due, in accordance with the

terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees

are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies

on behalf of subsidiaries or associates to secure loans,

overdrafts and other banking facilities.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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FrE £RIGAARE T T REA)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.31 Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount required
to settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined
based on experience of similar transactions and history
of past losses, supplemented by the judgement of
management. The fee income earned is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any
increase in the liability relating to guarantees is reported
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within other operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of subsidiaries or associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the Company.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN ESEANARBTIREN) BE-T—

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk

@

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates as the
Group has no significant float interest-
bearing assets. The Group’s interest rate
risk mainly arises from Senior Notes and
bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest risk which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. Senior Notes and loan
receivables issued at fixed rates exposed
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
maximum exposures to the interest rate risk
have been disclosed in Notes 19 and 25
respectively.

The Group has not used any derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk for the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
T —FTZA=T—HILFE

3. UBERERE)

3.1 HMBER

2= ()

(@) TEER
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HH¥EKRER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BBEBEZE)
(@) Market risk (continued) (@) TWEERE)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (i)  SNERRR

The Directors do not consider the exposure EERARAEEAE

to foreign exchange risk is significant to KE FRemEESE

the Group’s operation as the Group mainly KA SN [ B

operates in the PRC with most of the RAEEEELAF

transactions denominated and settled in FEINE S &

RMB. Therefore, the Group has not used SHEUNARESE

any derivatives to hedge its exposure to R#EHR Bt #

foreign exchange risk for the years ended 31 2T ——FK—

December 2012 and 2011. T——%+=A
=+—HLFE:
7N & B 3 /N A A
Al $74 T B $ O E

BRI TERIMRE

The major foreign exchange risk exposure SNEE R f = E 2R B
arises from the Group’s importing and AEBEORLEAQ
exporting activities and the Group’s EBRAEENE
borrowings, which are mostly denominated ;o ER KIS Y
in United States Dollars (the “US$”). The AZET(ETT ))&t
Group also has certain bank deposits, B A&EBBET
financial assets and financial liabilities that LASNEE SHE BRI SR 1T
are denominated in foreign currencies, ER- aRMEER
mainly US$ and HK$, which are exposed to ERMAE EE5
foreign currency translation risk. The foreign BEEBEXTRE
exchange risk is reduced where the Group T EE FR AN
is in a position of receiving and paying the R R o SNEE & bR
same currency. The Directors believe that P K A 7K £ & Y B
the Group does not expose to significant MRS -
foreign exchange risks. The maximum EFEHE A&5E
exposures to the foreign exchange risks RN NN
are disclosed in Notes 17, 20, 23 and 25 [2 B o HINEE [ Bz &Y
respectively. b5 d=c k- hmba D )

#1720 - 23 K% 25

#eEE o
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(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HUBEBREREE)
8.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMBRMEZRE)
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) TEER(E)
(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (i) BUREDTTRHE

The following table summarised the impact TERBAR R

of increases/decreases of cash flow interest = F X RINE E

rate and foreign exchange rate on the A/ THREAEER

Group’s consolidated financial statements. & OB S R Y &

%,

The sensitivity analysis for the cash flow I & 7 X @ b

interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk is Kz HINBEE [ B A =%

based on the assumption that: EomeERNAT
fRE& :

(@ Interest rate had been 15% lower/ @ F E&F R
higher from the year end rates with T EFH
all other variables held constant (for 15% ' 1 FT
example, 11.5% or 8.5% instead of EHEHME S
10%); HRFDE

(A 115%3k
85% - im 3k
10%) :

(b) RMB had weakened/strengthened by b)) ARMHZE
10% against US$ and HK$ (pegged 7T & P T (B
with US$) with all other variables held X gC B 8 )
constant. RE/FAE

10% * mMETA
H b2 H(R
RAE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. M¥EMER(E)
3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HKRMEARE)
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) TEER(E)
(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) SREELTHE(E)

Cash flow interest rate risk
RERENERE
-15% +15%
Carrying
amount Profit  Equity Profit  Equity
REE il i Al B

31 December 2012 —E--E+-fA=t-H
Financial assets at BIBFETEN
floating interest rates SREE
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRBEEEEY 879,005  (2,375)  (2,375) 2375 2,375
Restricted bank balances SRHR T 1,109,794  (2,999)  (2999) 2,999 2,999
Amounts due from related parties (M 7 7B 90,107  (1,199)  (1,199) 1,199 1,199
Financial liabilities at BEBAETEN
floating interest rates SREE
Bank and other borrowings BATREMART (3978,899) 11,945 11,945  (11,945) (11,945)
Amounts due to related parties e ERRE S ZE (51,965) 468 468 (468) (468)
Other long-term payables iR RN (141,136) 5655 5655  (5655)  (5,655)
Total increase/(decrease) AN/ (BD) 11495 11,495  (11,495)  (11,495)
Foreign exchange risk
SERE
-10% +10%
Carrying
amount  Profit Equity Profit Equity
RREE byl B Al i

31 December 2012 ZZ--F+tZA=t-H
Monetary assets EHEE
Cash and cash equivalents BERRLEEY 879,005 15356 15356  (15,356) (15,356)
Restricted bank balances RRHR TS 1,109,794 24,768 24,768  (24,768)  (24,768)
Trade receivables GEES 1123913 27,787 27,787  (21,787)  (21,737)
Deposits and other receivables e REMEYERR 605,665 292 292 (292) (292)
Monetary liabilities EMER
Trade payables ERE SRR (3,678,585)  (32,459) (32,459) 32,459 32,459
Other payables HthERFIR (611,311)  (11,456) (11,456) 11,456 11,456
Borrowings B (8,355,004) (768,650) (768,650) 768,650 768,650
Total (decrease)/increase S 0AD) /i (144,412) (744,412) 744,412 744,412

140 China Oriental Group Company Limited 12 3 5 45 [ ¥ e A LA 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEMEE(E)
8.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMBRMEZRE)
(@) Market risk (continued) (@) TWEHEERE)
(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) SEELTHE(E)

Cash flow interest rate risk
RenE =k
-15% +15%
Carrying
amount Profit Equity Profit Equity
KM el & il 1

31 December 2011 —E——-£+-f=1-H
Financial assets at BEBFIRGEN

floating interest rates SREE
Cash and cash equivalents BERRLEE 965,082  (1,287)  (1,287) 1,287 1,287
Restricted bank balances SRR 891,396 (1,189 (1,189 1,189 1,189
Amounts dug from related parties  fEUY R 77 508 65,831 (625) (625) 625 625
Financial liabilities at BEBARTEN

floating interest rates SRER
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 2174220 11,010 11,010 (11,010  (11,010)
Amounts due to related parties  JEfTEERE S 208 (118,451) 199 199 (199) (199)
Other long-term payables HitREBREMAH (357,083 5377 537 (6377)  (5,377)
Total increase/(decrease) A/ (i) 13485 13,485 (13485  (13480)

Annual Report 2012 —%——4e4e#t 141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(R2EEB FELEOAARETTASEN) BE-2-—F+-A=+ BHILFE
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. H¥KRKRERE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 FBEBRREZEE)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued)

31 December 2011

Monetary assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted bank balances
Trade receivables

Deposits and other receivables

Monetary liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables
Borrowings

Total (decrease)/increase

(@) TEER(E)

(i) SRELINTHE(E)
Foreign exchange risk
SNER R
-10% +10%
Carrying
amount Profit Equity Profit Equity
RAEE et = il =
“F-—Ff-A=T-H
BeRAEEEN 965082 35016 35016  (35016) (35016)
XBHIR TR 891,396 8547 8547  (8547)  (8547)
B S8R 306,181 23753 23753  (23,753)  (23,759)
ke REMERERS 907,876 2585 2585 (2585 (2,589
EMafR
ERE SRR (2,106,100) (12,350) (12,350) 12,350 12,350
AR (368433)  (12978) (12978 12,978 12978
EE (7513,384) (700,238) (700,238) 700,238 700,238
AR (HD)/BM (655,665) (655,665 655,665 655,665
R IEBR A A 6%

Profit represents consolidated profit before tax;
equity represents total equity, including non-

controlling interests.

Other payables include payables for purchase
of property, plant and equipment, customer
deposits and employee deposits as stated in

Note 24.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, trade and notes receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. The Group does not have significant credit
risks arising from off-balance sheet items. The
Group’s credit policy for the sales of products is
mainly delivery either on cash or upon receipt of
bank acceptance notes with maturity dates within
six months. For bank and financial institutions, the
Group has policies that deposits are placed with
reputable banks. Credit quality of financial assets
is further disclosed in Notes 12, 13, 19 and 42(c)
respectively.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents,
together with adequate banking facilities.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_Z——_Ft-A=T—HILFE

3. UBERERE)

31 BHBRBRREZEE)

(b)

()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. H¥KRKRERE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 UBERAEZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) FBELRA(E)

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1year 2years b5years 5years Total
18R 1225 2Z5F% 5%HLE aF

At 31 December 2012 N-BE——F
+=R=+-H

Borrowings &% 3,853,899 125,000 4,376,105 - 8,355,004
Interests payments on RS H ()

borrowings () 384,753 346,375 423,469 - 1,154,507
Trade payables BB SRR 3,678,585 = - - 3,678,585
Other payables Hib R BRI 677,428 - - 26,129 703,557
Amounts due to related parties  FE{~ EaHE T 208 54,046 - 37,404 51,859 143,309
Finance lease liability REREEE 115,007 = = - 115,007
Interest payments on finance ~ HEEHERE

lease liability (ii) AT ROFIE. (i) 7,327 = - - 7,327
Guarantee for bank borrowings A% = H)$R1TfE

of a third party HAER - 30,019 - - 30,019
At 31 December 2011 RZB——%F

+=R=+-H

Borrowings £k 2,162,422 65,000 3,421,795 1,874,167 7,513,384
Interests payments on RS ST H ()

borrowings (i) 427,394 409,118 839,815 115,377 1,791,704
Trade payables BB SRR 2,106,100 - - - 2,106,100
Other payables Hib IR 457,430 - - 18510 475940
Amounts due to related parties &/ B 75 28 101,147 - - 17,304 118,451
Finance lease liability MEHREAR 223,546 115,007 - - 338,553
Interest payments on finance ~ HEEHERE

lease liability (ii) SEREEEN() 37,697 7,327 - - 45024
Guarantee for bank borrowings A% = H)$R1TIE

of a third party A ER = - 30,000 - 30,000
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B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BXERRERE(EZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 FBERAEZEE)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

U)

(i)

The interest on borrowings is calculated

() RBEZERE)

) BERMEERZZE

based on borrowings held as at 31 ——FRE——
December 2012 and 2011 without taking F=F+=-_A=+—H
into account extension or refinancing of the FENERTE
borrowings in future. Floating-rate interest is N E R 2RI B 5k

estimated using current interest rate as at 31
December 2012 and 2011 respectively.

The interest on finance lease is calculated

EMERMERF
BHMRDBIE=F
——FRZFT——
F+-A=t+—H
RERRRESR -

iy HRZBE——FEk—

based on remaining balance of finance lease ZT——F+ = A
liability and the interest rate implicit in the =+t—H ®EMH
lease as at 31 December 2012 and 2011. S H S TR R

BEHEBENRE

BAEEHE -

3.2 Capital risk management 32 EwRkERE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEENESBEEBERE 2K

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders

and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

EAKERSELEEERE
BEZES  URIRESERE
H RAERBEMOERSEE

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. BIRIZE - W Rt B AL
BIARIRE A ©

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the

Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Annual Report 2012 —%——4e4E# 145

REBIABRELER A%
BRI EREBEN TRREMK
BT RMBEREEES ¥
TR BB ERIEET



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(5~ T — = AR S

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-

capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided

by the total capitalisation. Total debt includes current

and non-current borrowings, finance lease obligations

and borrowings from related parties. Total capitalisation

includes non-current borrowings, non-current portion of

finance lease obligations and borrowings from related

parties and equity attributable to owners of the parent.

Total debt BIRME
Total capitalisation BER
Debt-to-capital ratio (EIEEERE S b R

MBEREE(F)

3.2

BoEREE (&)

AEBERBBEEEE R X
ERENRR - BIHEERL
RREBHEHERNEER - &
HEBERERDRIERDE
B BEREAERBEAR
AR REXBHEIERDE
A BERERERBE AR
BRI IERE B 0 R 5B R A
NEERFFAENRER -

3.3

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HXRERERE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 RAREEMTE)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and TRENWNAEBNR T ——F
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December +-_A=+—"HBrER=-_Z—%F
2012 and 31 December 2011. +ZA=+—RHZAREBER
ENEERAE -
Level1 Level2 Level3 Total

- R F=® st

At 31 December 2012 R-BE——F
+t=A=t-H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESRmEE
- Equity securities (Note 15) —RAFES (HFE15) 47,675 - - 47,675
Level 1 Level2  Level 3 Total
E—HK  FHK  FE=R Fe
At 31 December 2011 R-B——F
t=RA=+-H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESRmEE
- Equity securities (Note 15) —RAES (FIFE15) 58,371 = - 58,371
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BXRRERE(EZ)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 An{EEMHET (&)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise liquid reserves
fund classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and equity securities classified as available-
for-sale financial assets.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment are disclosed in Note 15. The Group has no
level 2 or level 3 financial instruments as at 31 December
2012.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experiences and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting judgements
and estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related
actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(@  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition as
at the balance sheet date and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.

(b)  Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews property, plant and equipment
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable amount of a CGU
has been determined based on higher of value-in-use
and fair value less costs to sell.

RS & E

fhET MAE @ pas AT - XRIEB
EERANEMERZETHEN G 2
REAABRTHESSEMNERE
EMFeTRE -

AR B R R AR A AR R R
Re ISR HE REOEE
% ROUSEHEHERERMAR - R
REas MEMBEENEERAR
M AR EMEE L EA B A A - BT
RBERTmA T

@ TEEEOFERHE

FENAEREFERATEERR
BIER MG EE - BAE T
PR B SHE S it o B2 F b AT
RERGHEBENRTHRRE
EREEEERUNERNB
EEREE -

b) % - BEARERE

BEETABERATEEHRED
BRREER TS T AKE
- ANEE RS RENE2.10
Pl & st R RET % - B
FERRENRE ReELE
R E S EEREERE
BEEQABERHEERAME

NEBEET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, The Group considered that
certain CIP relating to an under construction production
line of a subsidiary which engaged in manufacturing
galvanised sheets was subject to the impairment due
to certain construction contracts exceeding the then
market prices. This production line was identified as a
separate CGU.

The Group also determined that there was an
impairment indication relating to two production lines of
a subsidiary which manufactures galvanised sheets and
cold rolled sheets. These production lines were identified
as CGUs separately.

The Group measured the value-in-use and fair value less
costs to sell by discounting the future estimated cash
flow deriving from the property, plant and equipment.
These calculations required the Group to estimate the
expected future cash flows from the CGU and also to
apply a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(©)

Useful life of the property, plant and equipment

Useful life is the period over which an asset is expected
to be available for use by an entity. The depreciable
amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis
over its useful life (Note 2.6).

The following factors are considered in determining the
useful life of an asset:

(i) Expected usage of the asset

(i)  Expected physical wear and tear

(iiy ~ Technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the
product or service output of the asset

(iv)  Legal or similar limits on the use of the asset

The useful life of an asset is reviewed at each financial
year-end and, if expectations differ from previous
estimates, the change will be accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate in accordance with HKAS 8
‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors’.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
 E_E——F+-A=+—HIEE

4. BRESTHETRAE(E)

E
H

B B5 K 5% R O R] {52 AR 4F

AERFHAEERBAHE
BEMANHR - BENAITE
SEREAERFHAREAR
EEETTOR (5E2.6) ©

EETEEMAERFHE
AEBATEE :

() HBREENAEHRE
(i) TREIMERRE

(i) EEELFHHRE TS
HZBEENEDIRS
B A T SR B M ik
B TSE NGl

v) ERZAEERAEEN
FELABR B

BEMA fE B F RS MEBF
BEARETER - HIBEH R E A
FHENEERO[FTART
Rl ABEZESKESRERE
SFFERESH (@R - &
FHERTRE B RRE | (EAEE
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BSOS RRM

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN B SEINARE T T REN)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEIRARBTTRERN)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(€)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to
determine when an available-for-sale financial asset
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of a financial asset is less than its
cost; and the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology
and operational and financing cash flow.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group follows the accounting policy stated in note
2.12 and assessed loans and receivables for impairment
whenever there is objective evidence that the present
value of estimated future cash flows measurable
decreases and is lower than the carrying amount of the
loans and receivables. The process for estimating the
amount of an impairment loss results either in a single
amount or in a range of possible amounts. In the latter
case, the Group recognises an impairment loss equal to
the best estimate within the range taking into account
all relevant information available before the financial
statements are issued about conditions existing at the
end of the reporting period.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(FRREEAIN - PIE ©FAUARE T T REA)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(@)

Impairment of the Group’s assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 36 to
determine whether the Group’s assets are impaired.
As stated in HKAS 36, the net asset value of an
entity that exceeds its market capitalisation is an
impairment indicator which would require an estimate
of the recoverable amount to be performed. As at 31
December 2012, the Group’s market capitalisation
amounted to RMB 4,158 million approximately, which
is lower than the Group’s net assets value of RMB
9,555 million. The Group shall assess whether its assets
are impaired. This assessment requires significant
judgments and estimations. In making these judgments
and estimations, the Group evaluates and considers
both qualitative and quantitative factors that will affect
the value-in-use of an asset or a CGU such as the
extent of the difference between the net assets value
and market capitalisation, composition of the Group’s
assets, results and timing of previous impairment tests.

The Group has performed the impairment test according
to HKAS 36 and determines that except for the property,
plant and equipment, no other asset or CGU have been
impaired. The impairment assessments of property,
plant and equipment is analysed in Note 7.

154 China Oriental Group Company Limited 12 3 5 45 [ ¥ e A LA )

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—_Z——H+-A=1t—HLFE

4.

BES G R (E)

AEBEERE

AREERZRBES S ERE
BHAIESIBEAERNE
ERTBRME . nEB e
FEIE Tl BEREEFE
HBBEMHERNE - Bl AER
Z ¥ A I B & BB VE Ll ET AOR
BERR - R-_T——F+_A
=t+—H AEEHTHER
fteBHRARE 41588 -
BERAKRENEEFEARE
95.55 BT « AL B AN HEHE
ERBME - Z{EAELE
N H BT R Al ET o T8 1E 5% I
RAbETH - AEBFHERER
BRE—THEEXRCELSE
Uz ERBEEMNEENEERA
= WMEEFEEMSERN
ZHENEZRRE  AEEMNE
EHRE R Z AR ER &4
R REERE o

AEEREFESERE36
SRETTRER R - X EERY
£ BEE&REIN WEEA
BEXRSELBUEHE-
W BB EREORENG
PBIEET 947 »



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HEERIHER -KEE
(@ Sales (@ SHERE
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and REBFENREEEREEH
sales of iron and steel products and real estate business. BEMUINEHERER - &HZE
Sales recognised for the years ended 31 December T ENTE——FA—
2012 and 2011 were as follows: A=+ HBLZSFENHESR
U
2012 2011
—E——F =%
Sales: Sl
Gross sales less discounts, SHERBRITN - RE
returns and sales taxes LA R SHE BT
— Strips and strip products — T & A AR E 12,266,457 14,209,704
— H-section steel products — HARE & 11,554,233 13,732,962
— Billets — S 6,170,019 6,175,963
— Cold rolled sheets and — RELIR RIFEFIR
galvanised sheets 2,352,008 2,305,504
— Rebar — BRA 2,521,714 1,959,769
— Real estate — EE 322,919 -
— Others — HAth 935,008 212,731

36,122,358 38,596,633
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN B SEINARE T T REN)

5.

SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP
(continued)

(b)

Segment information

The chief decision-maker has been identified as the
management committee, which comprises all executive
directors and top management. The chief decision-
maker reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources.

Based on these reports, the chief decision-maker
considers the business from a business perspective.
From a business perspective, the chief decision-maker
assesses the performance of the iron and steel and the
real estate segments.

(i) Iron and steel — Manufacture and sale of iron and
steel products; and

(i) Real estate — Development and sale of properties.

The chief decision-maker assesses the performance of
the operating segments based on a measure of revenue
and operating profit. This measurement is consistent
with that in the annual financial statements.

156 China Oriental Group Company Limited 1 [ 5 7 £ Bl B 45 i 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2012
=T —F+ A=l E

5.

HEBER D HER —AKE(£F)

D EEF

BREARACEERRBEM
BHRTEEREREEENHR
TRE® BERRAFNAN
SE )RR E PAERHE XA
RARDEEIR

RIFZFHRE - BFREAR
BRAEEEER KAXA
B BRARAFGWEALE
HEDBRA

0 E-RERHEMEE
o R

iy EHE-FAZEXEESEY
¥o

BRRRARBERARE
B M EEEDBRE - %

AHEEFEMBRER N -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(B A EBRANARE T TAEN)

AR -

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP
(continued)

(b)

Segment information (continued)

The segment information provided to the chief decision-

maker for the reportable segments for the year was as

follows:

Segment revenue

Segment operating profit
Finance (costs)/income — net
Share of result of an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other income statement items
Depreciation and amortisation

Capital expenditure

Segment revenue

Segment operating profit
Finance (costs)/income - net
Share of result of an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other income statement items
Depreciation and amortisation

Capital expenditure

AEURA

DS E A
817 () /s — %8
ElE—FHBEARRE

BR A S AT A
FISHER

FREHN

HitFBRER
FEREH

BARX

yi- L ON

A EEE R
B3 () /A — 5
EiE—REBEARRE

BRETSEL A& Al
FEHER

FRRR

HiFBRER
e RS

NGB

j:—?

For the year ended 31 December 2012

—F =T HIEFE

5. WHEHERIBEH-F&EEH(E)

BEDEMRERBETERR

A
AR DEERZHNT

Year ended 31 December 2012
BE-Z-"F+-A=t—HLEE

Iron and steel Real estate Total
e EiE st
35,799,439 322,919 36,122,358
619,928 72,819 692,747
(354,692) 698 (353,994)
(12,697) - (12,697)
326,056

(179,579)

146,477

947,369 576 947,945
1,630,169 279 1,630,448

Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=t+—HItFE

Iron and steel Real estate Total
i) FEiE FCE
38,596,633 - 38,596,633
2,052,640 (29,066) 2,023,574
(95,204) 1,302 (93,902)
2,140 - 2,140
1,931,812
(514,023)

1,417,789

895,889 432 896,321
1,469,268 707 1,469,975

Annual Report 2012 —&— 44k 157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BRAARAI - A S REAARSE T AERL)

5.

SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP
(continued)

(b)

Segment information (continued)

Segment assets are those operating assets that are
employed by a segment in its operating activities.
Segment assets are determined after deducting related
allowance that is reported as direct offsets in the balance
sheet. Segment assets consist primarily of leasehold
land and land use rights, property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, intangible assets, investment
in an associate, inventories, trade receivables,
notes receivable, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, restricted
bank balances and cash and cash equivalents.

Segment liabilities are those operating liabilities that
result from the operating activities of a segment.
Segment liabilities consist primarily of other long-term
payables, deferred revenue, amounts due to related
parties, trade payables and accruals, advances and
other current liabilities.

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2012 were as follows:

Total assets

Segment assets for BESBOHHEE
reportable segments

Unallocated: AAE

Deferred income tax assets BRMBHEAE

Available-for-sale financial assets HNESRERE

Loan receivables ERER

Prepaid current income tax BREBAEH

Total assets per balance sheet EEBBERANBEE
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R=Z——#+-A=+—H
Mo EERBENT
Iron and steel Real estate Total
i EiE st
23,395,618 531,988 23,927,606
23,927,606
201,090
157,280
379,700
86,307
24,751,983
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B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
B2 _—FtER=1-HIEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HEERIDEHN-XEEH(E)
(continued)
(o)  Segment information (continued) (b) DEEFRE(E)
Iron and steel Real estate Total
e EHE st
Total liabilities oy =T 6,518,649 265,425 6,784,074
Segment liabilties for REDPOHHAE
reportable segments 6,784,074
Unallocated: ROE:
Current income tax liabilities SHMEHEE 53,314
Current borrowings NOEUED 3,853,899
Non-current borrowings JEmEE 4,501,105
Dividends payable ERRE 4,575
Total liabilities per balance sheet BEABRANBEE 15,196,967

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December R—_ZE——F+_-_A=+—H

2011 were as follows: Mo HEEMBELT ¢
Iron and steel Real estate Total
pie) EHE 4t
Total assets HEE 21,720,916 528,407 22,249,323
Total assets include: BEERR
Investment in an associate BENAIRE 12,697 = 12,697
Segment assets for BESBHHHEE
reportable segments 22,249,323
Unallocated: KRoHE
Deferred income tax assets BEFEHERE 192,694
Available-for-sale financial assets AELESREE 167,976
Loan receivables EWED 320,000
Total assets per balance sheet BEBERANBEE 22,929,993

Annual Report 2012 —&— 44k 159



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS RRM

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t1 HLFE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HERERSHER -FKEE(E)
(continued)
(o)  Segment information (continued) () DEERE(E)
Iron and steel Real estate Total
) REiE 5t
Total liabilities asEg 5,395,662 311,944 5,707,596
Segment liabilties for BESHNHHAR
reportable segments 5,707,596
Unallocated: KAE :
Current income tax liabilities SHEHaE 193,072
Current borrowings mENEm 2,152,422
Non-current borrowings JERBER 5,360,962
Dividends payable RS 4,591
Total liabilities per balance sheet BEBBRANBEEE 13,418,643
6. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS - 6. HELHFIERE-—KESE
GROUP
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights AEBEEMRE T3 N+ 05 AR
represent the prepayment for the operating lease, the net book mIEREAETAMNNKIA - IREERRF
value of which is analysed as follows: Bt T:
2012 2011

—B-—f —T——F

At 1 January R—A—H 137,128 116,949
Transfer from property, HE - BEN - 23,584
plant and equipment (Note 7) HEE A (FEE7)
Amortisation of leasehold land HETH R
and land use rights (Note 31) s A8 (PI5EST) (3,405) (3,405)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 133,723 137,128
The Group’s leasehold land and land use rights are all located ANEBMEE L i K+ 0 E AN
in the PRC and the remaining lease period is between 30 years RAE - R TN F30F E455F -
to 45 years.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BREAEAN - FIEBANARBTTAEN) BE-Z——F+A=T—HLFE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. ¥ BERRE
The Group REE
Furniture Leasehold Finance
and improve- leased
Buildings Machinery  fixtures Vehicles ~ ments CIP machinery Total
e HERE
BT HERE HORE RE £ ERIR Ha Eh
At 1 January 2011 R=%--%-8-A
Cost A 2,736,110 7,201,385 95301 123,840 1337 450,584 800,000 11,408,557
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (660,085) (2491,486)  (42392)  (67,130)  (1,020) - (218,108 (3,380,221)
Impairment e (20,545)  (60,267) (891) 85) - - - (81,789
Net book amount FEFE 2,155,480 4649632 52,018 56,625 317 450584 581892 7,946,548
Year ended 31 December 2011  HZ-F——-%+=4
ST-BLEE
Opening net book amount EEEFE 2,155,480 4649632 52,018 56,625 317 450584 581892 7,946,548
Acqistion of subsiciary WEHEAT 239 4160 1057 1914 - 257 - 78727
Addtions AE 2,369 33217 3244 10,869 - 1,411,704 - 1,461,463
Transfer from CIP EETREA 62,192 262,741 1,123 7,845 - (323901) - -
Disposals (Note 39) it (Fi£39) (1089 (5,690 ) (o4 - - - (1239
Transfer to leasehold land and EHERETHR
land use rights (Note 6) TifERE (Hi6) - - - - - (23,584) - (23584
Depreciation (Note 31) E(Ms1) (127,597)  (646,387)  (13,046) (18,470 (85) - (86,538 (892,093)
Impaiment (Notes 29) i (fi20) = = - - - (161,270) - (161,270)
Closing net book amount ERERFE 2123694 4324733 44306 53259 262 1,353790 495354 8,395,398
At 31 December 2011 R-Z--£+-fA=1-H
Cost KA 2834624 7527003 101,048 120,788 1337 1515060 800,000 12,899,880
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (690,385 (3,142,008)  (5,851) (67444  (1,079) - (804,646) (4,261424)
Impairment H{E (20,545)  (60,267) (891) 85) - (161,270) - (43058
Net book amount REFE 2123604 4324733 44306 53259 262 1353790 495,354 83952398
Year ended 31 December 2012  HZ-ZF-—E+-f
ST-ALEE
Opening net book amount EfERFE 2,123,694 4324733 44306 53,259 262 1,353,790 495354 83952398
Adaftions e 180,169 628,126 411 2412 - 793737 - 1,630,324
Transfer from CIP fEIREA 248192 986,258 5,225 36 - (1,239,711) - -
Disposals (Note 39) HE (HE39) - (362)  (2,439) (960) - (34,686) - (38443
Depreciation (Note 31) & (31 (131,112)  (700,693)  (11,383)  (20,511) (55) - (79955 (943,709)
Impaiment (Note 29) G (HEE2) = = = = - (3,600 - (3,600
Closing net book amount EXGEFE 2420943 5238062 39,884 55945 207 869530 415399 9,039,970
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BREEEAN - FERBEANARBTTABN) BE-_Z——F+-A=t—HBLFE
7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. YE- - BERREE)
The Group (continued) NER (42)
Furniture Leasehold Finance
and improve- leased
Buildings Machinery  fixtures Vehicles ~ ments CIP machinery Total
e HEHE
BF BERE HORE ot k6 #RIR B &5t
At 31 December 2012 W-E-Z£+-A=1-H
Cost A 3,262,984 9,140,194 106,720 141,054 1,337 873,130 800,000 14,325,419
Accumulated depreciation 248 (821,496) (3,842,278)  (65,945)  (85024)  (1,130) - (384,601) (5,200,474)
Impaiment A (20,545)  (59,854) (891) (85) - (3,600 - (84979)
Net book amount REFE 2420943 5238062 39,884 55945 207 869530 415399 9,039,970

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated

income statements as follows:

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses

HEMA
1TEE

As at 31 December 2012, no buildings or machinery was
pledged as security for the Group’s borrowings. (2011: RMB

41 million) (Note 25).
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012, borrowing costs
amounted to approximately RMB 65 million (2011: RMB 35
million) were capitalised into the cost of property, plant and
equipment at an average capitalisation rate of 7.16% (2011:
6.38%) approximately.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Directors noted
indications that certain property, plant and equipment,
including CIP were subject to impairment (Note 4(b)).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of RMB 3.6 million for certain of the CIP
relating to a galvanised sheets production line which is still
under construction, based on the recoverable amount of the
CIP.

As at 31 December 2011, the construction of production
lines related to the production of coke and rolled sheets had
been stopped for a long time and was not expected to be
put into use in the foreseeable future given the change in
market environment. The Group recognised an impairment
loss of RMB 161 million which represented the excess of the
assets’ carrying amounts over their recoverable amounts. The
estimation of the recoverable amounts was based on then
market conditions and the Group’s plan for these production
lines. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
has disposed off these production lines.

7.

I~ BERRE(E)
REE (&)

HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HIEF
B BERAHAREE,5008T(=
T——4F : AR¥3500&8 L) ERF
BN RL7.16% (ZF——14F ¢
6.38%) B ABYE - ME KEE
BB o

R-BE-—_FR_Z——F+_H
=+—RB BFIEINETRETID
% - BERRE  BEETER
TiEHETRRE (MRt 4(0))

R-ZB——F+—fF=+—H K&
B — IR EEE IR EERNE T
2T EER AR 3605 THREE

'

R-ZE——%+-"A=+—8 4&
BEXIRERERBREE - ERH
=L BERMSRIEE\L  BHE
AR RTEBRAFER - ZEE
EREEBLES A IRESEE - A
SEERREBEARE1.61ET -
A E SR IERERTILR
AEEBEERSEERNE - HEZ
T——HF+_A=+—HIFE XK
EEEREZRSZLEESR -
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(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. V¥ BEREREE)
The Company Vi N/NET|
Furniture and
fixtures Vehicles Total

WARE RE @t
At 1 January 2011 R=Z-—-F—-H-H
Cost B AN 828 2,760 3,588
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE 677) (1,811) (2,488)
Net book amount REFE 151 949 1,100
Year ended 31 December 2011 HZE-E——%£+=H

=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FERMFE 151 949 1,100
Additions NE 29 4 33
Disposal HE (25) = (25)
Depreciation e (41) (227) (268)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 114 726 840
At 31 December 2011 R-E——&+=-HB=1+-H
Cost B AR 812 2,764 3,676
Accumulated depreciation ZiTE (698) (2,038) (2,736)
Net book amount BEFE 114 726 840
Year ended 31 December 2012 #HZ=-ZE—-F+=H
=t-HLEE

Opening net book amount FORESE 114 726 840
Additions NE 83 - 83
Disposal HE @ - 4)
Depreciation ik (36) (223) (259)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 157 503 660
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE-—&+=-A=+—H
Cost A 716 2,764 3,480
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (559) (2,261) (2,820)
Net book amount REFE 157 503 660
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP

The investment properties are located in the PRC and their net

book value are analysed as follows:

At 1 January 2011
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2011
Opening net book amount
Depreciation (Note 31)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2011
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2012
Opening net book amount
Depreciation (Note 31)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2012
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

R=2——%—A—§

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

RENME-FKH

WEMEMAFE - REEEFED
Mran T

AR 21,985
RitinE (5,196)
BREFE 16,789
BE_Z——F+-A=t—HLFE

FYERMAFE 16,789
& (BI3E31) (805)
FRERMEFE 15,984
R=Z——%5+-A=+-H

AN 21,985
Ritine (6,001)
R FE 15,984
BE_Z-—F+-A=1-HLEE

FYERMEFE 15,984
e (BIsE31) (806)
FRERMAFE 15,178
R-E-——%+-A=1+-H

RN 21,985
REtiE (6,807)
BREFE 15,178

For the year ended 31 December 2012, rental income arising

from these investment properties amounted to RMB 2.90

million (2011: RMB 1.75 million) (Note 30).

As at 31 December 2012, the Directors estimated that the fair
value of the investment properties was approximately RMB

68.6 million based on the prices in the active market (2011:

RMB 60.4 million).

HE_Z——F+_A=+—HLF
B ZEREVMFEMEENHAS KA
RBARKE208TT(ZZE—F : AR
#1758 7T) (71 30) °

R-_ZTE——F+-_A=+—H ==
RIBFERIERTISERGERE
MENRARBEHAREE,860ET
(ZZ—F : AR¥S6,04087T) ©
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BABIEAN B SEINARE T T REN)

HE-T——H+-A=+—HIEFE

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 9. EFEE-—X£EH
Software Goodwill Total
B e st
At 1 January 2011 R=-—Z——%—H—H
Cost AR 49 7,667 7,716
Accumulated amortisation  EETEESE ZRE
and impairment (13) (7,667) (7,680)
Net book amount BREFE 36 = 36
Year ended 31 BE-_E——&
December 2011 +ZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount  E¥EREF(E 36 - 36
Additions NE 14 8,498 8,612
Amortisation (Note 31) 54 (fI5E31) (18) = (18)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 32 8,498 8,530
At 31 December 2011 HN-E——H%+=-HA=+—H
Cost AN 63 16,165 16,228
Accumulated amortisation ST KRB
and impairment 81) (7,667) (7,698)
Net book amount BREF(E 32 8,498 8,530
Year ended 31 BE-_E——&
December 2012 +T-ZA=+—HILEE
Opening net book amount S ¥IERE F(E 32 8,498 8,530
Additions NE 124 - 124
Amortisation (Note 31) e (ME31) (25) - (25)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 131 8,498 8,629
At 31 December 2012 H-=E——F#+=-HA=+—H
Cost B AR 187 16,165 16,352
Accumulated amortisation 2T RIHE
and impairment (56) (7,667) (7,723)
Net book amount BREDHE 131 8,498 8,629
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A EBRANARET T REN)

BRI -

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -

COMPANY

(@ Investments in subsidiaries

Unlisted investments, at cost

FEETIE (JRAA)

The subsidiaries at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

Name

tH

Gold Genesis Development
Limited (“Gold Genesis”)

Gold Genesis Development
Limited ([ Gold Genesis )

Good Lucky Enterprises
Limited (‘Good Lucky’)

Good Lucky Enterprises
Limited ([ Goodl Lucky] )

First Glory Senvices Limited
(‘First Glory”)

First Glory Services Limited
([First Glory )

Accordpower Investments
Limited (‘Accordpower’)

Accordpower Investments
Limited ([ Accordpower )

Place and date
of incorporation

LAV EE

British Virgin Islands
('BVI")

21 February 2003
ERGARES
([RE4ARES])
e S

BVI

21 February 2003
ZB4ARES
ZEEECAZT-R

BVI

16 October 2003
ARARRES
“EEETATAR

BVI

30 November 2004
LE4ERES
ZEIMET—A=1H

Legal status

EETRER

Limited fiabilty
company

EREEAA

Limited liability
company
BREAAT

Limited fiabilty
company

BREEAR

Limited liability
company
BRELAT

Percentage of
equity interest
atributable

to the Group
FRERES
BAk

100%
(Directly held)

100%
(E&HA)

100%
(Directly held)
100%
(BRRR)

100%
(Directly held)
100%
(E%HE)

100%
Directy hel)
100%
(E%5E)

B Ot I IRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_Z——_Ft-A=T—HILFE

4=

10. MBEARARERER-FQF

2011
—g-=f¢ -3 —F

589,566 550,046
R-ZE—_%F + A=+—H
B AR
Issued
and fully Authorised
paid capital capital  Principal activities
BEARERRA EERE  TEEH

US$t US$50,000  Investment holding

1571 50000%r  KARK

US$1 US$50,000  Investment holding
1% S0000Er  REER
US$2 US$50,000  Investment holding
2T 0000 RERR
USS2 US850,000  Investment holding
2T S00005T  REER

Annual Report 2012 —%— 44k 167



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - 10. MEARIBRERER AT (&)

COMPANY (continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @@ MBRAKE (E)

Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEEELESR

4 AR A EETRER Bt BREORERRE EERE  TEER

Fulhero Investments Limited BV Limited liabilty 100% US$2 US850,000  Investment holding
(‘Fullhero”) 3 May 2006 company (Directly held)

Fulhero Investments ABHARES BREMAR 100% 2%TL 500057 &EER
Limited ([Fullero] ) “TTRERAZA (ERHE)

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel PRC Joint stock company 97.6%  RMB228,640,000 RMB228,640,000  Manufacture and sales
Group Company Limited 24 December 1999 with limited fiabilty  (Indlirectly held) of iron and stegl products
(Jinxi Limited’)

MEEEREERRNERAR HE RABRREAR 97.6% AR% ARE  EERAEEEER
(=R —MANE (HE#EE) 228,640,000 228,640,0007

TZAZ A

Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold PRC Limited liability 80.28% US$55,150,000  US$55,150,000  Manufacture and sales
Rolled Shest Company 26 December 2003 company (Indlrectly held) of steel products
Limited (*Jinxi Jinlan’)

BlEEER AR el BREMAA 8028%  S5150000%T 55150000%7% 4ERBEEEER
BRAA Z3%F (FEHE)

([2EeR)) R

Oriental Fullhero Leasing Co., ~ PRC Limited liabilty 100% US865,000,000  US$65,000,000  Leasing and financialleasing
Ltd. (‘Fullhero Leasing’) 23 September 2005 company (Inclrectly held)

RAAERERRAA el EREFAT 100%  65000000%7 650000005 MEREEHE
([ZERE)) ZEERENAZTER (FEHE)

Hebei Jinxi Section Steel PRC Limited liability 97.6%  RMB350,000,000 RMB350,000,000  Manufacture and sales
Company Limited 30 May 2008 company (Indlrectly held) of steel products
(*Jinxi Section Stee!')i

MERREER AR i BREMAR 97.6% AR% ARE  EERFEEEER
([=RR]) i) “ZE\ERAZTA (HEEE) 350,000,007 350,000,0007¢

Jinxi Hong Kong Trading Hong Kong Limited liability 97.6% HK$38,770,501  HK$80,000,000  Import and export of goods
Company Limited 27 October 2008 company (Indlrectly held)

(‘HK Trading”)

ERARELOARAA &b BREMAA o76%  SBTI0501ETL  80000000%T  EHOE

([2EEA]) ZZE\ETAZTLR (FEHE)
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B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - 10. MEARIKRERER —AQTE (&)

COMPANY (continued)

(@  Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @ KBRAAKE (&)

Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEEELES

28 AR RS EETRER Bt BEORERRE EERE  TEER

Suifenhe City Jinyin Trading PRC Limited liability 97.6% RVB10,000,000  RMB10,000,000  Import and export of
Co., Ltd. (*Jinyin Trading”) (v) 24 September 2008 company (Indlrectly helo) goods and technology

EEamERRSERA i BREMAR 97.6% ARE ARE  EROENRH
(=525 W “ZE\ENAZTEA (HEEE) 10,000,000z 10,000,000t

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel PRC Limited liability 69.3% RMB50,000,000  RMB50,000,000  Manufacture and sales of
Group Zhengda lron 19 December 2008 company (Indlrectly held) steel products
and Steel Co., Ltd.

(‘Zhengda Iron and Steel’)

bl it e g i i BREAAT 69.3% ARE ARE  EERHE
BRAT “ZEN\E (HE) 50,000,007t 50,000,0007 HEER
(n3==1=0) TZATNA

Tangshan Fengrun PRC Limited liabilty 69.3% RMB100,000 RMB100,000  Purchase and sale of
Qu Tong Yuan Trading 22 May 2009 company (Indlrectly held) ferrous metal and coke
CGompany Limited
(Tong Yuan Trading’)

ELmEERARNE i BREAAT 69.3% ARE AR  BEZECE
BRAT “ZENE (HEEE) 100,000 100,0007 RER
([@EmE]) AA-t-R

Hebei Jinxi Boyuan Real PRC Limited liability 5856%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Development and sales
Estate Co., Ltd. 17 December 2009 company (Indlrectly held) of real estate
(‘Boyuan Real Estate’)

MtERBRENE el BREfAR 58.56% ARE ARE  REREE
REERAT “ZENE (HEEE) 100,000,007z 100,000,0007C BitE
([BeptE]) TZATtA

Clear Precision Limited BV Limited liabilty 100% USS2 US850,000  Investment holding
(“Clear Precision”) 22 July 2010 company (Directly held)

Olear Precision Limited ARABRES BREMRA 100% 2T 000ET  RAER
(Clear Precision ) “3-5% (BE%%E)

tA= =R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - 10. MEARIBRERER AT (&)
COMPANY (continued)
(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @@ MBRAKE (E)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AREELRR
£ AR A EEERER Bt BREORERRE EERE  TEER
Beiing Jinxi Investment PRC Limited liability 976%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Investment holding
Holding Co., Ltd. 26 August 2010 company (Indlrectly held)
(‘Beiing Jinxi Investment’)
IREERARRERAR EREFAT 97.6% AR% ARE  RERR
([rrEmRE]) ZE-%% (H&#EE) 100,000,0007c  100,000,0007
NAZ17H
Oriental Evertrust Finance PRC Limited liabilty 100%  US$200,000,000 US$200,000,000  Financial leasing and leasing
Leasing Co., Ltd. 27 September 2010 company (Indlrectly held)
(“Oriental Evertrust’)
RAEERARERRAT i BREMAR 100% 200,000,000 200000000 SBEERAE
([RAfR]) 5% (FEHE) eI I
AA=Zt++8
Origntal Green Energy- PRC Limited liability 97.6% RMB50,000,000  RMB50,000,000  Environmental
Saving Environmental 20 October 2010 company (Indlrectly held) Protection Engineering
Protection Engineering
Co., Ltd. (‘Oriental Green”)
RAGRERRRIE el EREFAT 97.6% AR% ARE  RERELR
BRAR (A58 5% (HEEE) 50,000,0007c 50,000,007t
+A=1A
Hebei Jinshun Energy- PRC Limited liability 976%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Researchand development
Saving Technology 17 November 2010 company (Inclrectly held) on recycling and energy-
Development Co., Ltd. saving technology
(*Jinshun Energy-Saving’) and other recycling business
EplA= A el EREFAT 97.6% AR% ARE  FERRREGHRE
BRAR (2R ) ZE-%% (H&#EE) 100,000,007 100,000,0007C REMERES
t-AT+tA
Beiing Jinxi Boyuan PRC Limited liability 976%  RMB100,000000 RMB100,000,000  Development and sales
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 18 November 2010 company (Indlrectly held) of real estate
(‘Beiing Real Estate’)
IrEERRER hE EREFAT 97.6% AE® ARE  REREERNE
BRAR (Mt RERE]) 5% (HE#E) 100,000,0007c  100,000,0007
T=-AT/\A
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B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - 10. MEARIKRERER —AQTE (&)

COMPANY (continued)

(@  Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @ KBRAAKE (&)

Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEEELES

£ AR RS EETRER Bt BEORERRE EERE  TEER

China Oriental Singapore Singapore Limited liability 100% US$10,000,000 Nt applicable ~ Trading of ron ore and
Pte. Ltd. (“China Origntal 29 November 2010 company (Indlrectly held) related products
Singapore’)

(China Oriental Singapore il BREMAR 100%  10000,000%7% MR  EEARRMEEER
Ple. Ltd. ([ChinaOriental ~~ —B-%% (FEsE)

Singapore ) +-A=1AR

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Stegl PRC Limited liability 45.75% RVB93,098,162  RMB93,098,162  Manufacture and sales of
Group Dafang Heavy 27 November 2003 company (Indlrectly held) casting products and
Industry Science and equipment maintenance
Technalogy Co., Limited
(*Jinxi Dafang’)

MEREEEEANEL BREfAR 45.75% ARE ARE  EERHEEEER
REERAR I e (HE) 93,098,162 93,098,627 RixfEkE
([#AAA])

Jinxi International Trade PRC Limited liability 976%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Intemational trading
Co., Ltd. (*Jinxi 23 March 2011 company (Indlrectly held)

International Trade”) (v)

ERERESERAA el EREFAT 97.6% ARE ARE  ERES
([=REERES]) () “—-%=f-1=H (HEEE) 100,000,007z 100,000,0007C

Tangshan Fengnan Qu Yun PRC Limited liabilty 97.6% RMB5,000,000  RMB5,000,000  Purchase and sale of
Da Trading Co., Ltd. 1 Jung 2011 company (Indlrectly held) steel products
(Yun Da Trading’) (i)

BUTEREEEHEERAR R EREFAT 97.6% ARE ARE  AHEREE
([EEEE )W “Z——E5xA-A (HEE) 5,000,0007¢ 5,000,0007

Hebei Caofeidian Jinxing PRC Limited liability 98.0% USD34,000,000  USD34,000,000  Motor vehicle scrap and
Resource Development 1 July 2011 company (Indlrectly held) crush demolition solution
Co., Ltd. (‘Caofeidian
Jinxing’) ()

Mt B aRRERRY i BREMAR 98.0% 34000000%T 34000000%7  HENEHEEA
ERAA(ERmER])) =F-——%tA-A (FEsE) EAEEN S
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - 10. MEARIBRERER AT (&)
COMPANY (continued)
(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @@ MBRAKE (E)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEEELESR
4 AR A EETRER Bt BREORERRE EERE  TEER
Beiing Jinxi LongXiang PRC Limited liability 97.6% RVB10,000,000  RMB10,000,000  Publication
Culture Development 4 May 2012 company (Inclrectly held)
Co., Ltd. (‘LongXiang
Cutture”)
IREEEU AR el BREMAR 97.6% AR% AR®  HRE
BRAF “Z-"%%fMA (HE#EE) 10,000,000 10,000,0007
(-2:¢(d)
Tianjin Origntal Huitong PRC Limited liability 9.1%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Provision ofloans
Microcredit Co., Ltd. 29 June 2012 company (Inclrectly held)
(“Oriental Huitong”)
RERAEREEH el EREFAT 98.1% AR% ARE  REEER
BRAF ZE-ZERAZTNR (H&#EE) 100,000,007z 100,000,0007C
([RAER])

Tianjin Jinxi Logistics Co., Lid. ~ PRC Limited liability 97.6% RMB5,000,000  RMB5,000,000  Provision of agency Services
(*Jinxi Logistics”) 31 July 2012 company (Indlrectly held) for import/export
REERMRARAA i BREMAR 97.6% ARE ARE  REERORERE

=iyl “E-ZEtA=+-R (HEEE) 5,000,0007¢ 5,000,0007
Qianxi Xinhaiyuan Trade PRC Limited liability 97.6% RMB2,000,000  RMB2,000,000  Sales of mining machinery
Go., Ltd. (‘Xinhaiyuan”) (il 24 Qctober 2012 company (Indlrectly helo) accessories
BEEEOREEARAR EREFAT 97.6% AR% ARE  HERBEHELA
(=55 ) ZE-CETAZTMA (HE#EE) 2,000,00070 2,000,000
Tianjin Juli Trade Co., Ltd. PRC Limited liability 97.6% RVB20,000,000  RMB20,000,000  Intemational Trading
("Juli Trade") 25 October 2012 company (Indlrectly held)
AEBHEHBRAA i BREMAR 97.6% ARE N
([2H85)) “2-ZE+AZ+RA (HE#EE) 20,000,000 20,000,007
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Transactions within the Group

U

(i)

On 20 December 2012, the paid in capital of
Caofeidian Jinxing has increased by US$ 28.9
million (equivalent to RMB 182 million) to US$ 34
million. The additional capital was contributed by
Jinxi Limited. After the capital contribution, Jinxi
Limited and the Company hold 85% and 15% of its
equity interest respectively.

Xinhaiyuan was incorporated on 24 October
2012 by two individual shareholders and the
paid-in capital of Xinhaiyuan was RMB 2 million.
At the date of incorporation of Xinhaiyuan, the
Group entered into certain agreements with
these shareholders of Xinhaiyuan. Pursuant to
the agreements, the shareholders of Xinhaiyuan
conveyed to the Group all their rights in Xinhaiyuan,
including but not limited to financial and operating
decision and voting rights. Through such
agreements, the Group had de-facto control
of Xinhaiyuan and the Group consolidated the
financial statements of Xinhaiyuan as a subsidiary.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
 E_E——F+-A=+—HIEE

10. MBARRERER - XD H (&)

(@) MBRRKRE(#E)

rEBARS

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Transactions outside the Group

)

(iv)

On 7 March 2012, Jinxi Limited entered into an
equity transfer agreement with Qianxi County Hui
Yin Trading Company Limited (“Hui Yin”), a related
party whose directors, Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr.
Zhu Jun and Mr. Shen Xiaoling, are also directors
of the Company. Pursuant to the equity transfer
agreement, Jinxi Limited acquired 20% equity
interest in Jinxi Section Steel from Huiyin at a cash
consideration of approximately RMB 93.6 million.
After the acquisition, Jinxi Section Steel became a
wholly owned subsidiary of Jinxi Limited.

Jinyin Trading, Jinxi International Trade and Yun
Da Trading are the subsidiaries of Jinxi Section
Steel, whose percentages of equity interest
attributing to the Group changed in line with the
acquisition of Jinxi Section Steel.

(b)  Loans to subsidiaries

Loans to subsidiaries

MBARER

The loans to subsidiaries form part of the Company’s net

investment in the PRC subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Loans to subsidiaries (continued)

The loans to Jinxi Limited amounting to US$ 106.7
million (equivalent to RMB 670.7 million) are unsecured,
have a repayment term of 20 years, and bear interest at
a rate of 8% per annum from 1 July 2010. The Directors
have resolved that these loans will not be settled
upon maturity and regarded these loans as part of the
Company’s net investment in Jinxi Limited.

The loans to Jinxi Jinlan amounting to US$ 51.0 million
(equivalent to RMB 320.6 million) are unsecured, have a
repayment term of 7 years, and bear interest at a rate of
7% per annum from 16 November 2010.

The rest of the loans to subsidiaries amounting to RMB
3,529.8 million are unsecured, interest-free and with no
fixed terms of repayment.

All the loans to subsidiaries are eliminated at upon
consolidation.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
B2 _—FtER=1-HIEE

10. MBARRERER - XD H (&)

it

MEARER (&)

i

RS E R 1.067 X7
(FHERAREB.707 87T) BE
| ERHRE20F 2%
—ZE+A—BiRIR8sbHNEF
Kir B - BREFRE 25 E
FEAT IR EER - MASE
BARQREEFAMBEERE
SFREM—HBD o

HEASHRENERR 5,100
BET(HEENRARKI.20618
L) REEE BREAT
F -BE—ZFF+—ATR
HARIR 7% RS FIRET S o

ZEHMBERARNERRBEAR
% 35.208fE L REEM - R
BN R ETEE R
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

11. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP 11. BEQAFRE-KEEH
2012 2011
—E-C—F —FT——%F
At 1 January R—A—H 12,697 10,557
Share of result of an associate (Note 39) JE(G—FEBE 2 N RS
(FI7E39) (12,697) 2,140
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H - 12,697

The information of the unlisted associated company as at and

FEMHERANEBE_ZT——_F
for the year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows: =+

+=A —BIEFEMNERNOT :

Percentage of
Place and equity interest
date of attributable
Name incorporation  to the Group Assets Liabilities Revenues Net loss
MR BER  AREES
A = BEADHL BE af 0N BB
Qianxi County Zhongxing ~ PRC 35% 145,407 142,394 36,740 (36,478)
Iron Mine Co., Ltd. 21 May 2002 (indirectly held)
(“Zhongxing Iron Mine”)
ERGTEEE 3 35% 145,407 142,394 36,740 (36,478)
ARAH —ETE (E#ERSB)
(T &R ) AA=1—H
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B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12. €@ IA(ZRER) - FEERER

AND COMPANY =l
The Group REE
Available-
Loans and for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
ERR AHEE
A SREE @5t
Assets as per consolidated SN EERBRATHEE

balance sheet
As at 31 December 2012 WZE——&+-A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial AftHE & E (M 15)

assets (Note 15) - 157,280 157,280
Trade and notes receivables [EWE SRR R (i 17)

(Note 17) 6,826,649 - 6,826,649
Deposits and other receivables e REMEREER

(Note 18) (KsE18) 605,665 - 605,665
Amounts due from related parties JE e 7 508 (FizE 42(c))

(Note 42(c) 90,107 - 90,107
Loan receivables (Note 19) FEIER (Fit3E19) 379,700 - 379,700
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) SR #I8R7 745 (FizE20) 1,109,794 - 1,109,794
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) & R & ZEM (i 20) 879,005 - 879,005
Total st 9,890,920 157,280 10,048,200
As at 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-A=+—H
Avallable-for-sale financial e RERE (M 15)

assets (Note 15) - 167,976 167,976
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17) [ E FERE N1 (Kl 17) 4,226,839 - 4,226,839
Deposits and other receivables e REAEREER

(Note 18) (KsE18) 907,876 = 907,876
Amounts due from related parties R Uk AR 7 00R (BTRE 42(c))

(Note 42(c)) 65,831 - 65,831
Loan receivable (Note 19) EWED (HE19) 320,000 - 320,000
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) SR #7748 (Fifi£ 20) 891,396 - 891,396
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) 34 KIR 4 =B (Ft3E20) 965,082 - 965,082
Total st 7,377,024 167,976 7,545,000
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12, @RI A (RER) - FKERER

AND COMPANY (continued) (&)
The Group (continued) REE(E)
Financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
RBHERATEZ
SREE
Liabilities as per consolidated EHEERBERITNERE
balance sheet
As at 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=1—H
Trade payables (Note 23) BT 8 S8R0 (i3 23) 3,678,585
Other payables Hit fER R 611,311
Borrowings (Note 25) EEAUGER) 8,355,004
Other long-term payables (Note 26) Hit R RT3 (FEE26) 141,136
Amounts due to related parties (Note 42(c)) & 1< BB 5 700 (PRt 42(c)) 143,309
Total st 12,929,345
As at 31 December 2011 R-B——&+-A=1+—H
Trade payables (Note 23) FERE 582 (M35 23) 2,106,100
Other payables HAERERR 368,433
Borrowings (Note 25) B (M 25) 7,513,384
Other long-term payables (Note 26) H = B3 (P 26) 357,063
Amounts due to related parties (Note 42(c)) 1 BB 7 R (Rt 42(c)) 118,451
Total 4=t 10,463,431
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(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12. €@ IA(ZRER) - FEERER

AND COMPANY (continued) 7 (&)
The Company AAHE
Available-
Loans and for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
ERR AHEE
A SREE @5t
Assets as per company AEEERERFTEE

balance sheet
As at 31 December 2012 RZE-—%+=A=+-A
Available-for-sale AftHE & E (M 15)

financial assets (Note 15) - 47,675 47,675
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17) BB 5 R EERT (FE17) 2,736,279 - 2,736,279
Deposits and other receivables s RAM IR

(Note 18) (£ 18) 1,531 - 1,531
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) T HIRI T (13 20) 201,685 = 201,685
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) R kReSEN (FiF20) 39,866 = 39,866
Total a:t 2,979,361 47,675 3,027,036

Available-
Loans and for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
ERR AHEE
A tREE @5t
Assets as per company balance sheet AREEEBERATEE
As at 31 December 2011 R_E——F+-A=+—H
Available-for-sale At E S RAE (i 15)

financial assets (Note 15) - 58,371 58,371
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17) EUE 5 R EERR (MiFE17) 3,310,668 = 3,310,668
Deposits and other receivables e REMEKERR (Fi18)

(Note 18) 69,196 - 69,196
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) SR HIRITE R (FiFE20) 113,296 - 113,296
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) ReRREEM (FE20) 172,641 - 172,641
Total @zt 3,665,801 58,371 3,724,172
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(BREEEAIN  FTEEIUNARBTLAEN) BE-T——F+-A=T—HLEFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12. €T E (RER) - XXEERAQ
AND COMPANY (continued) (&)
The Company (continued) RATE (&)

Financial liabilities
measured at

amortised cost
REBHERATE
ZERER
Liabilities as per company balance sheet ATEEAERMTAE
As at 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=1—H
Trade payables (Note 23) FERTE 5 B3 (B3 23) 160,974
Borrowings (Note 25) EEAUGER) 5,554,133
Total fast 5,715,107
As at 31 December 2011 R-E—&+-f=1—H
Trade payables (Note 23) FER B S8R (P 23) 58,854
Borrowings (Note 25) &5 (P 25) 6,338,549
Total 5 6,397,403
13. CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 13. SRIEENEERR
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due HARBHINE A BENSREENS
nor impaired can be assessed by types of the financial assets EARRA RS REEER - WRE
and by reference to historical information about counterparty B R H#8 /R L R R 2 B R ETTET
default rates. The Group categorised the trade, notes fti o REBEEIME S - EEERF
receivables and loan receivables as follows: FEUNE RS REINT -
U Group 1 - Bank acceptance notes o E—X-RITAGEE
° Group 2 - Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables o H - EUBEERE /N
due from customers with no defaults in the past HNEEHNEIKEZE S « EBEBER
KW E R
° Group 3 — Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables o FoMH-EUBEXSBEHNK
due from customers with some defaults in the past IHENEPHERE S  EiE
R M ERE R
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(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

13. CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 13. SREENESEMRR(E)

Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables EUE 5 - ZEERREWRER
2012 2011
—F-=F —F—%
Group 1 F8 5,702,736 3,830,658
Group 2 F-H 1,503,613 716,181
Group 3 FE=4 - _

7,206,349 4,546,839

The credit quality of ‘Available-for-sale financial assets’, AEEAHEEEcREE | [Ee
‘Deposits and other receivables’ and ‘Amounts due from R E AR BR ] K [ e UL Ra B 77 X
related parties’ of the Group is disclosed in Notes 15, 18 and B MEERES BIRHE1S - 18 &
42(c) respectively. 42(c) 155 o
The Group categorises cash in banks as follows: REEGEBITFRDENT -
e Group 1 —Major international banks o FH-TEERRIT
e Group 2 - Listed banks in the PRC o  FEM—hB ETIRIT
e Group 3 - Subsidiary of listed banks and other banks in o F=X-—E ETRITH B
the PRC B R H M IRTT

The Directors considered the credit risks in respect of cash in BHREHESEEEFTHRSAD
banks and bank deposits with financial institution are relatively BRTRPREH ARIET  HES
minimum as each counter party either bears a high credit rating REFHRSRIMENIRTIRS &R
or is state-owned bank and large local banks in the PRC. TEREERBIRE -
Cash in banks and bank deposits RTINS MIRTTIEA

Group Company

rEE ¥ NNE|

2012 2011 2012 2011

T 22— B —T——F

Group 1 F—H8 352,178 273,104 187,748 170,898
Group 2 F 48 1,570,143 1,619,823 53,774 115,034
Group 3 E=48 55,506 57,689 - =

1,977,827 1,850,616 241,522 285,932
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(RREEBEIN  FESEIUARETTASN) HE-T——F+-A=t—HILEE
14. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND HELD 14, BEHRRBEHEYE - KEE
FOR SALE - GROUP

2012 2011
—E——f ==t

Properties under development comprise:  ZEFRYIEEIE ¢

— Construction costs —FERRAAN 140,828 170,780
— Land use rights — b { R E 136,268 193,440
— Interests capitalised —BAREF B 5,847 4,637
282,943 368,857
Completed properties held for sale BIEHENTIME 105,070 -
388,013 368,857
The properties under development and held for sale are all BEPRFELENYMEDGMRSP
located in the PRC. The related land use rights are on leases o MR Tt AREE B A40E 70
of 40 to 70 years. Fo
2012 2011
—E-——F —T—%F

Properties under development comprised:  ZEEFYIEBLE

Expected to be completed and TEERR S 12 118 A bATR
available for sale EIRAHHE
after more than 12 months 282,943 368,857
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(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 15, AIHHESREE

The Group REE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T—%F
Unlisted equity interests (a) JEETHERS () 297,705 252,705
Additions INE - 45,000
Less: provision for impairment (b) W B () (188,100) (188,100)
Net FE 109,605 109,605
Listed equity interests (c) TR (C) 58,371 51,567
(Less)/add: fair value (losses)/gains CR),/pn = A
transfer (from)/to equity (Note 22) (E518), Wi’
(B)/ == (fiz22) (10,696) 6,804
Net HE 47,675 58,371
Total RET 157,280 167,976

(@)

The Group’s unlisted equity interests mainly comprised
an investment amounted to RMB 188 million in a 51%
equity interest in Qianxi County Jinjin Mine Co., Ltd.
(“Jinjin Mine”), and an investment amounted to RMB
95 million in a 10% equity interest in Caofeidian Port
Company Limited. The investee companies are both
operating in the PRC.

As the above investments do not have any quoted
market price in an active market, the range of reasonable
fair value estimate is so significant and the probabilities
of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed, the Directors are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be reliably measured. Therefore, these
investments are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

AEEMFLTEEEZEDRE
AARKEA188EILIERMBEE
AZRESEEARAA(ES
T2 ) H951% R AE R IA A R
9,500 B iR E ARG E L E IR
B OARAF R 10% KK ©
ZEEREN R RN R HE
@o

R B B RE B IS5 &
TEHEHRE 2R EESE
EEtEEEEER  mMY&
AR LS EED
A MEER/EAAEE
EAAEAE At ZFER
BREARBETIR (0F) °
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(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

The Group (continued)

(b) Regarding the investment in Jinjin Mine, the major
asset of Jinjin Mine is the mining rights of an iron mine
in Qianxi County. In December 2008, Jinxi Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group, entered into certain cooperation
agreements (the “Cooperation Agreements”) with a
third-party shareholder of Jinjin Mine. Pursuant to the
Cooperation Agreements, from the incorporation date
of 5 August 2008 to 31 January 2011 (“Lease Period”),
Jinxi Limited conveyed to the third-party shareholder
of Jinjin Mine (“Lessee 1”) all the voting rights on the
financial and operating policies of Jinjin Mine. In August
2010, the Lease Period was extended to 30 September
2011. In September 2011, Jinxi Limited entered into a
cooperation agreement with another third-party, Hebei
Dong Industry Corporation (Group) (“Dong Company”)
(“Lessee 2”), pursuant to which Jinxi Limited conveyed to
Dong Company all the voting rights on the financial and
operating policies of Jinjin Mine from September 2011 to
September 2012,

The lessees were exclusively entitled to the profit or loss
and net assets accumulated during the lease periods in
return for paying lease fees to Jinxi Limited. The lessees
were also responsible for preserving and increasing
the value of the net assets of Jinjin Mine at the end of
lease periods. The lease fees were determined based
on the local iron powder market price and are subject to
adjustments quarterly.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 15. AIHEHESREE (&)

(continued)
The Group (continued) REE(E)
In the opinion of the Directors, the Group is not able BERE A& lj’[T\Ab%\Tiﬁ

EBETEEANEAFE  F

to exercise any significant influence on Jinjin Mine
and therefore the investment in Jinjin Mine has been
recognised as available-for-sale financial assets for the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

The investment in Jinjn Mine has been fully provided for
impairment by the Directors of the Company since 31
December 2011 given that most of the lease fee income
have been long past due and not received, and that the
recoverability of investment from the mining rights has
become increasingly uncertain as the licence of mining
rights is unlikely to be obtained.

The Group’s listed equity interest comprised an
investment in 600,000,000 ordinary shares, representing
approximately 4.67% shareholding of Asia Energy
Logistics Group Limited, a company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The fair value of the listed equity interest was determined
on the basis of its quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date.

- BEZF - Z_FR=F
**$+ZHE+*E¢$§
EERNESBEENRERT
HHESHEE

ENHEERAKAE RHEH
BHARKE - BZEHEER
B ) AT UK (B M R R A R ) B
BB ST - AR
AEEE=-ZZ——F+=A
=St BREEREAEELRE
ZREFHR SRR -

AEEN ETEZB2ERE
600,000,000 A% X @M% + {22 M
RSB AERAR (—HE
ERBMERIMBR AR ER
ETHRE]) ) 4.67% IR °

ETREAABEETIBREER
& MHHREETE °
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(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 15. AHHESREE (&)
(continued)
The Company KA
2012 2011
—F--F T —F
Listed equity interest FTikERS 58,371 51,567
(Less)/add: fair value (losses)/gains GR),/pn - AAEE(EE)
transfer (from)/to equity SR (8) B (10,696) 6,804
Net SFE 47,675 58,371
16. INVENTORIES - GROUP 16. FE—FK£H
2012 2011
—E——fF ==t
Raw materials and materials in-transit R R RS 2,239,405 3,690,877
Work-in-progress R 259,445 394,369
Finished goods 2% T 693,708 530,657

As at 31 December 2012, inventories with a net book value
of RMB 122 million (2011: RMB 61 million) were pledged as
security for the Group’s notes payable (Notes 23).

The cost of inventories recognised in cost of sales amounted
to RMB 34,720 million (2011: RMB 35,995 million).

A loss of RMB 108 million in respect of the written-down of
inventories to their net realisable values in 2011 was written
back for the year ended 31 December 2012. These amounts
have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the income statement.
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(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 17.
The Group
Non-current R
Trade receivables (a) JEUE 5 BR K (@)
Current E
Trade receivables JEUE 5 8RR
Less: impairment provision W EE SR
for trade receivables (Note 31) TR ERE M (FiEES1)
Trade receivables — net JEUWE 5 R — 5
Notes receivable (b) FEWIEE (0)
Total of trade and notes receivables, JEWE FER AN IR ABEE
net of provision R

(@ The non-current trade receivables represented the
receivables due from a third party for the provision
of construction services. The trade receivables are
repayable within two years and bear interest at a rate of
6.3% per annum.

(b) Asat 31 December 2012, notes receivable were all bank
acceptance notes, of which approximately RMB 853
million (2011: RMB 147 million) and RMB 1,347 million
(2011: RMB 14 million) were pledged as security for the
Group’s notes payable (Note 23) and borrowings (Note
25) respectively.

The settlement of the notes receivable were guaranteed
by banks with maturity dates within six months and the
credit risks of the notes receivables are considered low.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the carrying amount of the
Group’s trade and notes receivables approximated their fair
values.

Except for the non-current trade receivables as mentioned
above, the credit policy usually adopted by the Group for the
sales of products to customers is to deliver goods either upon
receipt in cash or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes with
the maturity dates within six months.

EBWEZRAREE
rEH
2012 2011
—E——F —T——4F
576,155 -
550,827 399,788
(3,069) (3,607)
547,758 396,181

5,702,736 3,830,658

6,250,494 4,226,839

6,826,649 4,226,839

(@) IERBEKEZRAAMERT
TERRIGH EIE =T FRIE - B
B2 RFBNMENEEBIRF
MEB6.3% T8 °

b) R=ZT—=—F+=ZA=+—8"
U= AR TR R IESE - H
FEEARERSBRNER
(PdE23) KA 3k M7k 25) K i
MR EE S B A4 AREES.53
BL(ZE——%F : AR1.47
Bix) R ARE1S47TETL (=
——&F : AR¥1,40087T) °

R EZE 2 HI B8 A LA
N HEERRTERREER
RARAE BIK o

R-BE——FR-_ZF——F+=H
=+—H  ARENERE SRR K
SEMEMELURAAEE -

B £ 2 FER B U E 5 AR
S REBEHITHNEMRBEEEER
R BESNWEIREHEBBEEN
@A AR B RITA R EZR AR R
& -
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(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. BEWESERRRERE (&)

The Group (continued) REEE (4F)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the ageing analysis of the
gross amount of trade and notes receivables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAMA
4-6 months 42618 A
7-12 months 7&E 1218 A

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables amounted to RMB
214 million (2011: RMB 40 million) were secured by letters
of credit issued by third party customers, and those trade
receivables amounted to RMB 576 million (2011: nil) were
secured by the pledge of property, plant and equipment of a
third-party customer of RMB 912 million.

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of RMB 222 million
(2011: RMB 345 million) were past due but not impaired.
These receivables to a number of independent customers
with no recent history of default. The Directors considered that
trade receivables which are past due within three months are
not impaired. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables
was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAA
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RZE——FR=_ZF——F+_H8
=t+—8 BREBZEALZIEER

HIRREE DT T

2012 2011
—B-—F %
3,538,113 2,293,212
3,254,352 1,900,654

37,253 36,580
6,829,718 4,230,446

RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—H" AF
=AERFRANEAZBEERANE
KB ZERBARKE214ETL(ZF
——F: AR®4000&87T) mE
BARKEI12EBITHME  BE&&
HREZATPIEEFNEKE SR
REANREST6BIT( =T ——&F

T)-

R-_ZT——F+_fF=+—H 2@
HEMBEMNEWRE SRR AR
228 (ZE——F : AR¥3.45
fBr) o ZERWHIES R Z E&E
REHRESCHENBIRS - ES
RAEBIPTERE=EANEKE ZE
HIERRE - Z5EWE S BERAER
BT ¢

2012 2011
—E-——F —T—%F

211,914 344,578
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(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued) 17.

The Group (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and notes
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

FE E 5 R R RE (&)

&M (E)

AEEREE SRR ERBNREE
TIA TSI G SEAL -

RMB
uss$

The Company

Trade receivables from third parties
Trade receivables from subsidiaries

AR
E

FERE =718 BIRK
FEUPM B X B & B ARK

2012 2011
—E——F =%
6,552,346 3,992,912

277,372 237,534
6,829,718 4,230,446
¥iNN|

2012 2011
—EB——F —F—%F

162,345 195,068
2,573,934 3,115,600
2,736,279 3,310,668
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(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. FAMEIE - REREMERESR

RECEIVABLES
The Group REH
2012 2011
—ET—_fF —T
Non-current FERED
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEYE BENEE
plant and equipment (i) R TERTFRIE () 456,058 436,818
Receivables from operating lease (ii) BT SR FEUERIA (i) 77,533 102,829
Less: Impairment provision of prepayments, & : TE{T30IE « S REM
deposits and other receivables FEWBR R 2 R B (77,533) -
456,058 539,647
Current B
Prepayments for purchase of inventories BEEFENTEMNIIE 1,208,632 1,076,465
Deposits and other receivables (i) T o H b JrE W BR 3 iii) 605,665 907,876
Receivables from operating lease, LKL E R W RIE
current portion (ii) RENEBS (ii) 32,617 32,617
Prepaid expense TEfT &R 23,621 10,378
Less: Impairment provision of prepayments, & : TE{T30IE « S R EM
deposits and other receivables FEWBR R 2 R B (82,613) (21,309)
1,787,922 2,006,031
2,243,980 2,545,678

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s deposits and other receivables approximated their
fair values.

As at 31 December 2012, the impairment provision of
prepayments, deposits and other receivable composed
of the impairment provision of RMB 29 million for certain
advance payments for purchase of raw materials (2011:
nil), the impairment provision of RMB 21 million for certain
advance payments for mining rights of iron ore (2011: RMB 21
million) and the impairment provision of RMB 110 million for
receivables for operating lease (2011: nil). As at 31 December
2012, the Directors concluded that there was significant
uncertainty of recovering the above advance payments and
receivables.
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(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group (continued)

Details of certain prepayment, deposits and other receivables

are set out below:

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had an outstanding
debt receivable from Tangshan Fengrun Hengfeng
Iron and Steel Company Limited (“Hengfeng Iron and
Steel”), a third party, amounting to RMB 456 million
approximately. Pursuant to the original letter of intent and
the subsequent supplementary letters of intent entered
into with Zhengda Iron and Steel and Hengfeng Iron
and Steel on 9 November 2011, 5 July 2012 and 28
December 2012, the Group has the intention to acquire
part of the assets from Hengfeng Iron and Steel, and
the outstanding debt receivable will form part of the
consideration for the intended acquisition. This intended
acquisition of assets is subject to entering into of a formal
agreement and the completion of assets appraisal and
due diligence review to the satisfaction of the Group.

18.

ANRE - BEREMERER
(&)

FEM(E)

FTHEMR - e REMRYIRK
Z BRI

) RZEBE—=—F+=—A=+—
H -BElumEgiEegmEs
RAR([MELME ) (F=4)
MAAEBMOERSELHAA
RE456EBT  RER =T
——%+—ANB ZF—=
FrARABR-_ZE——F+=
A+ N\BmhEEiiaiEe
HgHETNREMERBED
HRERE  AEEFZWE
EEMBENBMHEE - MEK
B JRE LT 75 1 1 A AT 1 K B A
BREZEP G - Zar 2K
BHNEEFFI L EXNBEK
BREAREERBEHZEERG
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(=B8N

FrE &R AARE T T AEA)

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group (continued)

(i)

Pursuant to agreements entered into in 2011, Jinxi
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, paid considerations
totalling approximately RMB 228 million and obtained
51% equity interests in each of five companies and
the mining rights of Qianxi Gaojiadian Iron Mine (the
“Gao Jia Dian Mine”). In January 2011, pursuant to
a cooperation agreement entered with a third-party
individual (the “Consignee”), from 1 March 2011 to
28 February 2017 (the “Grant Period”), Jinxi Limited
conveyed to the Consignee all the voting rights relating to
the financial and operating policies of the five companies,
Tangshan Jinxi Mining Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group, as well as the mining rights of Gao Jia
Dian Mine. The Consignee is exclusively entitled to the
profit and net assets accumulated by the six companies
and the mining rights of Gao Jia Dian Mine during the
Grant Period. As a return, the Consignee pays cash
consideration of RMB 33 million annually during the
Grant Period and a deposit of RMB 10 million which will
offset the last payment in 2017.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group regarded
this as effectively disposed of its equity interests in the
six companies and the mining rights of Gao Jia Dian
Mine in return for a long-term lease fee receivable from
the Consignee. Accordingly, the Group recognized an
asset of receivable from operating lease which was
determined based on the present value of the total cash
receivable, amounting to approximately RMB 179 million
at inception of the lease on 1 March 2011, and a loss
of RMB 49 million during the year ended 31 December
2011.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) BE- T —F+tZA=T—HLEE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. ARZE . B4R EEEKEZ

RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group (continued)

(&)
EME(E)

(i)

(i)

(continued)

The receivables from the consignee has been fully
provided for impairment by the Directors of the Company
as at 31 December 2012 given that the consignee was
experiencing significant financial difficulty at the end of
the reporting period and default in a scheduled payment
subsequently.

Included in current deposits and other receivable as
at 31 December 2011 was an amount of RMB 486
million receivable from Qianxi County Jinxi Wan Tong
Ductile Iron Pipes Co., Ltd. (“Jinxi Wantong”), the then
related party and now a third party as the owner of the
Company had been changed to a third party in 2011.
The receivables were secured by a pledge of the fixed
assets of Jinxi Wantong amounted to RMB 1,072
million, interest bearing at a rate of 6.56% per annum
and repayable within one year. During the year ended
31 December 2012, Jinxi Limited, a subsidiary of the
Group, acquired certain property, plant and equipment
amounting to approximately RMB 734 million from Jinxi
Wantong, and the receivables of RMB 486 million were
used as part of the cash consideration.

As at December 2012, deposits and other receivables
included two guaranteed loans in aggregated amount of
RMB 148 million to a third party, bore interest at a rate of
6.98% per annum and repaid in full within one year.

The Company

Prepayments for purchase of inventories
Deposits and other receivables

BEEFENANTR
Bme R REKERR

i (&)

ENZREIRBRERRERE
KNEFER N B BE %2 R R
iTER=ZFE—=—F+=A8
=+—H'ARREBREYK
REFREZREFIREER
1# o

(i) MERBAZEABAIEEE
BRAR(EAER] B8
2By BEAE=7H "
AR HEBEAER T ——
FERBE=ZF)RBEARE
4.86B T AR E—F+=
A=Z+—Bzf#Ee REM
FEUWBR SRR o 32 E B URGKIBTY
HEABSRZETEEAR
10.7218 7o i 8K 38 - #R F FI &
6.56% 5T E RN —FREE - N
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=1+—
HIEFE  2ERE(AEEZ
MEBAR) BEmERkEET
Y - BB REBBEHARET.34
Bt - MEKERRA R 4.8618
TRERSRE 225 o

RZE—=—&FE+=_A=+—
H  ZeREMEWRERDE
mM—BE=ZFEHZMEER
EREHEARYA48ET &
FHE6.98%5 R EAR—FNR
BEEER -

KAF
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
1,029 16,582
1,531 69,196
2,560 85,778
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

FrE £ AARE T T AEA)

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES - GROUP

Non-Current JERED
Loan receivable (i) FECE R (i)
Current RE

Loan receivables (i) JFE E 3 (i)

Less: impairment provision (Note 39)

Total loan receivables

(i

FEWERE AR

The entrusted non-current loan receivable of RMB 300
million is secured by a pledge of certain property, plant and
equipment of the borrower, bears interest at a rate of 12%
per annum, and will be repaid in full in July 2014.

The current loan receivables comprised RMB 50 million
(2011: nil) entrusted loan receivable which is secured
by a pledge of certain property, plant and equipment
of the borrower and bears interest at a rate of 20% per
annum; RMB 10 million (2011: nil) loan receivable which
is guaranteed by a third party and bears interest at a rate
of 16.8% per annum; and RMB 20 million (2011: RMB
20 million) loan receivable which is unsecured and bears
interest at a rate of 20% per annum. The loan receivables
will be repaid within one year.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the carrying amounts of

loan receivables approximated their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED 20.

BANK BALANCES

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEIRARBTTREN)

B Ot I IRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
 E_E——F+-A=+—HIEE

RERASEEWUARZRHEIRT

The Group

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted bank balances

As at 31 December 2012, restricted bank balances composed
of the following items:

(@)

Approximately RMB 334.9 million (2011: RMB 164.5
million) were pledged as security for issuing notes
payable of the Group (Note 23);

Approximately US$ 39.41 million (RMB 247.7 million
equivalent) (2011: US$ 19.76 million (RMB 124.4 million
equivalent)) and RMB 4.1 million (2011: RMB 1.7 million)
were pledged as security for issuing letters of credit of
the Group; and

Approximately RMB 500.4 million were pledged as
security for current borrowings of the Group (2011: RMB
600.8 million) (Note 25); and

Approximately RMB 22.8 million was withheld by and
in custody of a court. In August 2012, a bank filed a
lawsuit against a subsidiary of the Company and other
defendants, alleging that the subsidiary has breached
certain terms of an agreement. Under the request of the
bank, RMB 22.8 million was withheld by and in custody
of the court and this amount will be used to settle the loss
claimed by the bank if the court rules the allegation has
merits (Note 24).

Eek

AEE
2012 2011
—E—C—fF T
B4 RIESEEY 879,005 965,082
PR HIERTTAE AR 1,109,794 891,396
1,988,799 1,856,478
R-ZE——F+=-_A=+—H " ' 2R

BRI TAEERETE THIRIA

(@)

BARAREBRENZE (T
23) AL A R 3.849 18T
(Z2——F: AR¥K1.64518
JT)

B AR EA S B S A E MR
HETIIMNBIL(FHERAR
Wo4T7TBL)(ZE—— &
E701,976 Bt (FHERARK
1244870 )) R AR %4108
T(ZE——F : AR#1708
TL) &

BEAAEEREER(KE25)
MR A REES.004BL(=F
——4F : AR¥6.008(27T) : &

AR 2,280 & T AL 183
MEE R-_T——FN\A -
—REBTRART —KHBEA
A REME SRR EE
KB RARERBENE TIE
e BEBEZRFTER AR
¥ 2,280 8 7L A BT {188 I R
HEE BWERHTIERAE
B ZBBEEARGEEZRE
TRERNEE (KiE24) -
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t1 HLFE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED 20. RERFESEZEYURZRFILIT

BANK BALANCES (continued) e (E)
The Group (continued) REE(E)
The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and Re MRS FEEMARZRAIEITLE
restricted bank balances are denominated in the following FREVEREETI A TSI E¥ AN
currencies:
2012 2011

—E-C-F %
RMB AR 1,587,559 1,420,848
us$ T 389,637 433,355
HK$ BT 11,603 2,275

1,988,799 1,856,478

The Company b /N
2012 2011
—EB——F —F—%F
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRESZEY 39,866 172,641
Restricted bank balances R IR T AR 201,685 113,296
241,551 285,937
As at 31 December 2012, restricted bank balances RZZBE——F+-_A=+—H BA
amounted to approximately US$ 32.1 million (RMB 201.7 B 15 AR M & F 8 2R B RIT4E 88
million equivalent) (2011: US$ 18 million (RMB 113.3 million #32108 & (HER AR 2.017
equivalent)) were pledged as security for issuing letters of Br) (ZZF——%F : 1,800& %7 (48
credit. ERARMA1.183187T)) °
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B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) BE- T —F+t-A=T—"HLEE

SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM - GROUP AND 21. BARGEE-FAEBERAAF
COMPANY
Amount
kx-}
Number
of shares Ordinary Share
(thousands) shares premium Total
RIEE
(FR&) EER R EE Bt
At 1 January 2011 R-E——%—-F—H 2,929,725 311,715 2,190,291 2,502,006
At 31 December 2011 R-B——&E+-A=+-H 2,929,725 311,715 2,190,291 2,502,006
Employee share option scheme: EEERETE
- issuance of shares (Note 22(c)) — i 317 (FiFE22(c) 700 57 796 853
At 31 December 2012 R=-B-——-%+-HA=+—H 2,930,425 311,772 2,191,087 2,502,859

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the total number of
authorised ordinary shares is 5,000,000,000 shares with a par
value of HK$ 0.1 per share.

As at 31 December 2012, the number of issued and fully
paid ordinary shares is 2,930,425,000 shares (2011:
2,929,725,000 shares).

R_E——FR T ——F+=
A=+—B ZFrETBRLHEA
5,000,000,000 i &ML EI{E 0.1 78 T AY

Bedn o

RZE—Z—ZF+=_HA=+—H"
ERETRARCEBRORKRHOEE
#2,930,425,000% ( = & — — £ :
2,929,725,000 f%) °
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

E_T -+ -A=t—HILFE

22. OTHER RESERVES 22, Hibf#E
The Group KEE
Available-
for-sale
Merger ~ Capital Statutory financial
reserve  surplus  reserve  Options  assets Total
AHLE
afifE EADE icRE  BRE SREE a3t
(a) (b) (c)
Balance at 1 January 2011 R-E--E-B-Afiis (699) 19,144 1,004,948 254,936 - 1278429
Profit appropriation Yyl - - 3792 - - 3R
Employes share option scheme [EEHERETE
- Value of employee senvice (Note 32)  — (B & MRt B (& (R 32) - - - 53262 - 53262
Fair value gains on avallable-for- A HESHEED
sale financial assets (Note 1) DAk (HE15) - - - - 6804 6,804
Balance at 31 December 2011 R-B-——-FE+-A=1+-AMN&E (699 19,144 1,036,740 308,198 6,804 1,370,287
Profit appropriation AvLraL - - 72359 - - 72359
Employee share option scheme [ESEREHE
- Value of employee senvice (Note 32)  —(EE IRTse0B(E (fifE 32) - - - 72205 - T22%
Fair valug losses on available-for- tHELHEE
sale financial assets (Note 15) 2% EEEE (3 15) - - - - (1069)  (10698)
Changes in ownership interests ErHEEHIENERT
in a subsidlary without change EERNELAMFARER
of control - (1029) - - - (1029)
Balance at 31 December 2012 W-Z-—E+-A=+-AlER 599) 8849 1109099 380423  (3892) 1493880
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B Ot I IRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_Z——_Ft-A=T—HILFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEIRARBTTREN)

22. OTHER RESERVES (continued) 22, HitifEE (&)
The Group (continued) REEE ()
(@  Merger reserve @ EHFEE

The merger reserve of the Group represents the

difference between the nominal value of the shares of

the subsidiaries that had been acquired and the nominal

AEENAGHERIED KB
BrrREmOEERREES
RBBAEEMERTHARRRK

value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange MEBENZERE °
therefore pursuant to the Reorganisation.
(b)  Statutory reserve (o) EERFE

(i) Statutory surplus reserves (i) EEZR&RFE
In accordance with the PRC regulations and the BEFRBLER R AEER
Articles of the Association of certain subsidiaries EHEFRNE THBEA
of the Group registered in the PRC, before AIMABER  BFEHIK
distributing the net profit of each year, these PRC Fom A AT ZE A BB
subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of their NERER e E AR
statutory net profit for the year after offsetting any EEHEEFREER - A
prior year's losses as determined under the PRC BEFEETEF &N
accounting regulations to the statutory surplus 10% 25 TEHGRREE
reserve fund. When the balance of such reserve HEEZREBEZERARN
reaches 50% of the share capital, any further 50% A1k AR E S
appropriation is optional. B IR SR -
The statutory surplus reserve fund can be utilised VAT BERFEE R R EH B
to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus FERBEEEITAIR °
shares. However, such statutory surplus reserve ST » 5% TE B ER T
fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of AR BITIRAERZ A AR
the entity’s share capital after such issuance. RHY D 25% ©

(i) Discretionary reserves i) EZRE

The appropriation of discretionary reserve fund
is proposed by Board of the PRC subsidiaries,
and approved by the shareholder’s meeting. The
discretionary reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or increase share capital.

EERENDETI AT E
MERRNESRER
WA R A G ML o
ERREERERHEBE
F 2 BB A EIE AR
o
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(=B8N

FrE £ AARE T T AEA)

22. OTHER RESERVES (continued)

The Group (continued)

(©

Employee share option scheme

As approved by the Company’s Board meeting, certain
share options were granted to selected directors and
employees on 30 June 2006 and 26 October 2007
(“Date of Grant”), in an aggregate of 24,200,000 shares
and 89,700,000 shares respectively. The options are
exercisable at any time during the period no later than
ten years from the Date of Grant at the exercise prices
of HK$ 1.76 and HK$ 5.24 per share respectively.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

As approved by the Company’s Board meeting, certain
share options were granted to selected directors and
employees on 24 February 2009, 11 May 2009 and
29 December 2009, in an aggregate of 21,200,000
shares, 6,600,000 shares and 148,780,000 shares
at an exercise price of HK$ 1.39 per share, HK$
1.50 per share and HK$ 2.84 per share respectively.
These options are exercisable during several periods.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

As approved by the Company’s Board meeting, certain
share options were granted to selected directors and
employees on 20 December 2010 and 24 December
2010, in an aggregate of 6,000,000 shares, and
47,100,000 shares at an exercise price of HK$ 3.00
per share and HK$ 3.182 per share respectively.
These options are exercisable during several periods.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) BE- T —F+t-A=T—"HLEE

22. OTHER RESERVES (continued)

The Group (continued)

(©)

Employee share option scheme (continued)

As approved by the Company’s Board meeting, certain
share options were granted to selected directors and
employees on 14 January 2011 and 27 April 2010,
in an aggregate of 800,000 shares and 9,800,000
shares at the exercise prices of HK$ 3.20 per share
and HK$ 3.08 per share respectively. These options are
exercisable during several periods. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
the options in cash.

All relevant directors and employees have accepted the
share options above.

As approved by the Company’s Board meeting,
share options were granted to selected directors
and employees on 30 March 2012 (“Scheme A”), in
an aggregate of 75,370,000 shares at the exercise
prices of HK$ 2.03 per share. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
options in cash.

The options are exercisable during the following periods:

(i) up to 60% of the options on or after 30 March
2012;

(i) up to further 80% of the options on or after 30
March 2013;

(i) all the remaining options on or after 30 march
2014;

22,

Hitb i ()
REM ()
€ EEBKER(E)

KARNREZRGRMAER
KRKENEEREEER =
—F—At+mHBAR=_ZT—F
FOA-_++HERTETE
f&#E « % KA 800,000 AR AZ 7
19,800,000 &A% 10 + 1T{EE S
Al & &% 3.2078 7t & &A% 3.08
BT e ZEERENE THHE
B0 T LALTE o AN 52 B0 4 LA
REWOREEEBRENETE
SHEE R o

EREEEEREEAEM L
AFBRAE

BARNRIZEZREHMLE B
—E——HF=-ZA=+HRAK
hBECZESRKREERLAHR
75,370,000 % A% 17 # i% A% 42
(TEr8AD - TEERAER
2038 AKEIWENR &
% [0 X 45 B BB AR 1) 5 E S i
R

BRI R TIHEAT AT
% :

() NZTE—=—HE=A=1+H
2 B1TIE A% 60% HIiE
FscHEE

iy MZE—=F=A=+H
R EITEERZ I
80% AR

iy M-ZE-—MNF=RA=+H
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#
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

22. OTHER RESERVES (continued)

The Group (continued)

(©

Employee share option scheme (continued)

and in each case, not later than 19 December 2020.

In March 2012, all relevant directors and employees have
accepted the share options.

As approved by the Company’s Special General
Meeting, share options were granted to a director on 30
May 2012 (“Scheme B”), in an aggregate of 9,800,000
shares at the exercise prices of HK$ 2.03 per share.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash. The options are
exercisable during the following periods:

(i) up to 33% of the options on or after 30 May 2012;

(i) up to further 66% of the options on or after 30 May
2013;

(iiy  all the remaining options on or after 30 May 2014;

and in each case, not later than 19 December 2020.

In December 2012, the director has accepted the share
options.
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B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) BE- T —F+t-A=T—"HLEE

22. OTHER RESERVES (continued) 22,

The Group (continued)

(©)

Employee share option scheme (continued)
The fair value of options granted during the year ended
31 December 2012 were determined by using the

Binomial valuation model, and the significant inputs into
the model were as follows:

Scheme gl

Share price at the grant date (HK$) 4 B HIRRH B GBT)

Volatility I

Expected dividends paid out rate TEFHR B X

Annual risk-free interest rate FEERRFIR

Fair value in HK$ (million) LA(E&)BITAEN
WAREE

RMB equivalent (million) ARBEZE(ES)

Hitb i ()
&M (E)
€ EEBKER(E)

REBEE-ZZFT——F+=H
=+ BLEFERBHBEREDN
AREEDRAB BN GEEE
AMEE  RBAZEXNE
TR -

A B

2.03 2.08
55.820% 55.520%
4.98% 5.13%
1.070% 0.864%
57,654 7,238
46,735 5,901
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

FrE £ AARE T T AEA)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE_ZT——F+_A=1+—HLFE

22. OTHER RESERVES (continued) 22, HitifEE (&)
The Group (continued) REE (4Z)
(c) Employee share option scheme (continued) © IEEERED(E)
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of 1 BRFE 5T A% (B Bl 3R A 12 X R =
expected share price returns is based on statistical FratE/kE - TiRIBEA R R
analysis of daily share prices of the Company and other FEMAIEE R R D BIRBE
comparable companies over the last 453 weeks and 442 4531 2 Hi R 442 8 £ i &9
weeks respectively. See Note 32 for the total expense AREMNRTERT DT E M
recognised in the consolidated income statement for B-EHEE  BEERAEEWR
share options granted to the directors, employees and A TER BB R ERE 05 E
eligible persons. RERNERET - F20HME
32 -
Movements in the number of share options outstanding mMARITERERESE REHE
and their related weighted average exercise prices were RAINET I TEENZE e T
as follows:
2012 2011
—E-=F —=—%

Average Average

exercise Number exercise Number

price per of options price per of options

share in HK$ (thousands) share in HK$  (thousands)
TR G BARARAHY
FEHTHEE BREZE THIRE BREZE
(#&7T) (F14) (B7T) (F)

At 1 January R—H—H 2.76 230,150 2.74 222,250
Granted B 2.03 85,170 3.09 10,600
Exercised B171E 1.50 (700) - -
Lapsed BERA 2.40 (5,604) 2.82 (2,700)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 2.57 309,016 2.76 230,150
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B EBRANARET T AEN)

(B

22. OTHER RESERVES (continued)

The Group (continued)

(©)

HAEHI

Employee share option scheme (continued)

Share options outstanding at 31 December 2012 and

2011 have the following expiry date and exercise prices

as follows:

Expiry date
& B 5A

23 February 2019
10 May 2019

28 December 2019
16 May 2016

19 December 2020
18 January 2021
27 March 2021

19 December 2020
19 December 2020

T

7

=Ll

—_—

— = —

=

— = —

=

— = —

—_—

22,

B Ot I IRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_Z——_Ft-A=T—HILFE

HAitf# 8 (2)

&M (E)

(©)

Exercise price

TEE

HKS$ per share

SRET

NWE-_A=+=H 1.39
—hWERATH 1.50
—n¢+—ﬂ—+ﬂa 2.84
—~FRA+H 3.00
ZTE+TZATIA 3.18
—F—A+=8 3.20
—#F=RA=++H 3.08
ZTE+TZATIA 2.03
ZEF+ZA+NHA 2.03

==

=

RERBRE S (7))

R-ZF——FR-FT——F
TZAZ T —BERITENE
B Em B B RATEENT

Number of options

(thousands)

BREHE (T6)
2012 2011
—E-—F —T—%F
20,500 20,500
4,600 6,100
141,650 141,650
6,000 6,000
43,136 45,300
800 800
9,800 9,800
72,730 -
9,800 -
309,016 230,150
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t1 HLFE

22. OTHER RESERVES (continued) 22, HitifEE (&)
The Company i/
Available-for-
sale financial
Options assets Total
AHHE
AR CREE st
Balance at 1 January 2011 R-B——E—B—AN&E6 254,936 - 254,936
— Value of employee service (Note 32) —E B RISHOE(E (FiizE32) 53,262 = 53,262
Fair value gains on available-for- AtEESREENRA
sale financial assets (Note 15) BEkR (FHE15) - 6,804 6,804
Balance at 31 December 2011 N-_B——%F+_-H
=t+-—HMEEH 308,198 6,804 315,002
- Value of employee service (Note 32) —EERBHER (HF32) 72,225 - 72,225
Fair value losses on available-for- AtHESHEENAL
sale financial assets (Note 15) BEYE (3 15) - (10,696) (10,696)
Balance at 31 December 2012 N-_BE—_—F+=H
=t+—HiEE 380,423 (3,892) 376,531
23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. ENEZERER
The Group REE
2012 2011
—2-——F —T—F
Account payables FERTBRRX 2,235,577 1,734,258
Notes payable ENEE 1,443,008 371,842

3,678,585 2,106,100
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B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(RBBEBE  FIELEIUARETTAER) B2 T —F+-A=t—BLFE
23. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 23. ENEBZER®(E)
The Group (continued) REEE ()

R-—ZE——F+=-A=+—8 " fA
ENEERRITARES . HhatE
LA TSR (HRE17) 2B A
RE747BT(ZE——F: ARK
147 1RBTT) ERITARAIER « WG T3
PR Hl$R1T4E 8 (I 5E20) BEAHAR
#5557 BIL(ZF——F : ARK1.95
1B70) RIRI TR LIER « ARNE T
B (FIaE 16) FE TSR HIERT 74584 (MY
#20) REAARKA1ET(=ZF
——&F : AR¥3,00087T) FERTTH&
HIEZE -

As at 31 December 2012, all notes payable represented bank
acceptance notes, of which RMB 747 million (2011: RMB
147 million) were secured by certain notes receivable (Note
17), RMB 557 million (2011: RMB 195 million) were secured
by certain restricted bank balances (Note 20), and RMB
139 million (2011: RMB 30 million) were secured by certain
inventories (Note 16) and certain restricted bank balances
(Note 20).

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the ageing analysis of the RZEBE——FR-_E—F+=A1

=t+—H  ENEZRRNEREDON

trade payables was as follows:

W

2012 2011

—g-F —FT—F

Within 3 months 3EAMA 2,380,585 1,783,488
4-6 months 4% 61E A 1,230,563 245,285
7-9 months 7E29ME@A 15,545 17,620
10-12 months 10Z2 1218 A 11,584 10,465
Over 1 year 1FLAE 40,308 49,242
3,678,585 2,106,100

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

AEE RN E S RANREETIAT
S REN -

2012 2011
—E—C—F =%
RMB AR 3,354,395 1,982,992
uss$ ETT 324,190 123,108
3,678,585 2,106,100
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(B2HREN  FESBEUAARETIAEM) B2 —Ft-A=t—HILFE
23. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 23. ENEZRM(E)
The Company /N
2012 2011

—E——F —T—%F

Accounts payable e FRIE 160,974 58,854
24. ACCRUALS, ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS AND 24, FERER AWEFRERAEME
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES BHEE
The Group E
2012 2011
—B-—f -F——F
Accruals TEIRE R 404,369 377,287
Advances from customers TE P 5RIE 1,500,458 1,971,855
Value-added tax payable FEIR{E R 39,357 116,876
Other taxes payables E A FERTFRIE 5,117 41,725
Other payables (a) H b EERFR (@) 801,696 580,219
Provision for legal claims (b) (Notes 29, 39) &2 =R ERE (o) (Fi X 29,39) 22,754 =
2,773,751 3,087,962
(@ The breakdown of other payables as at 31 December @ RZE—-—FRk_ZT——%F
2012 and 2011 was as follows: +—A=+—HNEMEMNE
RO T
2012 2011
—B-—f -F——F
Pension payables and other FERTIR IR & Je At
social welfare payables et =R 55,461 55,048
Payables for purchase of property, BEVHE  BEK
plant and equipment AR ETBR IR 300,985 161,235
Customer deposits EFEES 283,084 186,677
Employee deposits BEZS 27,242 20,521
Salary payables EREHe 68,807 67,741
Others Hih 66,117 88,997
801,696 580,219
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B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) BE- T —F+t-A=T—"HLEE

24. ACCRUALS, ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS AND 24, ERER AREFRERHMR

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES(continued) BHEE(E)

The Group (continued) REE(E)

(b) The amounts represented a provision for certain legal b) ZEHEAMARA—RKB
claims against a subsidiary of the Company. The NARHAERREEME-
provision charge is recognised in profit or loss within BETHERHEdzs (F
‘Other gains/(losses)-net’. In the Directors’ opinion, after B) FHE| BT ER -ESR
taking into consideration appropriate legal advice, the RE KERREREEEE
outcome of these legal claims will not give rise to any wHE R_E——F+=-A
significant loss beyond the amounts provided at 31 =+—B ZEEERENE
December 2012, RIS BT EE 2N

EREXREE

The Company NN F]
2012 2011
=F-=F ZF—F
Accruals TEIRE M 117,399 119,706
Advances from customers AW E FFIE - 12,758
Salary payables < 5,858 5,060
123,257 137,524
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t1 HLFE

25. BORROWINGS 25. f&X

The Group REE

2012 2011
—E——F —T—%F

Non-current IERE
Bank borrowings — RITIER —
Unsecured A 3 125,000 65,000
Senior Notes (iii) 1B 5T I (i) 4,376,105 5,295,962
4,501,105 5,360,962
Current B
Bank borrowings — RITER—
Secured (i) B () 1,727,260 651,134
Unsecured A 3K 2,061,639 1,436,288
3,788,899 2,087,422
Other borrowings, unsecured (ii) Ho b fE 5K — EEH A (i) 65,000 65,000
3,853,899 2,152,422
Total borrowings HERR 8,355,004 7,513,384
()  As at 31 December 2012, secured bank borrowings ) RZB——-—F+-_A=+—

comprised RMB 462 million and RMB 1,265 secured
by certain restricted bank balances (Note 20) and notes

H- BERRITEREED
PAZR &R B 55 T X R Hll 2R 17 45 &4
(FffEE20) RpEW TSR (MizE17)
BIEEHARKI62ETRA
R¥12.6587T °

receivable (Note 17) of the Group, respectively.

The secured bank borrowings as at 31 December 2011
were secured by certain restricted bank balances (Note
20), notes receivable (Note 17), property, plant and
equipment (Note 7) and inventories (Note 16) of the

R—TE——F+=-F=+—
B BEMBTIEIALE
B F R 4R 1T A 4 (B 3
20) B EE(KIFE7) - ¥
CleuE: % . BEREE (W7 RES
(FtzE16) °
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B Ot I IRR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(b RAHERS - FrE S BEARKT T AE

25. BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group (continued)

(i)

(i)

Other unsecured borrowing represented a borrowing
from a local county government amounted to RMB 65
million which has no fixed term of repayment. Interest is
charged at the RMB bank deposit rate for 1 year fixed
deposit.

On 18 August 2010, the Group issued US$ 550 million
senior notes (the “2015 Senior Notes”), which bears
interest at 8% per annum and payable semi-annually, to
finance its potential acquisitions and investments, capital
expenditure projects and working capital requirements.
The principal of the 2015 Senior Notes is wholly
repayable on 18 August 2015.

On 17 November 2010, the Group issued US$ 300
million senior notes (the “2017 Senior Notes”), which
bears interest at 7% per annum and payable semi-
annually, to refinance its outstanding short-term
debts. The principal of the 2017 Senior Notes is wholly
repayable on 17 November 2017.

On 14 November 2012, the Group repurchased US$
87.24 million of the 2017 senior notes and US$ 59.82
million of the 2015 Senior Notes, resulted in a gain of
RMB 76,561,000 (Note 29).

25.

i) BEZT——-F+zZA=T—HILEE

B (&)

&M (E)

(i) E b IR E TR B SR U
kg AEMG&D%% ZE
fE FA%.E{E%%@ ﬂ%f‘aﬁi
RRITARE —FHEHEFR
P o

iy MZZT—FFNAT+NH ' K&
E%ﬁ&m%%ﬁm@%%%
([ZE2—RFEBEERER]) -
¢ﬂ$8%ﬁ§&§¥¢%%1
B NEPEBEWEREE
BATHIEEREEESHK -

—hAFEEBAZENEASER
—RAFNA+N\HEZEE
;Eo

R-ZF—FF+—H+ttA:

REEEIT000EETHE
FEB(-ZTE—LtFEEER
B AEME7% B REF
FHRBEE UEPDEERNR
AEENEHEK  —T—+
FERER fm$iﬁ%:2

RZE—=—F+—A+mWmA -
RNEEED G 7T24BETH
—+FEEEER59828%ETT
W-_ZE—RFEBLEE  EE
Wz AR #7,656.1 8 7T (KT 5E
29) o
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BOt IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B8N

25. BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group (continued)

(i)

(continued)

FrE £ UARE T T REA)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-T——F+-A=1T—HILEE

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Mr. Han
Jingyuan (“Mr. Han”), the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, bought and sold certain 2015

Senior Notes which were either beneficially owned by

Mr. Han personally, or beneficially owned by his two
associates, Wellbeing Holdings Limited (“Wellbeing”),

which Mr. Han beneficially owns 63.15% of the issued

capital, and Eastland International Trading Limited
(“Eastland”), which is wholly owned by Mr. Han. The

transactions for 2015 Senior Notes are summarised as

follows:

As at 31 December 2011
Buy

BEA

Buy

BA

Sell

Eit

Sell

Eit

Sell

B

Repurchase offer
BREE

As at 31 December 2012

25.
Mr. Han
BEE

R-ZE—F+-H=+—A 7,000
6 January 2012
“E-—5-AXA 2,000
9 January 2012
“E——F—AANA 2,500
23 April 2012
“E-—FfMAZT=H -
25 April 2012
—T—H5WNA=THA (4,500
4 May 2012
—E-_FhANA (6,750)
26 October 2012
kS S o By WNE) (1,250)

RZE——F+-A=1—H -

{:H:

B (&)

REM ()

(i)

Wellbeing
Wellbeing

(%)

HE_ZT——F+_HA=+—
BIEFE  ARARERREREH
TERBEREE([BEE] U
HEAZZSBEFFRED
A&~ Al %A Wellbeing
Holdings Limited ([Wellbeing )
(98 5% & F 563.15% B & 17
%) F Eastland International
Trading Limited([ Eastland ]) (%2
EERERENAR) BERS
- EEAEER - %ZEZ
T-RFEAZERRZBM
T

Eastland Total
Eastland &5

US$°000

14,500

(2,000 -

(4,000) =

(2,000 -

S

4,500 26,000
2,000
2,500
(2,000)
(8,500)

(5,750)

(3,250)

6,500 4,500 11,000
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B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+tZA=T—HLEE

25. BORROWINGS (continued) 25. B (&)
The Group (continued) KEE(E)
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group’s borrowings R-B——FE{KR-_T——F+_H
were repayable as follows: =+—H  ANEE/EFEHER 40
T

Other borrowings

Bank borrowings and Senior Notes

SRITIER HittfERREBLERE

2012 2011 2012 2011

=F-=F % =B-=Ff —F—F

Within 1 year 16K 3,788,899 2,087,422 65,000 65,000
Between 1 and 2 years 1 Z 24 125,000 65,000 - -
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5%F - - 4,376,105 3,421,795
Over 5 years 5 E - — - 1,874,167

3,913,899 2,152,422 4,441,105 5,360,962

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as NEEHRNERMRET :
follows:
2012 2011
—§-C% 2%
RMB HK$ us$ RMB HK$ Us$
ARE BT E ARE BT X
Bank borrowings PITIER 6.94-7.65% - 1.52-4.25% 5.99-8.56% 2.18% 1.71-4.85%
Other borrowings Hitfask 3.60% - - 3.50% = =
Senior Notes BEEE - - 7.00-8.00% - - 7.00-8.00%
The carrying amounts of current borrowings approximate their MEMERHEREELUE AR EE -
fair values.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

25. BORROWINGS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(EE -+ A=1T—BLEE

25.

B (&)

The Group (continued)

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current bank
borrowings and Senior Notes are as follows:

REM(E)

FEMBRITER LB ERBEHREE
RAREEIT

Carrying amount Fair value

IREE DAREE
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=-F ZF—% =%B-=% %
Bank borrowings RITENK 125,000 65,000 110,652 57,719
Senior Notes BhEi 4,376,105 5295962 4,506,540 4,465,161
4,501,105 5,360,962 4,617,192 4,522,880

The fair values of current borrowings approximated their
carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
The fair values of non-current bank borrowings are based on
discounted cash flow approach using the prevailing market
rates of interest available to the Group for financial institution
with substantially the same terms and characteristics at the
respective balance sheet dates. The fair values of Senior Notes
are based on quoted market price.

As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of the
borrowings amounted to RMB 7,687 million and RMB 668
million were denominated in US$ and RMB respectively.

As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of the
borrowings amounted to RMB 6,751 million and RMB 251
million were denominated in US$ and HK$ respectively, and
the remaining were denominated in RMB.

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings to interest-rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows:

6 months or less 61E AN
6-12 months 6 & 1218 A
More than 12 months HBRiE121E A
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RARFTREEIK  REBEFNAA
EBEAOCUNEREE - JERBRITE
ROAABEECAAEERSEHEA
AR R SRR S BB IR
TSN RIZREREEFTREIE o
BRARBN AR EEREDZHRED
BE o

RN-—E——F+-_A=+—H ' H&
AREET76.87 BT AR 6.6818 7T
BERZERAEETID AIAET R AR
FTE °

WN-—ZE—F+=-_H=+—H  He
AR®6751 BT RARE 2518 T
B ZREET D BIAETT KB TTaT
B RIRIEH TIAAREE -

N6 B IRTT 8 SRR = 2 R b Ko

BHEHEEBHNOT ¢
2012 2011
—EB—C—F —F—%F
3,234,004 1,477,082
554,895 610,340
125,000 65,000
3,913,899 2,152,422
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B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

25. BORROWINGS (continued)

25. B (&)

The Company /N
2012 2011
—E——F =%
Non-current FERE
Senior Notes BHRERE 4,376,105 5,295,962
Current TE
Bank borrowings — RITEK—
Secured e e 788,759 422,340
Unsecured AR 389,269 620,247
1,178,028 1,042,587
Total borrowings A Eh 5,554,133 6,338,549

The carrying amounts of current borrowings approximate their

fair values.

26. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES - GROUP

mBERNREELIUERAEE -

26. HttRHIENRK —FAEEH

2012 2011
—E—C—F =%

Non-current FERE
Finance lease obligations BB EAE - 115,007
Other payable E e ERSR 26,129 18,510
26,129 133,517

Current RE

Finance lease obligations B AR E A 115,007 223,546
Total other long-term payables HihREAE(N R4 5E 141,136 357,063
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

26.

FrE £RIGAARE T T REA)

OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES - GROUP (continued)

In July 2008, Jinxi Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into an asset sale and leaseback agreement (the “Sale and
Lease Agreement”) with certain financial institutions. The sales
proceeds of the relevant property, plant and equipment were
RMB 800 million. The lease term was 60 months and the lease
payments were adjusted annually and reset according to the
benchmark interest rate announced by the People’s Bank of
China (the “PBOC”). Jinxi Limited was entitled to purchase the
related asset at a cost of RMB 100 at the end of the lease. In
August 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into a guarantee agreement
with another financial institution. Pursuant to the agreement,
this financial institution granted a guarantee of RMB 800
million in favour of Jinxi Limited for the above finance lease
arrangement.

The total minimum lease payments under the finance lease
based on the PBOC interest rate as at the balance sheet dates
and their present values were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2012
2T —F+_A=1—HILEE

26.

Hit REIENRK — A &E (&)

RZZZNFLA - 2AME(REE
ZHBAR)EETEREIBIT L EE
EEMER % ([HERBERZR]) -
HEAYIZE - BB KRB 2 HEMER
BAARES.00(ET - A NTE
A HENREFEETARILRE
REARRIT((FRARRITD A
2 EEFREHLTE - RS

B R A R AR AR AR 100
THEEHBEE - RZZEZNFEN
A RAMERS —REEET Y
—HERGE - BREZH®E  Zem
Mg g E R E T HE RTINS
HEARK8.00BITER -

BHRBEARBITRGEEBNERGFEZ
MEHEZXEHESENHERNER
=B U

Present Interest Total
value of expenses minimum
minimum relating to lease
lease payments future periods payments
REHEE HBERREHE REEE
NRMZBRE ZRERX B
As at 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-A=+—H
Within 1 year 1R 115,007 7,327 122,334
As at 31 December 2011 W-_ZE——F+=-F=+—H
Within 1 year 1R 223,546 37,697 261,243
Between 1 and 5 years 125 115,007 7,327 122,334
338,553 45,024 383,577
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B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES - GROUP (continued)

The effective interest rate of the finance lease obligations of the
Group is 11.76% (2011: 11.84%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the finance lease
obligations approximated RMB 121 million (2011: RMB 367
million). The fair values were based on discounted cash flow
using average borrowing rates of 7.14% (2011: 6.65%) per
annum.

DEFERRED REVENUE - GROUP

At 1 January 2011 RZE—%—H—H
Addition NE

At 31 December 2011 NZZE——F+-_A=1+—H
Addition NE

Credited to the consolidated RABFIEE AR
income statement

At 31 December 2012 RZE—=—FE+=-A=+—H

26.

27.

Hit RIEENK — A &E (&)

AREBREAHERIEZERENR A
11.76% (ZF——F : 11.84%) °

N-ZE——F+-A=+—1H @&
MEREZ AR BEHNARE121E
T(ZE——F : AR¥367/87T) °
AR EEDIBBIRFAERFENEX
714% (ZZF——%F : 6.65%) #IR 2
HEREFTE o

ELEWA — A KH

Deferred
government
grant
BEER
e

27,010
11,010

38,020

15,050

5,777)

47,293
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP 28.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to income taxed levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an interaction to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset
amounts are as follows:

Deferred tax assets: IEEFH IR A 2=
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered — &R 12 @ A &4
after more than 12 months RRERLIHE B
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered — #1218 A Rk E
within 12 months RRER IR E =
Deferred tax liabilities: EEHIBEE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled —#BR12EA RS
within 12 months SERRER AR E
Deferred tax assets-net EETIBEE —F58

218 China Oriental Group Company Limited 5 5 5 42 Bl je A R A

ELEFTEH —A5H

EERRBHAEERRSRARARE
Bz AERBINITE - URERIE
FTiS Bt B[R] — B M5 B sk FE AR AR £
BRTRERNERAWZAERE
B - A Ry m AR R A SR
R - RERSEREERAGRE
i o MIHS T ¢

2012 2011
—E-——F —T—%F
117,263 69,112
127,151 161,662
244,414 230,774
(43,324) (38,080)
201,090 192,694
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B0t B T SR R M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued) 28. ELFEH —KEE(E)
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as FRIEFTISTLER B RARZEH T :
follows:
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F

At 1 January R—A—H 192,694 102,018
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated REFFRIER (k)

income statement (Note 34) 0Bk (Bd5E34) 8,396 97,833
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—FEME A ] = (7,157)
At 31 December nt+=—A=+—H 201,090 192,694
Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary differences under R IAR A A E A TR E 2R
the liability method using the tax rate and the tax base that is HEE—_ET——F+_A=1+—HIt
consistent with the expected manner of recovery or settlement FEFEHAWE A E R — AR
for the year ended 31 December 2012. RIEETHE -
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during FRNELFREEENBECREETA
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of ER—BFREANEENES) e
balances within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows: (1 N
Deferred tax assets: RIETIREE ¢

Temporary
difference

arising from  Impairment

expense provision  Unrealised
Taxlosses  recognition of assets gains Total
- il EERE R 2R
HEER  ERMER ] ez At
At 1 January 2011 RZE—F—HA—H - 71,701 54,268 6,179 132,148
Credited to the consolidated REHHER DR
income statement 7,578 10,406 80,642 - 98,626
At 31 December 2011 RZE—%T-A=1-H 7,678 82,107 134910 6,179 230,774
(Charged)/credited to the RAGFRIER (08),/ 2k
consolidated income statement (256) 11,098 (31,731) 34,529 13,640
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+-f=1+—H 7,322 98,205 103,179 40,708 244,414
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(=B8N

FrE £RIGAARE T T REA)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_ZT——H£+_HA=1 HULFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued) 28. EEFFEBH —AKE(E)
The Directors are of opinion that accumulated tax losses of —EREBARAR2.13

RMB 213 million (2011: RMB 113 million) of a subsidiary are
unlikely to be utilised before the losses expired, therefore no
deferred tax assets were recognised in this regard.

The Directors are of opinion that the accumulated tax losses
of RMB 220 million (2011: RMB 140 million) of the Company
are unlikely to be utilised before the losses expired, therefore
no deferred tax assets were recognised in the Company in this

Br(ZZ—F : AR¥1.13/ET)
B 25T IR B BN E B E R AT T A
ATREHEE A - Bt - WS FERRIE
EFIEEE ©

BEEZRE ARAARE220ETT
(ZF—F : AR¥1.4018D) R
ETRRIEE R B 1R B R AT IS N A A] B
WENA - At - AR AR L R

regard. RIETIE A E ©
Deferred tax liabilities: RIERIER &
Fair value Capitalised
gains interest Total
ARBEEYRES ER{EFIE &t
At 1 January 2011 R-—ZE—F—A—H - (30,130) (30,130)
Credit/(charged) to the RAFRIBRZER/ (k)
consolidated income statement 358 (1,151) (793)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—RNE AR (7,157) - (7,157)
At 31 December 2011 RZZ—F+=-A=+—H (6,799) (31,281) (38,080)
Credit/(charged) to the REBFERCER /()
consolidated income statement 358 (6,602) (5,244)
At 31 December 2012 NZE——F+-B=1+—H (6,441) (36,883) (43,324)
The amount of profits on which withholding tax liability has not R-ZE——F+_-_A=+—BAKHE

been recognised at 31 December 2012 is RMB 3,867 million
(2011: RMB 3,619 million).
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRAAHEHI -

29. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET - GROUP

Other gains/(losses) — net:

Sales of raw materials and by-products

Government grants
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment (Notes 7, 39)
Provision for legal claims (Note 24)
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 39)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Loss on receivables for operating lease
(Note 184ii))
Charitable donation
Foreign exchange gain/(loss)-net
(Note 35)
Gain on repurchase of Senior Notes

Gain on written-off of long aging payables

Others

Total

30. OTHER INCOME - GROUP

Rental income arising from
investment properties (Note 8)
Income from other operating leases

Others

Total

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012

FESEEUARBTIAEN) B2 F——F+=A=+—HILFE
29. Hftiliz (F5E) - BE - 5H
2012 2011
—g——F —E——fF
HAabezs, /(B8 ) —F5 ¢
HERME MEIER 67,476 119,624
BT 471 B 19,205 20,000
VI - = R R

BE (BEE7 ~ 39) (3,600) (161,270)
RERRERE (524 (22,754) =
HEYE  BEMREZ

Wzt (BI3E39) 2,434 5,362
s —RH B ARz W - 3,780
ST E W AR A B R
(Bf 2 18(i)) - (49,104)
KEIBN (741) (10,200)
RS (B598) —

HRE (BI7E35) 969 (11,188)
BOELEE K 76,561 -
i85 = BR e FE < 2B 2 W ek 21,398 -
EAh 3,201 2,552
Gl 164,149 (80,444)

30. HAlA —XEH

2012 2011
—F-=F ZF—F

KEYERTES
SpEEALON( N ES:)) 2,903 1,748
H b1 E 2 WA 20,033 18,790
HAh 13,022 6,180
A&t 35,958 26,718
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

31. EXPENSES BY NATURE - GROUP 31.

Employee benefit expense (Note 32)
Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress
Raw materials used
Cost of properties sold
Utilities
Amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights (Note 6)
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (Note 7)

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9)

Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 8)

Operating lease expenses in respect
of land use rights

(Reversal of)/provision for impairment

of trade receivables (Note 17)

Impairment provision of prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
(Note 18)

Impairment provision of loan receivables

(Note 19)

(Reversal of)/provision for write-down

of inventories to net realisable
value (Note 16)

Auditors’ remuneration

Rental fee

Others

Total

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_Z——_Ft-A=1T—BILEE

e B@MpT (MiEE32)
SUpK an RS A
PR R
HEVRKA
BER
HELH Nt
158 PR 55 (FY7E6)
M - BERRETE
(Bf=E7)
B EE#E (HFE9)
REMENE (ME8)

AR E FHER
KEREER

EWE ZRFORE 2 (BE),/
B (MRE17)

TERFIE - Re REM
FEURBR SR 2 BB
(HI7E18)

EWE 2 R ERE
(FF&E19)

FEEBEREZNZHE
FEZ (BE),/
O (FEE16)

ZEENE S

HeER

b

A
(=)=
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BMESINRAX -FAKE

2012 2011
—g—=% =—T——F
1,039,827 782,087
(20,924) (229,620)
31,167,528 32,619,567
162,062 -
1,733,981 1,763,708
3,405 3,405
943,709 892,093
25 18

806 805

3,640 3,267
(538) 3,607
138,841 -
300 -
(108,439) 108,439
5,922 5,700
264,546 244,000
295,027 322,257
35,629,718 36,519,333




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP 32, EERAFX—FEH

2012 2011
—2-——F —T—F

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) {2 kA (B FEEZEE)

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group that
are incorporated in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan organised by the
relevant provincial government. For the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group is required to
make monthly defined contributions to these plans at
rates from 10% to 20%, with the base of their total salary
subject to a certain ceiling.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
employees or retirees other than the payments disclosed
in the above note.

— Salaries and welfare —¥a KAEn 817,629 615,679
— Pension costs — defined —RIRE&NA — ERBREHXK
contribution plans (a) =2l (a) 149,973 113,146
— Share options granted to —BTEE FERATL
directors, eligible persons K 8 HxhE
and employees (Note 22) (FfizE22) 72,225 53,262
1,039,827 782,087

BARE -EBEERFTGEBRNARE

BEl

2N £ B A HP B a1 A 2 B0 B B
AEMEEZ2EAFHEEBNA
B ER KRS RE G
- BE_ET——_FR_Z
——&H&+-_fF=+—HItF
E AEEREEF LT
10% £ 20% & A R % 55T E{E
HERER - EXET LRAT
MR o

BR DA £ B 5 P 45 5B B9 SR IRLSD
AEBYEAEBIRAKAL
AR E Rbs T E MR KRR
BANWEMBEE -
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SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued) 32. EERAMEX-AKH(E)

(o) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments ) ZESKEAEREME

BE_T—_HR_F——F
TZA=t—HLLFE  ZE=F

The emoluments of every director for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011, on a named basis, are set

out as below: HIBN & (LA A2E) &5 an T -
Fair value of Pension
employee costs -
Salaries share defined
and options  contribution
Name of director Fees allowances Bonus granted plans Total
ERiES RHERA -
BRED hd e
£ e HERRW *a MMEE it fazt
2012 —E-CF
Mr. Han Jingyuan () BRI 666 6,372 - 8,51 11 15,620
M. Zhu Jun x BRE 624 1,337 - 1,712 1 3,684
Mr. Shen Xiaoling TER LA 324 1,351 - 1,712 11 3,308
M. Zhu Heo x BEE 324 405 - 1,712 10 2,451
Mr. Han Li (i) 8 N 352 316 - 1,330 11 2,009
Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee (i) Mukiesh Muknheriee 752 il 17 - - 1,712 7 1,836
Mr. Onora Otradovec Ondra Otradovec %55 324 = - 1317 = 1,641
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 755 324 - - 1,023 - 1,347
M Liu Lei 3 Fik 444 17 - 1,405 2 1,968
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Frandis X F%4 324 - - 1,514 - 1,838
M. YuTung Ho REELE 324 - - 1,317 - 1,641
Mr. Wang Tiany (i) TREAEN 292 - - 1,023 - 1,315
Mr. Gao Qingju (i) RIEREE) 3 - - 293 - 3%
Mr. Zhou Guoping (i) BEEEL) 2 - - - - 2
4,499 9,898 - 24,641 63 39,101
2011 %
M. Han Jingyuan () SR 878 6524 75 8767 10 16,254
M. Zhu Jun x BRE 672 1,499 214 1,148 10 3543
M. Liu Lei 3 Fik 452 1,196 15 1,148 10 2821
Mr. Shen Xiaoling HERTE 432 1,239 102 1,148 10 3,088
Mr. Zhu Hao ®OERE 332 415 - 1,148 10 1,906
Mr. Muktesh Mukheries (il Mukiesh Muknheriee 752 il 332 249 = 1,197 10 1,788
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec %55 332 - - 920 - 1,262
Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Jean-Paul Georges
Schuler () Schuler £ (1) 50 - - 51 - 101
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis X F4% 4 33 - - 1013 - 1,345
M. Geo Qingju RERLE 332 - - 883 - 1215
M. Yu Tung Ho REELE 332 - - 883 - 1,215
Mr. Viiay Kumar Vijay Kumar
Bhatnagar Bhatnagar 72 £ 282 - - - - 28
4,758 1,279 406 18,306 60 34,809
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B ERANARET T AEN)

(BRAAHEHI -

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

(b)

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(continued)

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Mr. Han Jingyuan is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

Mr. Han Li, Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Guoping
were appointed as the director of the Company
on 7 February 2012, 7 February 2012 and 1
December 2012 respectively.

Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee resigned as the director of
the Company on 11 May 2012.

Mr. Gao Qingju resigned as the director of the
Company on 6 February 2012.

Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler resigned as the
director of the Company on 24 February 2011.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the years ended 31 December

2012 and 2011. The emoluments of the independent

non-executive directors of the Company during the

year are approximately RMB 5.1 million (2011: RMB 3.8

million).

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
 E_E——F+-A=+—HIEE

32. EERAMAX-F&EEH#E)

(b)

EEREAEEEMS (&)

=
=

(i)

(i)

S

BYERLEET/ANRAE
F]ITE °

BhHEAE EREXRER
BEFEEDRR =
——#%-_HA+H - =%
——F#_AtAREK=F
——F+ - —HEXE
BARNRESE °

Muktesh Mukherjee 94
R—ZE——FHA+—H
BHEARRES -

SEREEN_T—_F
“ARNHEBEARARAE
=

Jean-Paul Georges
Schuler EER =T ——%F
ZAZTMEBEERRAR
BEx-

T FRZF—F

+-A=+—BLEER" &
4% 2 25 P2 ok (R B P EE 1
& FARN IR/FARANE
VHEBTEENHEHNAAR
Bo10EL(ZZE—F : AR
#3808 L) °
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(=B8N

FrE £RIGAARE T T REA)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

(©)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
E-F——Ft+-A=1+—HILEE

32. EERAMAX-F&EEH#E)

Five highest paid individuals (c)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2011: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments of the remaining one
(2011: one) highest paid individual for the year are as

follows:

Salaries and allowances e KoER
Bonus 14T
Fair value of employee share B e B BB iE
options granted WAREE

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011,

no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of

the Directors or the five highest paid individuals as

inducement to join or upon joining the Company or as

compensation for loss of office.

The remuneration of the five highest paid individuals for

the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 fell within

the following bands:

RMB 2,000,001 to RMB 3,000,000 AEKE#2,000,001 TZE AR
(approximately HK$ 2,466,701 3,000,000 7T (#) 2,466,701
to HK$ 3,700,049) 7S ILE 3,700,049 %5 7T)

RMB 3,000,001 to RMB 4,000,000 AR¥3,000,001 TEARKE
(approximately HK$ 3,700,050 4,000,000 7t (493,700,050
to HK$ 4,933,399) YETTZ 4,933,399 % 7T)

RMB 10,000,001 to RMB 17,000,000 A K# 10,000,001 TE AR
(approximately HK$ 12,333,499 17,000,000 7t (4912,333,499
to HK$ 20,966,946) 7B TLZE 20,966,946 78 7T)
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hEER=HMAL

AEEAEBERAURSHMA
TERENG(ZT——F: 1
f)EF - HMEE RN EXHD
Fr2d e REER - XHF
Hp—(ZT——%F: —{I)
REFATHOMEIT

2012 2011
—E-—F —F——%F
564 569

311 608

1,270 1,021
2,145 2,198

BE_Z——Fk_F—F
+ZA=+—HIEFERN &
EEHMERTANESRK AR
BHMATZNERIME - 4F
BIMARRB FZRIMALRR F]
iy 8Y 2RI SR R RE R (S o

BE-ZT——FRk-FT——F
tTZA=+—RALFER &
fir & = A LR B & 7 - IA
TEE :

Number of individuals

AE
2012 2011
—E—_F %
2 2
2 2
1 1
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

33. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS - GROUP

34.

Interest expenses
— borrowings
— discount of notes receivable
— finance lease liabilities
Net foreign exchange gains
on borrowings (Note 35)

Finance costs
LLess: amounts capitalised
on qualifying assets (Note 7)

Total finance costs (Note 39)

Interest income on bank deposits
Interest from other receivables
Income from loan receivables

Finance income (Note 39)

Finance costs — net

INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP

Income tax expense represents:

Current income tax
— PRC enterprise
income tax (the “EIT”)
— Singapore profit tax

Deferred income tax (Note 28)

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
B2 _—FtER=1-HIEE

33. BIBEWARRA—-REE
2012 2011
—F-=F ZF—F
FE &R
— B3 (517,481) (509,702)
— RN Z=EE5IR (16,112) (499
-—REHEEE (37,697) (35,847)
B FRAVIE 7RIS
(K17E35) 7,264 319,780
BFTER AR (564,026) (226,268)
B AEREEEARL
© 8 (MIsE7) 64,853 35,468
TSR AN AR %E (M EE39) (499,173) (190,800)
SRITIF KA A B U 35,828 16,505
H {th e Uk BR SR A0 F B U 66,157 59,755
JEW E KA A 43,194 20,638
BAFSUE A (Fi7E39) 145,179 96,898
B TSRR AN — F5E (353,994) (93,902)
34. FISBEBHRH-—AK£E
FriSfiEReE
2012 2011
—EB——F —F—%F
B HIFT SR
—HECEMER
([PESEAMEH]D 182,220 606,950
— TN RS FL 5,755 4,906
187,975 611,856
EIERTIS T (Fi7E28) (8,396) (97,833)
179,579 514,023
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(=B8N

34.

FrE £RIGAARE T T REA)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and, accordingly, is exempted from payment of
Bermuda income tax.

The subsidiaries directly held by the Company were
incorporated in BVI with limited liability under the International
Business Companies Act Chapter 291 and, accordingly, are
exempted from payment of BVI income tax.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided since the
subsidiaries incorporated or traded in Hong Kong do not have
assessable profits during the year (2011: nil).

China Oriental Singapore has been awarded the “Global
Trader Programme” (“GTP”) status for 2 years 9 months with
effect from 1 April 2011. Income from qualifying transactions
will be taxed at the concessionary corporate tax rate of 10%,
subject to China Oriental Singapore meeting certain terms
and conditions as stated in the letter issued by International
Enterprise Singapore.

The PRC EIT is calculated based on the statutory profit of
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in accordance with the
PRC tax laws and regulations, after adjustments on certain
income and expense items, which are not assessable or
deductible for income tax purposes.

228 China Oriental Group Company Limited 5 5 5 42 Bl B A R A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BHE—_T-——F+-A=tHILEE

34.

FSBiEm— &8 (&)

ARARBEERE-NN—FRBE
ERREAMKR I AERCAREE
N PEBLENBFEMEH -

RRREEFAONE R RIREEER
BEQREE2NECERBHEBRE
SHMRIABEREEIAR - RER
RHNRBERAREEMAEH -

HRESE ML KELNHER
AIRNFAIL EERBRFE - BMIRHE
SHREAMGHR(ZT——F ) -

RERGHIMECESE T ——F
MA—HEEARNMFZTNMEAD
[RIRE Hat8l] (RRE FEHE )1
7 - ARIER A BIR 7 # AN B3 AN
BIR bR ERBDE LA KA
BT RRARGS - AEBIRS 2K
AR R B R 10% B ©

b B 32 FT 1 BTV EE A7 o0 B A
ST A RlEEE M - RS
BARRIED - HBRET AR
B AR AT GBI A BB % 08
B4 -



34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

Effective from 1 January 2008, the subsidiaries incorporated
in the PRC are required to determine and pay the EIT in
accordance with the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China (the “New EIT Law”) as approved
by the National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007 and the
Detailed Implementation Regulations of the Corporate Income
Tax Law (the “DIR”) as approved by the State Council on 6
December 2007. In accordance with the New EIT Law and
DIR, the EIT rate applicable to the subsidiaries incorporated in
the PRC will be 25% for those with original applicable EIT rates
higher than 25%, or gradually increased to 25% in a 5-year
period from 2008 to 2012 for those with original applicable EIT
rates lower than 25%. The preferential policy of exemption or
deduction shall be effective from 1 January 2008, even if the
subsidiaries were still in a cumulative tax loss position.

Jinxi Jinlan was qualified as a foreign investment production
enterprise and was established in a coastal economic
development zone. Approved by local tax authority on 14
December 2007, Jinxi Jinlan was entitled to a two-year full
exemption followed by a three-year 50% tax deduction,
commencing from 1 January 2008. The effective tax rate of
Jinxi Jinlan for the year ended 31 December 2012 was 12.5%
(2011: 12.5%).

34.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_Z——_Ft-A=T—HILFE

FGBER— =& (&)

H-ZETNF—A—HBE LE+TH
MM BARRRR _TTL
F=ZA+tRBE2EAKRSELENTD
EARHKMBECEMEDOE (T
RBOED R_ETLF+T AR
BE& R AN B EMRETUEAE RA
A (TERAR]) - SHEXBRMERAT
B - KB EEMBEUE R B
A - FEr B FEA B SZ B BT B A R A0 IR
FHEANEEMEHRHEERRN25%
AT HAR25% : HAMRFBEROEE
FEMRERN25% AIE_ZF
NEE-T——FNRFAR FF L
FE 25% ° BRI R 2 BEERK
“ZENF-A-BRER Bt
%M B A R RET IR EER
Mo

ERCEAEIEREEEEDEN
B WEBREBEREREAK o &
HWAEHERR_EELF+=-A+H
BE  EFESHEE_ZTN\F—A
—BE ZEMFRBRERER
=F50%BWHER - BE_T—=
F+_A=+—HLFE 2A
BAUME B125%( - F——4F:
12.5%) °
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

34.

FrE £ UARE T T AEA)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(EE -+ A=1T—BLEE

34.

Other than above-mentioned entities, all other subsidiaries of

the Group incorporated in PRC are subject to the tax rate of

25% in year 2012 (2011: 25%).

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from

the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average applicable tax rate of 25.51% (2011: 24.27%) to
respective profits of the consolidated entities for the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 as follows:

Profit before taxation

Taxation calculated at
statutory tax rate
Effect of preferential tax
rate of subsidiaries
Tax losses for which no deferred
income tax asset was recognised
Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses
Withholding tax of interest income
Effect of non-deductible expenses

BT B4 A

BEEMREFTEAOTIA

B A REERENE

Dz

RAFERBILEFSH
BENBIARR
{5 P SE R R FERR B IR B 1R

RINRBAN BIAZ S
TR E R E
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FRrSBiEm— &8 (&)

B bt FEEAN - AREBETA MR F
BEFEME B AN - E——4F
HFE R B 25% (ZT——4F : 25%) o

AEBERBANENNTHIEREE=Z
——FRZZE——F+=ZA=+—H
IFFEAHE B G H ERABFTES
B INHE G R 25.61% ( =T ——
F:2427%) T ENEmBHENER
SR

2012 2011
—E——fF —T—%F
326,056 1,931,812
83,178 468,856

- (208)

53,349 18,294

- (4,634)

15,096 =
27,956 31,710
179,579 514,023
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36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEANARBTIREN) BE- T —F+tZA=T—HLEE

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS/(LOSSES) - 35.

GROUP

The exchange differences credited in the consolidated income

statement are included as follows:

Other gains/(losses) — net (Note 29) HWes (ES8) — F5E
(P$5E29)

Finance costs — net (Note 33) B 7SR AN — F 58 (M95E33)

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 36.

THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
approximately RMB 148.96 million for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent
of approximately RMB 236.83 million for the year ended 31
December 2011.

B SRS (R5I) B
AR

RAGRIBRNTEZES 2205
T

2012 2011
s =4

969 (11,188)
7,264 319,780
8,233 308,592

EAREERFEEEMG (BR), &
A

BHE_Z——F+A=1T—HIEF
B AATEREEERLEERR
B ARRRFBREOHHOARKE
1.4896 18T °

RE-T——F+-A=+—HI#F
B ARD RS R 2
R AR A AR B REAL AR
2.3683187T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(BRABEAN ESEONARBTIREN) BE—T——F+-A=t HLFE

37. EARNINGS PER SHARE 37. BRWE

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

ZUNGCIL: S S E-p bl

BN
BREANGEIRBEARFAERFE
EREG MR AFARHTE BB
I BMATHE -

2012 2011

—2-——F —T——F

126,062 1,241,893

Weighted average number of B T ARy hnE
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) FHE (FR) 2,930,194 2,929,725
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) &R EARNWZ (FIRA R IT) 0.04 0.42

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: share options. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.
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37.

38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 37. BRWE ()
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
Profit attributable to owners PIN/NG s sy eyl
of the Company 126,062 1,241,893
Weighted average number of ordinary ARt EGRER K
shares in issue used in calculating R E BT E BRI
basic earnings per share (thousands) FHE (FR) 2,930,194 2,929,725
Adjustments for options (thousands) FERGRE E=E (F %) 6,730 25,024
Weighted average number of ordinary STE SRR RS
shares and potential ordinary shares DRI E BT E B
issued as the denominator in calculating KB & B A% N
diluted earnings per share (thousands) FHE (FhR) 2,936,924 2,954,749
Diluted earnings per share (RMB per share) &ik#miE S (FRRAREIT) 0.04 0.42
DIVIDENDS 38. KA
2012 2011
—B-—F =%
Interim, paid FHE . BIRM - 241,351

At a meeting held on 9 August 2011, the Board proposed an
interim dividend in respect of the period ended 30 June 2011
of HK$ 292.97 million (approximately RMB 241.35 million),
representing HK$ 0.1 per ordinary share. The dividends were
paid in October 2011.

At a meeting held on 23 August 2012, the Board did not
recommend the payment of any interim dividend in respect of
the six months ended 30 June 2012.

At a meeting held on 21 March 2013, the Board did not
recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2012.

RZE——FNANBETHNEZH
L EERERREBE_ZE——F
NA =18 IEEREA AR B 2.9297 (B
BT (W ARE2.41351(87T) @ BIER
LAR0IABTIT - REERZZT——
FTAZH-

R-BE-——ENA-T+=A8THNE
HLE EERTEEREE-_T——
FN A=+ 8 1N E A IR AT R

BB e

R-E—=FE=A-1+—HBETHNE
mL EERTESERBE=ZT =
FHZA=1+—BIEFERMAEAR
HARR B, -

Annual Report 2012 —%— —4p4p#k 233



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRREEHAIN - FTE S BHIUARE T T REA)

39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 30. BEELXMNES
(@)  Recongiliation of profit before taxation to cash generated @ BHRAENELEEHNES
from operations is as follows: MARFESRLT -
2012 2011
—E-—C—F —T——fF
Profit before income tax KRBTSR R A 326,056 1,931,812
Adjustments for: PR -
Amortisation of leasehold land TS 3 2 + st s A 28 £
and land use rights (PffizEo6 ~ 31)
(Notes 6, 31) 3,405 3,405
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  WERRETE
equipment (Notes 7, 31) (PfzE7 ~ 31) 943,709 892,093
Depreciation of investment properties & MEITE
(Notes 8, 31) (PffzE8 ~ 31) 806 805
Amortisation of intangible assets A E
(Notes 9, 31) (Fii3E9 ~ 31) 25 18
Gain on disposal for property, HEME - BEKEE 2z W
plant and equipment (Note 29) (FffzE29) (2,434) (5,362)
Impairment of property, plant and Y% R MR ERE
equipment (Notes 7,29) (MI7E7 ~ 29) 3,600 161,270
Share of result of an associate FE(R—REHt = A REE
(Note 11) (MtEE11) 12,697 (2,140)
(Reversal of)/provision for write-down FEEERMAEZ ISR FME2
of inventories to net realisable value (@) HoR
(Notes 16, 31) (Mf7E16 ~ 31) (108,439) 108,439
(Reversal ofy/provision for impairment  JEUE 5 BE R E >
of trade receivables (Notes 17, 31) (BEE), Bt (B=E17 - 31) (538) 3,607
Impairment provision of prepayments, TE5I8 - &% RE b FEGRIE Y
deposits and other receivables BERAE (5T 18 ~ 31)
(Notes 18, 31) 138,841 -
Impairment provision of loan JEWE R 2 REREE
receivables (Notes 19, 31) (BF#E19 ~ 31) 300 -
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses BN (Wzs),E5iE
(Notes 29,35) (Mf7E29 - 35) (969) 11,188
Finance income (Note 33) B AU A (B 5E33) (145,179) (96,898)
Finance costs (Note 33) B AS (P 5E 33) 499,173 190,800
Share-based payment (Notes 22,32)  LARX(D A& 2 Mk (FisE22 ~ 32) 72,225 53,262
Gain on repurchase of Senior Notes B EIE L =15 7 Uiz (76,561) —
Provision for legal claims (Note 24) FRERERE (MHFE24) 22,754 -

For the year ended 31 December 2012
2T —F+_A=1—HILEE
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39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 39.

(@)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated

from operations is as follows: (continued)

Changes in working capital
(excluding the effects of acquisition
and exchange differences on
consolidation):

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
and properties under development
and held for sale

Increase in trade and notes
receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Increase in amount due from
related parties

Increase in restricted bank balances

Increase in deferred revenue

Increase in trade payables,
accruals, advances from customers
and other current liabilities

Decrease in amount due to
related parties

Cash generated from operation

BEE LD
(TR afEa pHs R
LR

FERERT MFHELE
WmERL, ()

FEWE 5 MR
BNRIE - 2E
Ko B At FEURBRSRIE N
P& L BTG 73 SRR A

SR BRI TAEERIE N
EAEY AR AN
FERTE SRR -

RIREM - FREPHRIER

HAitRENBEIZ N
&1~ BRESE T SRIR A

RECENRE

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
 E_E——F+-A=+—HIEE

LCEELENRE (B

BRRAa N RELEBNRS
MARFEERLT : (&)

2012 2011
—E-—fF —T——F
1,512,628 (679,563)

(3,357,062) (2,086,125)

(3,042) =
(318,805) (145,526)
9,273 11,010
1,117,635 557,245
(12,485) (1,116)
637,613 908,224
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

39.

40.

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

(b)  Major non-cash transactions:

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
endorsed bank acceptance notes to suppliers for
purchase of property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately RMB 951 million (2011: approximately
RMB 553 million).

(c) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sales of
property, plant and equipment comprise:

Net book amount from sales and

deductions of property, plant and SHE KO A H)
equipment (Note 7) BRTEHE (FEET7)

Gain on disposals of property, plant

and equipment (Note 29) Wz (M95E29)
Non-cash assets received BUSEREEE
Cash proceeds from disposal of HEWE  BEK

property, plant and equipment HESBRS

Non-cash assets received mainly represented bank
acceptance notes and other receivables received from
deductions of property, plant and equipment.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS - GROUP

RE=FBRTT
ek B R

Guarantee for bank
borrowings of third parties

As at 31 December 2012, Jinxi Limited provided guarantee
for bank borrowings in favour of third parties amounted to
approximately RMB 30 million (2011: RMB 30 million). The
fair values of these financial guarantee contracts are not
significant.

The Directors are of the view that such obligation will not cause
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.
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E I e

For the year ended 31 December 2012
E-F——Ft+-A=1+—HILEE

30. BEEANRE(E)

ERHRERS ¢

g

BE-T —F+=-HA=1+—
BIESE AEERBEY
X BELERRBREEDSE
RITEAAEZHARKISE
T(ZF——%F: YARK5.53

{f8L) °

© RETREXRA HEWXE-
R Es N s B PSSR 845

HEME - BB NZE

2012 2011
—E--F —F——%F
38,443 12,393
2,434 5,362
(40,682) (16,978)
195 777

WEBNFREEETRRERY
¥ BE MRERD IR RTT
7 T 2R e LA WK

40. HBB/EEN-FEH
2012 2011

=F—-F =%

30,019 30,000

R-_TB——F+_A=+—H  Efi
88 A% = FHRITER L BER -
HOYAREZ00&ETL (=T ——F -
ARKEZ0008TT) - ZEMBERE
AR BELTERX o

EER/ZEEEER TS ENLE
FEERRE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

41. COMMITMENTS - GROUP 41. RE-XEE
(a) Capital and Properties under development commitments @ BARNMERAPYEZAE
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet REEBHREENERNF
incurred is as follows: s
2012 2011
—E——F =%
Purchase of property, HEEME  BELXK
plant and equipment
— Contracted but not provided for —BRIAEREE 205,865 486,448
— Authorised but not contracted for ~ — B HE(E R ET4Y 65,729 18,998
271,594 505,446
Purchase of properties under BEEERPYEE
development 291,418 -
563,012 505,446
(b)  Operating lease commitments (b) REHEESE
The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses in BT BEKSZEEEE N
respect of land use rights, property, plant and equipment T ERRE - E BERK
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as BREMNARZEREERS &
follows: THIT :
2012 2011

—F-=F ZF—F

No later than one year 1FR 188,355 308,360

Later than one year and no 1FLALE - 5FUR
later than five years 33,321 33,346
Later than five years 5% E 153,934 162,053
375,610 503,759
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRABEAN B SEINARE T TREN)

42,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_ZT——H£+_HA=1 HULFE

42. BEBIRXS

W— T AERIERENEH S

directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise sk B — R E B R R BB R AT

significant influence over the other party in making financial and BEATEN  BIBEET - WESE

operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related RHEES - TR R AR

if they are subject to common control.

(@)  For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, the @ BHE_ZE——FEK_ZFT——%F
Directors are of the view that the following companies +—_A=+—BIFER &

and persons are related parties of the Group:

Name

=5

Foshan Jin Lan Aluminium Company
Limited (“Foshan Jin Lan”)

BRIl EinMmE R A A
(T L<E 1)

Foshan Jin Lan Group Co., Ltd. (“Jin
Lan Group”)

HILEHEEEGRAR]
(TeHEED)

Foshan Jin Lan Import and Export
Co., Ltd. (“Jin Lan Import and
Export”)

HILSHEL R ERAR
([&MELA])

Foshan Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals
Product Co., Ltd. (“Jin Lan
Nonferrous Metals”)

HlLeHEEEERMmBRAR]
(TeHEEEE])

Zhongxing Iron Mine

RELRES

Tangshan Fengnan Qu Jinxi
Fenggang Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.
(“Jinxi Fenggang”)

JE LI e 3R A S
BRAT(EFALH])

RRUTRAIRAL/ARE
B RRRRE T -

Relationship with the Group
BRSNS B HYBAR

Minority shareholder of Jinxi Jinlan

RN D BBIR

Controlled by Mr. Zhou WEeijie, a director of Jinxi Jinlan

HEACEEEREG T ELES

Controlled by the family members of Mr. Zhou WEeijie, a director
of Jinxi Jinlan

REAEHNES AR KBRS

Foshan Jin Lan’s subsidiary

BRI BRI E A A

Jinxi Limited’s associated company
2 A 8l 88 ) Bt 5 2 )

Chairman of the board of Jinxi Fenggang is Mr. Shen Xiaoling,
a director of the Company

RAEMEEREFERANARESLRRTE
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, the (a)
Directors are of the view that the following companies
and persons are related parties of the Group:(continued)

Name

=

Qianxi County Han’erzhuang Village
Wang Zhihong Iron Ore Mill
(“Qianxi Iron Ore Mill”)

BUERER BT EAE
B ([BrEER])

Jinxi Wantong

g iih- i

Luxembourg Steel (Sichuan)
Company Limited (“Luxembourg
Steel”)

B ()1]) $HEEm AR A A
(TE#])

Beijing Jingtang Guangzhi
Investment Management
Co., Ltd. (“Jingtang Guangzhi
Investment”)
IRREEEREEEERAT
(TREEERE D

Mr. Li Hejun
FPRERYE

(Z_E-_F+ZA=1T—BILFE

42, BEHEAERZ (&)

BHEZZT——FR=T—%F
+tZA=+—HLEFER &
ERBUTRARALTREE
EevREEETT - (&)

Relationship with the Group
BAKEHEE

Controlled by Mr. Wang Zhihong, a director of Boyuan Real
Estate

HEEEMERNE R T EA T AT

Its former legal representative is Mr. Shen Xiaoling, a director of
the Company (ceased to be Group’s related party since 29
July 2011)

HADEERKXA/ARRAESLRILEE (BT —F 1A
ZTNABRTEAAREERE )

Controlled by the same ultimate parent company of
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG, an entity holds over 20% equity
interests in the Company

FR¥E 22 BB 20% 1 7 Y ArcelorMittal Holdings AGHY
A — &N 7

Controlled by Mr. Wang Zhihong, a director of Boyuan Real
Estate

HIEEFIMENE EEEA AT

Minority shareholder of Jinxi Dafang, a subsidiary of the Group
AEE—FMEAR - RAAFTNDHKRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

FrE £RIGAARE T T REA)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

financial statements, during the years ended 31

December 2012 and 2011, the Directors were of

the view that the following significant related party

transactions were carried out in the normal course of

business of the Group:

(i)

(ii)

Sales

(I Sales of goods

— Jinxi Fenggang

—Jin Lan Group

— Luxembourg Steel

— Jinxi Wantong

—Jin Lan Import
and Export

()  Sales of utilities

— Jin Lan Nonferrous
Metals

Purchase of raw materials

— Zhongxing Iron Mine
— Qianxi Iron Ore Mill
— Jinxi Fenggang

0)

(I

(EE -+ A=1T—BLEE

42, BHAERS (&)

O BAAOHBRES DR E
I BE-_TE——FER-T
——F+=A=+—ALFE
P EERANLTHEA RS
735 TR AR E A %
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47

(i) SHE
2012 2011
—ET—_—fF — T
HEEY
— 2 7 L 5 201,315 116,255
—HEE - 20,763
— = 2,140 6,954
—EPER - 6,777
—ERELA
- 2,532
203,455 153,281
HEBLIR

—cHEBCEE

13,320 8,848
(i) WEEREVHE

2012 2011
—gF--F —Z——F
— R HESR 36,740 84,656
— BRI 10,787 75,795
— 22 7 2 3] 156 29,843
47,683 190,294




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(AN - ESTEINARBTTRERN)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, during the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011, the Directors were of
the view that the following significant related party
transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business of the Group:(continued)

(i) Key management compensation

Key management includes executive and non-
executive directors. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee services
is shown below:

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits

Post-employment benefits BEER 1242 A

Share-based payments

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Directors were
of the view that the following related party balances
were attributable to the aforementioned related party
transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group and
dividends appropriation during the years:

Amounts due from related parties JE Uk B RS 2B
Non-trade balances B SEH

- Jinxi Fenggang () — 2L ()

~Mr. Li Hejun —-FEERE
Trade balances B o5

- Jinxi Fenggang o= itk

- Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals - ¢HEEEE

VAR AR 2 2T B0 S A+

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT —Ft-A=1tHILEE

42, BEHEAERZ (&)

(b)

FrehEMRHREEETN

BRASHMBHRRTPEHKE
I BE_ZE-—_FR_-F
——F+ZA=tT—BLFE
N BEERABATHE X
ATRGDRAEB R TR
#ET: (F)

(i) FEEFEARMS

TEEBRABBRERATR
FRITEE - BEEIRY
e ENREREEA

BHMENT ¢
2012 2011
—E—C—F =%
14,397 17,129
63 60
24,641 15,650
39,101 32,839

X5 KRERAEED X FHIRK
AREBFEANBRESBEM

2012 2011
—E-CF —T——%F
86,348 65,114
- 77
86,348 65,831
1,984 -
1,775 -
3,759 -
90,107 65,831
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

FrE £RIGAARE T T REA)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(EE -+ A=1T—BLEE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42.

()

RBAX5 (&)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Directors were
of the view that the following related party balances

were attributable to the aforementioned related party

transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group and

dividends appropriation during the years:(continued)

Amounts due to related parties

Non-Current

Non-trade balances
Borrowing from related parties
— Mr. Li Hejun (i)
— Foshan Jin Lan (iii)

Current

Non-trade balances
Borrowing from related parties
— Jingtang Guangzhi
Investment (iv)
— Foshan Jin Lan (jii)

Others

— Foshan Jin Lan

Trade balances

Trade payables
— Zhongxing Iron Mine
— Jinxi Fenggang
— Luxembourg Steel
— Qianxi Iron Ore Mill

JE ~F R8BS 75 7k 08
FETE)
IEE S 4E
AR 7 fE X
— B E A i)
— {35111 & B3 (i)
Yt

B S &R
B 77 fE 3K

—REREEKRE (V)

—BB1L 28 (i)

HAt

— LS
B R HEHR

FERTE SRR
— PR EER
— P2
— B
— BPREER
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(©

RZFE-—ZFRZFT——F
tTZA=+—RB '  E=ZRRU
T REBE T RS ek D N Lt B T
X5 KRAKRBEC AR
AREBFEANBRED M
EE: (/)

2012 2011
=F--F =%
51,859 17,304
37,404 -
89,263 17,304
51,965 49,177

- 37,404

51,965 86,581
383 383

1,242 256

1 452

453 2,208

2 11,267

1,698 14,183
143,309 118,451




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2012

(AN ESEINARBTIREN) B2 T —F+t-A=T—HLEE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(©)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Directors were
of the view that the following related party balances

were attributable to the aforementioned related party

transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group and

dividends appropriation during the years: (continued)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Beijing
Jinxi Investment provided two loans to Jinxi
Fenggang, amounted to approximately RMB 39.7
million and RMB 38.8 million respectively and RMB
57.7 million was repaid.

After several renewal agreements, as at 31
December 2012, two loans outstanding amounted
to approximately RMB 31.3 million and RMB
54.5 million, which were unsecured, bore interest
at 7.9% and 8% per annum respectively and
repayable within one year.

In March 2012, Mr. Li Hejun provided an additional
loan to Jinxi Dafang, amounted to approximately
RMB 35 million. The loan was unsecured, interest-
free and had a repayable term of 30 years.

Pursuant to certain renewed agreement, the
payables owing to Foshan Jin Lan amounted to
RMB 37 million was unsecured, interest-free and
had a repayable term of 5 years.

The loan borrowed from Jingtang Guangzhi
Investment was unsecured and bore interest at a
rate of 6.00% per annum.

43. APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board on 21 March 2013.

42.

43.

RBAXS (&)

© RZE——-FR_ZFT——F
+—A=+—H EFRAEMN
A 7 A eR T B Lt B
X5 REAEEE TR
HEBBEFEARNRRE DM
EE: (E)

() #H=E-—Z—=—+—-AH
=+—BLEFE - RZE
FEIR & M2 7 2 6 42 (L
EER 2EIRNNAAN
RE370E TR AR
3,880&F T+ HR AR

e —

57708 LEEE °

BIIETHEER R-F
——f+tZA=+—8"
MEREEERNAREK
3,130 & TR AR ¥ 5,450
BRLRAEER - HRIRF
FE7.9% K% 8%t B RR
—FREER -

iy M=ZZFE—=—F=RH ZF&H
FhREMERASREY
AR ¥ 3,500 & 7T 7 58 SN
B - ZERBEER
REREFHAE=TF -

(i) ARIBETERWE  BR
FILSEAEMNRBEAR
#3,7008 T A B
RERESRREE -

vy REEERERHENE
KA E AR K DA =R
6.00% 8 °
it ERRE
BFERR-_E—=F=A-+—8i#t
EREHPIERE °
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Five-year Financial Information & #& %l

A summary of the consolidated income statement and of the
consolidated assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the
Group for the last five financial years is as set out below:

AEBEZFAEYBRFENSFIEER
MEHEE  BERIFZEHIEEDHEZE
FIEAR

Consolidated Income Statement & A ER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=t—HLEE

Audited
RERZ
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E2--F 25 ZZ-TF ZZTHNE TIN\F
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR¥TRr) (ARETT) (ARETRT) (ARETR) (ARETIT)
Revenue WA 36,122,358 38,596,633 30,135,718 20,589,138 19,388,183
Profit before income tax ~ BRET{SEL AR T 326,056 1,931,812 1,613,481 1,313,734 113,601
Income tax expense FT{s i & A (179,579) (6514,023) (428,030) (341,293) (70,643)
Profit for the year EEHH 146,477 1,417,789 1,185,451 972,441 42,958
Profit attributable to : BB
Owners of ANV
the Company BEE 126,062 1,241,893 1,062,838 884,323 44,032
Non-controlling interests ~ FEFE Il [ #E & 20,415 175,896 122,613 88,118 (1,074)
146,477 1,417,789 1,185,451 972,441 42,958
Consolidated Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests B EE - BEEIFESIEER
As at 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+—H
Audited
RERZ
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E--F 25 ZZ-TF ZZTHNE TIN\F
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR¥TRr) (ARETT) (ARETRT) (ARETR) (ARETIT)
Total assets BEE 24,751,983 22,929,993 20,742,095 15,189,137 14,136,057
Total liabilities maE (15,196,967) (13,418,643) (12,222,321)  (7,728,387) (7,646,117
Non-controlling interests ~ JE3& |14 (513,247) (647,730) (450,012) (291,992) (224,711)
9,041,769 8,863,620 8,069,762 7,168,758 6,265,229
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